Registration No. 333-

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

Form F-4 **REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER**

THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

Allego N.V.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Articles)

The Netherlands (Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization)

4911 (Primary Standard Industrial Classification Code Number)

Not Applicable (I.R.S. Employer Identification Number

Westervoortsedijk 73 KB 6827 AV Arnhem, the Netherlands +31 (0) 88 033 3033

(Address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of Registrant's principal executive offices)

Corporation Trust Center 1209 Orange Street Wilmington DE 19801 Tel: (800) 677-3394 (Name, address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of agent for service)

Alexander Lynch, Esq. Heather Emmel, Esq. Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP 767 5th Avenue New York, NY 10153 Tel: (212) 310-8000

Copies to:

Mathieu Bonnet Chief Executive Officer. Allego N.V. Westervoortsedijk 73 KB 6827 AV Arnhem, the Netherlands Tel: +31 (0) 88 033 3033

Derek J. Dostal **Byron B. Rooney Davis Polk & Wardwell LLP** 450 Lexington Avenue New York, NY 10017 Tel: (212) 450-4000

Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale of the securities to the public: As soon as practicable after this registration statement is declared effective.

If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering: 🗆

If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(d) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering:

If applicable, place an X in the box to designate the appropriate rule provision relied upon in conducting this transaction:

Exchange Act Rule 13e-4(i) (Cross-Border Issuer Tender Offer)

Exchange Act Rule 14d-l(d) (Cross-Border Third-Party Tender Offer)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an emerging growth company as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act of 1933.

Emerging Growth Company 🗵

If an emerging growth company that prepares its financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards† provided pursuant to Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act. \Box

The term "new or revised financial accounting standard" refers to any update issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board to its Accounting Standards Codification after April 5, 2012.

The registrant hereby amends this registration statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until the registrant shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this registration statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 (the "Securities Act"), as amended, or until the registration statement shall become effective on such date as the SEC, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine.

Table of Contents

The information in this document may change. The registrant may not complete the offer and issue these securities until the registration statement filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This document is not an offer to sell these securities and it is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities, nor shall there be any sale of these securities, in any jurisdiction in which such offer, solicitation or sale is not permitted or would be unlawful prior to registration or qualification under the securities laws of any such jurisdiction.

PRELIMINARY-SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED AUGUST 25, 2023

PROSPECTUS/OFFER TO EXCHANGE

Allego N.V.

Offer to Exchange Warrants to Acquire Ordinary Shares

of Allego N.V. for Ordinary Shares of Allego N.V. and Consent Solicitation

THE OFFER PERIOD (AS DEFINED BELOW) AND WITHDRAWAL RIGHTS WILL EXPIRE AT MIDNIGHT (END OF DAY), EASTERN TIME, ON SEPTEMBER 22, 2023, OR SUCH LATER TIME AND DATE TO WHICH WE MAY EXTEND.

Terms of the Offer and Consent Solicitation

Until the Expiration Date (as defined below), we are offering to the holders of our outstanding warrants (the "*Warrants*"), each to purchase ordinary shares, each with a nominal value of \in 0.12 per share (the "*Ordinary Shares*"), of Allego N.V. (the "*Company*"), the opportunity to receive 0.23 Ordinary Shares in exchange for each of our outstanding Warrants tendered by the holder and exchanged pursuant to the offer (the "*Offer*").

The Offer is being made to all holders of our Warrants. The Warrants are governed by the Warrant Agreement, dated as of February 8, 2021, by and between Spartan Acquisition Corp. III ("*Spartan*") and Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as warrant agent (the "*Warrant Agent*"), as assumed by the Company pursuant to the Warrant Assumption Agreement, dated as of March 16, 2022, by and among the Company, Spartan and the Warrant Agent (the "*Warrant Agreement*"). Our Ordinary Shares and Warrants are listed on the New York Stock Exchange ("*NYSE*") under the symbols "ALLG" and "ALLG.WS," respectively. As of August 21, 2023, a total of 13,799,948 Warrants were outstanding. Pursuant to the Offer, we are offering up to an aggregate of 3,173,989 Ordinary Shares in exchange for the Warrants, subject to adjustment for fractional Warrants as described below in the Prospectus/Offer to Exchange.

Each Warrant holder whose Warrants are exchanged pursuant to the Offer will receive 0.23 Ordinary Shares for each Warrant tendered by such holder and exchanged. No fractional Ordinary Shares will be issued pursuant to the Offer. In lieu of issuing fractional Ordinary Shares, any holder of Warrants who would otherwise have been entitled to receive fractional Ordinary Shares pursuant to the Offer will, after aggregating all such fractional Ordinary Shares of such holder, receive one additional whole Ordinary Share in lieu of such fractional Ordinary Shares. Our obligation to complete the Offer is not conditioned on the receipt of a minimum number of tendered Warrants.

Concurrently with the Offer, we are also soliciting consents (the "Consent Solicitation") from holders of the Warrants to amend the Warrant Agreement, which governs the Warrants, to permit the Company to require that each Warrant that is outstanding upon the closing of the Offer be converted into 0.207 Ordinary Shares, which is a ratio 10% less than the exchange ratio applicable to the Offer (the "Warrant Amendment"). Pursuant to the terms of the Warrant Agreement, all except certain specified modifications or amendments require the vote or written consent of holders of at least 50% of the number of the then outstanding Warrants.

Parties representing approximately 30.4% of the outstanding Warrants have agreed to tender their Warrants in the Offer and to consent to the Warrant Amendment in the Consent Solicitation pursuant to a tender and support agreement (the "*Tender and Support Agreement*"). Accordingly, if holders of an additional approximately 19.6% of the outstanding Warrants consent to the Warrant Amendment in the Consent Solicitation, and the other conditions described herein are satisfied or waived, then the Warrant Amendment will be adopted with respect to the Warrants. For additional details regarding the Tender and Support Agreement, see "Market Information, Dividends and Related Shareholder Matters—Transactions and Agreements Concerning Our Securities—Tender and Support Agreement."

You may not consent to the Warrant Amendment without tendering your Warrants in the Offer and you may not tender such Warrants without consenting to the Warrant Amendment. You may revoke your consent at any time prior to the Expiration Date (as defined below) by withdrawing the Warrants you have tendered in the Offer, and a withdrawal of tendered Warrants will revoke your consent to the Warrant Amendment given with respect to such withdrawn tendered Warrants.

The Offer and Consent Solicitation is made solely upon the terms and conditions in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange. The Offer and Consent Solicitation will be open until Midnight (end of day), Eastern Time, on September 22, 2023, or such later time and date to which we may extend (the period during which the Offer and Consent Solicitation is open, giving effect to any withdrawal or extension, is referred to as the "*Offer Period*," and the date and time at which the Offer Period ends is

referred to as the "*Expiration Date*"). The Offer and Consent Solicitation is not made to those holders who reside in states or other jurisdictions where an offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful.

We may withdraw the Offer and Consent Solicitation only if the conditions to the Offer and Consent Solicitation are not satisfied or waived prior to the Expiration Date. Promptly upon any such withdrawal, we will return the tendered Warrants to the holders (and the consent to the Warrant Amendment will be revoked).

You may tender some or all of your Warrants pursuant to the Offer. If you elect to tender Warrants pursuant to the Offer and Consent Solicitation, please follow the instructions in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange and the related documents. You may withdraw your tendered Warrants at any time before the Expiration Date and retain them on their current terms or amended terms if the Warrant Amendment is approved, by following the instructions in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange. In addition, tendered Warrants that are not accepted by us for exchange by September 22, 2023, may thereafter be withdrawn by you until such time as the Warrants are accepted by us for exchange. If you withdraw your tendered Warrants, your consent to the Warrant Amendment given with respect to those withdrawn tendered Warrants will be withdrawn as a result.

Warrants not exchanged for Ordinary Shares pursuant to the Offer will remain outstanding subject to their current terms or amended terms if the Warrant Amendment is approved. We reserve the right to redeem any of the Warrants, as applicable, pursuant to their current terms at any time, including prior to the completion of the Offer and Consent Solicitation, and if the Warrant Amendment is approved, we intend to require the conversion of all outstanding Warrants to Ordinary Shares as provided in the Warrant Amendment. Our Warrants are currently listed on NYSE under the symbol "ALLG.WS"; however, our Warrants may be delisted if, following the completion of the Offer and Consent Solicitation, the extent of public distribution or the aggregate market value of outstanding Warrants has become so reduced as to make further listing inadvisable or unavailable.

The Offer and Consent Solicitation is conditioned upon the effectiveness of a registration statement on Form F-4, of which this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange forms a part, that we filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") regarding the Ordinary Shares issuable upon exchange of the Warrants pursuant to the Offer.

Our Board (as defined below) has approved the Offer and Consent Solicitation. However, neither we nor any of our management, our Board, or the information agent, the exchange agent or the dealer manager for the Offer and Consent Solicitation is making any recommendation as to whether holders of Warrants should tender Warrants for exchange in the Offer and consent to the Warrant Amendment in the Consent Solicitation. Each holder of a Warrant must make their own decision as to whether to exchange some or all of their Warrants and, as applicable, consent to the Warrant Amendment.

All questions concerning the terms of the Offer and Consent Solicitation should be directed to the dealer manager:

BofA Securities, Inc. One Bryant Park New York, New York 10036

All questions concerning exchange procedures and requests for additional copies of this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange or the Notice of Guaranteed Delivery should be directed to the information agent:

D.F. King & Co., Inc. 48 Wall Street, New York, NY 10005 Bank and Brokers Call Collect: (212) 269-5550 All Others, Please Call Toll-Free: (800) 967-7635 allego@dfking.com

We will amend our offering materials, including this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange, to the extent required by applicable securities laws to disclose any material changes to information previously published, sent or given to Warrant holders.

The securities offered by this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange involve risks. Before participating in the Offer and consenting to the Warrant Amendment, you are urged to read carefully the section entitled "<u>*Risk Factors*</u>" beginning on page 7 of this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange.

Neither the SEC nor the Netherlands AFM (*Autoriteit Financiële Markten*), any state securities commission or any other regulatory body has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

Through the Offer, we are soliciting your consent to the Warrant Amendment. By tendering your Warrants, you will be delivering your consent to the proposed Warrant Amendment, which consent will be effective upon our acceptance of such Warrants for exchange.

The dealer manager for the Offer and Consent Solicitation is:

BofA Securities

This Prospectus/Offer to Exchange is dated

, 2023.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS/OFFER TO EXCHANGE	ii
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	iii
<u>CERTAIN DEFINED TERMS</u>	v
CONVENTIONS WHICH APPLY TO THIS PROSPECTUS/OFFER TO EXCHANGE	vii
SUMMARY	1
<u>RISK FACTORS</u>	7
THE OFFER AND CONSENT SOLICITATION	11
MARKET INFORMATION, DIVIDENDS AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS	20
SELLING RESTRICTIONS	24
MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS	25
MATERIAL DUTCH INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS	33
DESCRIPTION OF SHARE CAPITAL AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION	39
LEGAL MATTERS	49
<u>EXPERTS</u>	50
ENFORCEABILITY OF CIVIL LIABILITIES	51
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	52
FORM OF WARRANT AMENDMENT AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO WARRANT AGREEMENT	A-1

i

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS/OFFER TO EXCHANGE

This Prospectus/Offer to Exchange is a part of the registration statement that we filed on FormF-4 with the SEC. You should read this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange, including the detailed information regarding the Company, Ordinary Shares and Warrants, and the financial statements and the notes that are incorporated by reference in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange and any applicable supplement to this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange.

We have not authorized anyone to provide you with information different from that contained, or incorporated by reference, in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange. If anyone makes any recommendation or representation to you, or gives you any information, you must not rely upon that recommendation, representation or information as having been authorized by us. We and the dealer manager take no responsibility for, and can provide no assurance as to the reliability of, any other information that others may give you. You should not assume that the information contained, or incorporated by reference, in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange or any prospectus supplement is accurate as of any date other than the date on the front of those documents. You should not consider this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange to be an offer or solicitation relating to the securities in any jurisdiction in which such an offer or solicitation relating to the securities is not authorized. Furthermore, you should not consider this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange to be an offer or solicitation is not qualified to do so, or if it is unlawful for you to receive such an offer or solicitation.

This Prospectus/Offer to Exchange incorporates important business and financial information about the Company that is not included in or delivered with this document. This information is available without charge to holders upon written or oral request to the Company, which may be made in writing or by phone to the following address or telephone number: Allego N.V., Westervoortsedijk 73 KB, 6827 AV Arnhem, the Netherlands, Tel. +31(0)88 033 3033. To obtain timely delivery of such information, security holders must request such information no later than five business days prior to the Expiration Date. We encourage you to submit any request for documents as soon as possible to ensure timely delivery of the documents prior to the Expiration Date.

This Prospectus/Offer to Exchange, including information incorporated by reference herein, contains references to our trademarks and to trademarks belonging to other entities. Solely for convenience, trademarks and trade names referred to in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange, including logos, artwork and other visual displays may appear without the [®] or TM symbols, but such references are not intended to indicate, in any way, that their respective owners will not assert, to the fullest extent under applicable law, their rights thereto. We do not intend our use or display of other companies' trade name or trademarks to imply a relationship with, or endorsement or sponsorship of us by, any other companies.

Certain amounts that are contained, or incorporated by reference, appear in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange may not sum due to rounding.

ii

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange, as well as the documents incorporated by reference herein, contain *forward-looking statements*" as defined in Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the *Exchange Act*"). All statements other than statements of historical fact are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements include information about our possible or assumed future results of operations or our performance. In addition, any statements that refer to projections, forecasts or other characterizations of future events or circumstances, including any underlying assumptions, are forward-looking statements. Words such as, *"anticipate," "appear," "approximate," "believe," "continue," "could," "estimate," "expect," "foresee," "intends," "may," "might," "plan," "possible," "potential," "predict," "project," "seek," "should," and variations of such words and similar expressions (or the negative version of such words or expressions) may identify forward-looking statements, but the absence of these words does not mean that a statement is not forward-looking. The risk factors and cautionary language referring to or incorporated by reference in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange provide examples of risks, uncertainties and events that may cause actual results to differ materially from the expectations described in our forward-looking statements, including among other things, the items identified in the section entitled "<i>Risk Factors*" of this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange. Forward-looking statements contained, or incorporated by reference, in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange to incorporated by reference, in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange.

- the ability to maintain the listing of the Ordinary Shares on NYSE;
- · changes adversely affecting Allego's business;
- the risks associated with vulnerability to industry downturns and regional or national downturns;
- fluctuations in Allego's revenue and operating results;
- unfavorable conditions or further disruptions in the capital and credit markets;
- Allego's ability to generate cash, service indebtedness and incur additional indebtedness;
- competition from existing and new competitors;
- the growth of the electric vehicle market;
- Allego's ability to integrate any business it may acquire;
- Allego's ability to recruit and retrain experienced personnel;
- risks related to legal proceedings or claims, including liability claims;
- Allego's dependence on third-party contractors to provide various services;
- data security breaches or other network outages;
- Allego's ability to obtain additional capital on commercially reasonable terms;
- Allego's ability to remediate its material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting;
- the impact of COVID-19 and other pandemics, including related supply chain disruptions and expense increases;
- general economic or political conditions, including the Russia/Ukraine conflict or increased trade restrictions between the United States, Russia, China and other countries;
- · the approval of the Warrant Amendment and our ability to require that all outstanding Warrants be exchanged for Ordinary Shares;
- the exchange of Warrants for Ordinary Shares pursuant to the Offer, which will increase the number of Ordinary Shares eligible for future resale in the public market and result in dilution to our securityholders;

iii

- the lack of a third party determination that the Offer or the Consent Solicitation is fair to holders of the Warrants; and
- other risks and uncertainties described in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange, including those under the section entitled '*Risk Factors*,'' as well as in the 2022 Form 20-F (as defined below).

Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date made. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable, there can be no assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct. These statements involve known and unknown risks and are based upon a number of assumptions and estimates, which are inherently subject to significant uncertainties and contingencies, many of which are beyond our control. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Accordingly, forward-looking statements should not be relied upon as representing our views as of any subsequent date, and we do not undertake any obligation to update forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date they were made, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as may be required under applicable securities laws.

iv

CERTAIN DEFINED TERMS

Unless otherwise stated or unless the context otherwise requires, all references to "we," "us," "our," "Allego," or the "Company" refer to (i) Allego Holding B.V. and its subsidiaries prior to the consummation of the Business Combination and (ii) Allego N.V. (the successor to Athena Pubco B.V.) and its subsidiaries, including Allego Holding and Spartan, following the consummation of the Business Combination.

In this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange:

"2022 Form 20-F" means our annual report on Form 20-F for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on May 16, 2023.

"Allego Holding" means Allego Holding B.V., a Dutch private limited liability company (besloten vennootschap met beperkte aansprakelijkheid).

"Articles" means the Articles of Association of Allego N.V. contained in the Deed of Conversion and Amendment of the Articles of Association of Allego N.V.

"Board" means the board of directors of Allego.

"Business Combination" means the transactions contemplated by the Business Combination Agreement, which were consummated on March 16, 2022.

"Business Combination Agreement" means the Business Combination Agreement and Plan of Reorganization, dated as of July 28, 2021, by and among Allego, Allego Holding, Spartan, Madeleine, and, solely with respect to the sections specified therein, E8 Investor.

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

"Consent Solicitation" means the solicitation of consent from the holders of the Warrants to approve the Warrant Amendment.

"E8 Investor" means E8 Partenaires, a French société par actions simplifée.

"EV" means electric vehicle.

"Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

"Expiration Date" means Midnight (end of day), Eastern Time, on September 22, 2023.

"General Meeting" means the general meeting of Allego.

"IRS" means the Internal Revenue Service.

"Madeleine" means Madeleine Charging B.V., a Dutch private limited liability company (besloten vennootschap met beperkte aansprakelijkheid).

"Offer" means the opportunity to receive 0.23 Ordinary Shares in exchange for each of our outstanding Warrants.

"Offer Period" means the period during which the Offer and Consent Solicitation is open, giving effect to any extension.

"Ordinary Shares" means the ordinary shares of Allego N.V., with a nominal value of $\in 0.12$ per share.

v

Table of Contents

"Private Placement Warrants" means the warrants issued to the Sponsor in a private placement simultaneously with the closing of the Business Combination. On April 20, 2022, a permitted transferee of the Sponsor exercised the Private Placement Warrants on a cashless basis. As a result of the exercise, no Private Placement Warrants are outstanding.

"Spartan" means Spartan Acquisition Corp. III, a Delaware corporation.

"Sponsor" means Spartan Acquisition Sponsor III LLC, a Delaware limited liability company.

"Warrants" means all of the 13,799,948 warrants governed by the Warrant Agreement, all of which constitute public warrants. No Private Placement Warrants are outstanding.

"Warrant Agreement' means the Warrant Agreement dated February 8, 2021 by and between Spartan and Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as the warrant agent.

"Warrant Amendment' means the amendment to the Warrant Agreement permitting the Company to require that each outstanding Warrant be converted into 0.207 Ordinary Shares, which is a ratio 10% less than the exchange ratio applicable to the Offer.

"Warrant Assumption Agreement" means the Warrant Assumption Agreement dated March 16, 2022 by and among Spartan, Allego and Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company.

vi

CONVENTIONS WHICH APPLY TO THIS PROSPECTUS/OFFER TO EXCHANGE

In this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange, unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires:

"\$," "USD" and "U.S. dollar" each refers to the United States dollar; and

" \mathcal{C} ," "EUR" and "euro" each refers to the lawful currency of certain participating member states of the European Union.

SUMMARY

The Offer and Consent Solicitation

This summary provides a brief overview of the key aspects of the Offer and Consent Solicitation. Because it is only a summary, it does not contain all of the detailed information contained elsewhere, or incorporated by reference in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange or in the documents included as exhibits to the registration statement that contains this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange. Accordingly, you are urged to carefully review this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange in its entirety (including all documents incorporated herein by reference and all documents filed as exhibits to the registration statement that contains this prospectus/Offer to Exchange by the procedures set forth herein in the section entitled "Where You Can Find Additional Information").

Summary of the Offer and Consent Solicitation

The Company	We operate one of the largest pan-European EV public charging networks and are a provider of high value-add EV charging services to third-party customers. Our large, vehicle-agnostic European public network offers easy access for all EV car, truck and bus drivers. As of June 30, 2023, we own or operate almost 35,000 charging ports and over 17,000 public and private sites across 15 countries and have had over a million unique network users. In addition, approximately 80% of our users are recurring users as of June 30, 2023. In addition, we provide a wide variety of EV-related services including site design and technical layout, authorization and billing, and operations and maintenance to more than 400 customers that include fleets and corporations, charging hosts, original equipment manufacturers, and municipalities.
Corporate Contact Information	Allego was formed under the laws of the Netherlands in 2021 as a private limited liability company (<i>besloten venootschap met beperkte aansprakelijkeid</i>) and was converted into a public limited liability company (<i>naamloze vennootschap</i>) on the closing of the Business Combination. The mailing address of Allego's registered office is Westervoortsedijk 73 KB, 6827 AV Arnhem, the Netherlands, and Allego's phone number is +31(0)88 033 3033.
	Our website is www.allego.eu. The information on, or that can be accessed through, our website is not part of this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange or the registration statement of which it forms a part, and you should not consider information contained on our website in deciding whether to tender Warrants in exchange for our Ordinary Shares.
Warrants that Qualify for the Offer	As of August 21, 2023, a total of 13,799,948 Warrants were outstanding. The Warrants are governed by the Warrant Agreement, as assumed by the Company pursuant to the Warrant Assumption Agreement, and are each exercisable for one Ordinary Share at a price of \$11.50 per share, subject to adjustments pursuant to the Warrant Agreement. Pursuant to the Offer, we are offering up to an aggregate of 3,173,989 Ordinary Shares in exchange for all of the outstanding Warrants, subject to adjustment for fractional Warrants as described below in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange.

Under the Warrant Agreement, we may call the Warrants for redemption at our option:

- in whole and not in part;
 - at a price of \$0.01 per Warrant if, and only if, the reported last sale price of our Ordinary Shares equals or exceeds \$18.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading days within a 30-trading day period ending three business days before we send the notice of redemption to the Warrant holders; or
 - at a price of \$0.10 per Warrant, provided that holders will be able to exercise their Warrants on a cashless basis prior to redemption and receive that number of Ordinary Shares determined in accordance with the Warrant Agreement, based on the redemption date and the "fair market value" of our Ordinary Shares, if, and only if, the closing price of our Ordinary Shares equals or exceeds \$10.00 per share (as adjusted for adjustments to the number of shares issuable upon exercise or the exercise price of a Warrant and the like) for any 20 trading days within the 30-day period ending three trading days before we send notice of the redemption to the Warrant holders; and
- upon not less than 30 days' prior written notice of redemption (the '30-day redemption period') to each Warrant holder.

The "fair market value" means the average last reported sale price of the Ordinary Shares for the 10 trading days ending on the third trading day prior to the date on which the notice of Warrant exercise is sent to the Warrant Agent.

The Warrants expire in 2026, subject to certain terms and conditions.

Our Ordinary Shares and Warrants are listed on NYSE under the symbols "ALLG" and "ALLG.WS" respectively. See "Market Information, Dividends and Related Shareholder Matters."

Each Warrant holder who tenders Warrants for exchange pursuant to the Offer will receive 0.23 Ordinary Shares for each Warrant so exchanged. No fractional Ordinary Shares will be issued pursuant to the Offer. In lieu of issuing fractional Ordinary Shares, any holder of Warrants who would otherwise have been entitled to receive fractional Ordinary Shares pursuant to the Offer will, after aggregating all such fractional Ordinary Shares of such holder, receive one additional whole Ordinary Share in lieu of such fractional Ordinary Shares. Our obligation to complete the Offer is not conditioned on the receipt of a minimum number of tendered Warrants.

Holders of the Warrants tendered for exchange will not have to pay any of the exercise price for the tendered Warrants in order to receive Ordinary Shares in the exchange.

2

Market Price of Our Shares

The Offer

The Ordinary Shares issued in exchange for the tendered Warrants will be unrestricted and freely transferable, as long as the holder is not an affiliate of ours and was not an affiliate of ours within the three months prior to the proposed transfer of such Ordinary Shares. The Offer is being made to all Warrant holders except those holders who reside in states or other jurisdictions where an offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful (or would require further action in order to comply with applicable securities laws). The Consent Solicitation In order to tender Warrants in the Offer and Consent Solicitation, holders are required to consent (by executing the Letters of Transmittal and Consent or requesting that their broker or nominee consent on their behalf) to an amendment to the Warrant Agreement governing the Warrants as set forth in the Warrant Amendment attached as Annex A to this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange. If approved, the Warrant Amendment would permit the Company to require that all Warrants that are outstanding upon the closing of the Offer be converted into Ordinary Shares at a ratio of 0.207 Ordinary Shares per Warrant (a ratio which is 10% less than the exchange ratio applicable to the Offer). Upon such conversion, no Warrants will remain outstanding. Purpose of the Offer and Consent Solicitation The purpose of the Offer and Consent Solicitation is to attempt to simplify our capital structure and reduce the potentially dilutive impact of the Warrants, thereby providing us with more flexibility for financing our operations in the future. See "The Offer and Consent Solicitation-Background and Purpose of the Offer and Consent Solicitation.' **Offer Period** The Offer and Consent Solicitation will expire on the Expiration Date, which is Midnight (end of day), Eastern Time, on September 22, 2023, or such later time and date to which we may extend. All Warrants tendered for exchange pursuant to the Offer and Consent Solicitation, and all required related paperwork, must be received by the exchange agent by the Expiration Date, as described in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange. If the Offer Period is extended, we will make a public announcement of such extension by no later than 9:00 a.m., Eastern Time, on the next business day following the Expiration Date as in effect immediately prior to such extension. We may withdraw the Offer and Consent Solicitation only if the conditions of the Offer and Consent Solicitation are not satisfied or waived prior to the Expiration Date. Promptly upon any such withdrawal, we will return the tendered Warrants and the related consent to the Warrant Amendment will be revoked. We will announce our decision to withdraw the Offer and Consent Solicitation by disseminating notice by public announcement or otherwise as permitted by applicable law. See "The Offer and Consent Solicitation-General Terms-Offer Period."

Amendments to the Offer and Consent Solicitation	We reserve the right at any time or from time to time to amend the Offer and Consent Solicitation, including by increasing or (if the conditions to the Offer are not satisfied) decreasing the exchange ratio of Ordinary Shares issued for every Warrant exchanged or by changing the terms of the Warrant Amendment. If we make a material change to the terms of the Offer and Consent Solicitation or the information concerning the Offer and Consent Solicitation, or if we waive a material condition of the Offer and Consent Solicitation, we will extend the Offer and Consent Solicitation to the extent required by Rules 13e-4(d)(2) and 13e-4(e)(3) under the Exchange Act. See " <i>The Offer and Consent Solicitation—General Terms—Amendments to the Offer and Consent Solicitation.</i> "
Conditions to the Offer and Consent Solicitation	The Offer is subject to customary conditions, including the effectiveness of the registration statement of which this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange forms a part and the absence of any action or proceeding, statute, rule, regulation or order that would challenge or restrict the making or completion of the Offer. The Offer is not conditioned upon the receipt of a minimum number of tendered Warrants. However, the Consent Solicitation is conditioned upon receiving the consent of holders of at least 50% of the number of the then outstanding Warrants (which is the minimum number required to amend the Warrant Agreement with respect to the Warrants). We may waive some of the conditions to the Offer. See " <i>The Offer and Consent Solicitation—General Terms—Conditions to the Offer and Consent Solicitation</i> ."
	We will not complete the Offer and Consent Solicitation unless and until the registration statement described above is effective. If the registration statement is not effective at the Expiration Date, we may, in our discretion, extend, suspend or cancel the Offer and Consent Solicitation, and will inform Warrant holders of such event.
Withdrawal Rights	If you tender your Warrants for exchange and change your mind, you may withdraw your tendered Warrants and automatically revoke the related consent to the Warrant Amendment at any time prior to the Expiration Date, as described in greater detail in the section entitled " <i>The Offer and Consent Solicitation Withdrawal Rights.</i> " If the Offer Period is extended, you may withdraw your tendered Warrants and automatically revoke the related consent to the Warrant Amendment at any time until the extended Expiration Date. In addition, tendered Warrants that are not accepted by us for exchange by September 22, 2023 may thereafter be withdrawn by you until such time as the Warrants are accepted by us for exchange.
Federal and State Regulatory Approvals	Other than compliance with the applicable federal and state securities laws, no federal or state regulatory requirements must be complied with and no federal or state regulatory approvals must be obtained in connection with the Offer and Consent Solicitation.

Absence of Appraisal or Dissenters' Rights

Holders of Warrants do not have any appraisal or dissenters' rights under applicable law in connection with the Offer and Consent Solicitation.

U.S. Holders

U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Offer to For a U.S. Holder (as defined below in "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations") of Warrants who participates in the Offer, we intend to treat such U.S. Holder's exchange of Warrants for our Ordinary Shares in the Offer as a "recapitalization" within the meaning of Section 368(a)(1)(E) of the Code pursuant to which, subject to the discussion of the PFIC rules below under "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations-Passive Foreign Investment Company Rules," (i) such U.S. Holder should not recognize any gain or loss on the exchange of Warrants for Ordinary Shares, (ii) such U.S. Holder's aggregate tax basis in our Ordinary Shares received in the exchange should equal the U.S. Holder's aggregate tax basis in such U.S. Holder's Warrants surrendered in the exchange and (iii) such U.S. Holder's holding period for our Ordinary Shares received in the exchange should include the U.S. Holder's holding period for the surrendered Warrants. However, because there is a lack of direct legal authority regarding the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the exchange of Warrants for our Ordinary Shares, there can be no assurance in this regard and alternative characterizations are possible by the IRS or a court, including ones that would require U.S. Holders to recognize taxable income.

> Although not free from doubt, if the Warrant Amendment is approved, we intend to treat all Warrants not exchanged for Ordinary Shares in the Offer as having been exchanged for "new" Warrants pursuant to the Warrant Amendment and to treat such deemed exchange as a "recapitalization" within the meaning of Section 368(a)(1)(E) of the Code, pursuant to which, subject to the discussion of the PFIC rules below under "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations-Passive Foreign Investment Company Rules," (i) a U.S. Holder of such Warrants should not recognize any gain or loss on the deemed exchange of Warrants for "new" Warrants, (ii) such U.S. Holder's aggregate tax basis in the "new" Warrants deemed to be received in the exchange should equal the U.S. Holder's aggregate tax basis in such U.S. Holder's existing Warrants surrendered in the exchange, and (iii) such U.S. Holder's holding period for the "new" Warrants deemed to be received in the exchange should include the U.S. Holder's holding period for the surrendered Warrants. Because there is a lack of direct legal authority regarding the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the deemed exchange of Warrants for "new" Warrants pursuant to the Warrant Amendment, there can be no assurance in this regard and alternative characterizations by the IRS or a court are possible, including ones that would require U.S. Holders to recognize taxable income. See "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations."

Material Dutch Income Tax Considerations of the OfferSee section entitled "Material Dutch Income Tax Considerations"

No Recommendation	None of our Board, our management, our affiliates the dealer manager, the exchange agent, the information agent or any other person makes any recommendation on whether you should tender or refrain from tendering all or any portion of your Warrants or consent to the Warrant Amendment, and no one has been authorized by any of them to make such a recommendation.
Risk Factors	For risks related to the Offer and Consent Solicitation, please read the section entitled ' <i>Risk Factors</i> '' beginning on page 7 of this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange.
Exchange Agent	The depositary and exchange agent for the Offer and Consent Solicitation is:
	Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company Attn: Corporate Actions 1 State Street, 30 th Floor, New York, New York 10004
Dealer Manager	The dealer manager for the Offer and Consent Solicitation is:
	BofA Securities, Inc. One Bryant Park New York, New York 10036
	We have other business relationships with the dealer manager, as described in "The Offer and Consent Solicitation—Dealer Manager."
Additional Information	We recommend that our Warrant holders review the registration statement on FormF-4, of which this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange forms a part, including the exhibits that we have filed with the SEC in connection with the Offer and Consent Solicitation and our other materials that we have filed with the SEC before making a decision on whether to tender their Warrants for exchange in the Offer and consent to the Warrant Amendment. All reports and other documents we have filed with the SEC can be accessed electronically on the SEC's website at www.sec.gov.
	You should direct (1) questions about the terms of the Offer and Consent Solicitation to the dealer manager at its addresses and telephone number listed above and (2) questions about the exchange procedures and requests for additional copies of this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange or Notice of Guaranteed Delivery to the information agent at the below address and phone number:
	D.F. King & Co., Inc. 48 Wall Street, New York, NY 10005 Bank and Brokers Call Collect: (212)269-5550 All Others, Please Call Toll-Free: (800) 967-7635

allego@dfking.com

RISK FACTORS

We operate in a market environment that is difficult to predict and that involves significant risks, many of which are beyond our control. You should consider and read carefully all of the risks and uncertainties described below, as well as other information included, or incorporated by reference, in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange, including the risk factors discussed under the heading "Risk Factors" in the 2022 Form 20-F and our consolidated financial statements and related notes that are incorporated by reference in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange, before exchanging your Warrants for our Ordinary Shares. See "Where You Can Find More Information—Incorporation by Reference". If any of the events, contingencies, circumstances or conditions described in the following risks actually occur, our business, financial condition or results of operations could be seriously harmed. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we do not currently believe are important to an investor, if they materialize, also may adversely affect us.

Risks Related to Our Warrants and the Offer to Exchange and Consent Solicitation

The Warrant Amendment, if approved, will allow us to require that all outstanding Warrants that are not tendered in the Offer be exchanged for Ordinary Shares at a ratio 10% less than the exchange ratio applicable to the Offer.

If we complete the Offer and Consent Solicitation and obtain the requisite approval of the Warrant Amendment by holders of the Warrants, the Company will have the right to require holders of all Warrants that remain outstanding upon the closing of the Offer to exchange each of their Warrants for 0.207 Ordinary Shares. This represents a ratio of Ordinary Shares per Warrant that is 10% less than the exchange ratio applicable to the Offer. Although we intend to require an exchange of all remaining outstanding Warrants as a result of the approval of the Warrant Amendment, we would not be required to effect such an exchange and may defer doing so, if ever, until most economically advantageous to us.

Pursuant to the terms of the Warrant Agreement, the consent of holders of at least 50% of the number of the then outstanding Warrants is required to approve the Warrant Amendment. Therefore, one of the conditions to the adoption of the Warrant Amendment is the receipt of the consent of holders of at least 50% of the number of the then outstanding Warrants. Parties representing approximately 30.4% of the outstanding Warrants have agreed to tender their Warrants in the Offer and to consent to the Warrant Amendment in the Consent Solicitation, pursuant to the Tender and Support Agreement. Accordingly, if holders of an additional approximately 19.6% of the outstanding Warrants consent to the Warrant Amendment in the Consent Solicitation, and the other conditions described herein are satisfied or waived, then the Warrant Amendment will be adopted with respect to the Warrants.

If adopted, we currently intend to require the conversion of all outstanding Warrants to Ordinary Shares as provided in the Warrant Amendment, which would result in the holders of any remaining outstanding Warrants receiving approximately 10% fewer shares than if they had tendered their Warrants in the Offer.

The exchange of Warrants for Ordinary Shares will increase the number of Ordinary Shares eligible for future resale and result in dilution to our shareholders.

Our Warrants may be exchanged for Ordinary Shares pursuant to the Offer, which will increase the number of Ordinary Shares eligible for future resale in the public market and result in dilution to our shareholders, although there can be no assurance that such Warrant exchange will be completed or that all of the holders of the Warrants will elect to participate in the Offer. Any Warrants remaining outstanding after the exchange likely will be exercised only if the \$11.50 per share exercise price is below the market price of our Ordinary Shares. We also intend to require an exchange of all remaining outstanding Warrants assuming the approval of the Warrant Amendment. To the extent such Warrants are exchanged following the approval of the Warrant Amendment or exercised, additional Ordinary Shares will be issued. These issuances of Ordinary Shares will result in dilution to our shareholders and increase the number of Ordinary Shares eligible for resale in the public market.

We have not obtained a third-party determination that the Offer or the Consent Solicitation is fair to Warrant holders.

None of us, our affiliates, the dealer manager, the exchange agent or the information agent makes any recommendation as to whether you should exchange some or all of your Warrants or consent to the Warrant Amendment. We have not retained, and do not intend to retain, any unaffiliated representative to act on behalf of the Warrant holders for purposes of negotiating the Offer or Consent Solicitation or preparing a report concerning the fairness of the Offer or the Consent Solicitation. You must make your own independent decision regarding your participation in the Offer and the Consent Solicitation.

There is no guarantee that tendering your Warrants in the Offer will put you in a better future economic position.

We can give no assurance as to the market price of our Ordinary Shares in the future. If you choose to tender some or all of your Warrants in the Offer, future events may cause an increase in the market price of our Ordinary Shares and Warrants, which may result in a lower value realized by participating in the Offer than you might have realized if you did not exchange your Warrants. Similarly, if you do not tender your Warrants in the Offer, there can be no assurance that you can sell your Warrants (or exercise them for Ordinary Shares) in the future at a higher value than would have been obtained by participating in the Offer. In addition, if the Warrant Amendment is adopted, you may receive fewer Ordinary Shares than if you had tendered your Warrants in the Offer. You should consult your own individual financial advisor for assistance on how this may affect your individual situation.

The number of Ordinary Shares offered in the Offer is fixed and will not be adjusted. The market price of our Ordinary Shares may fluctuate, and the market price of our Ordinary Shares when we deliver our Ordinary Shares in exchange for Warrants could be less than the market price at the time Warrants are tendered.

The number of Ordinary Shares for each Warrant accepted for exchange is fixed at the number of shares specified on the cover of this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange and will fluctuate in value if there is any increase or decrease in the market price of our Ordinary Shares or the Warrants after the date of this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange. Therefore, the market price of our Ordinary Shares when we deliver Ordinary Shares in exchange for Warrants could be less than the market price of the Warrants at the time Warrants are tendered. The market price of our Ordinary Shares could continue to fluctuate and be subject to volatility during the period of time between when we accept Warrants for exchange in the Offer and when we deliver Ordinary Shares in exchange for Warrants, or during any extension of the Offer Period.

We may redeem Warrants that are not exchanged prior to their exercise at a time that is disadvantageous to you, thereby making your Warrants worthless.

We will have the ability to redeem outstanding Warrants at any time after they become exercisable and prior to their expiration, at \$0.01 per Warrant, provided that the last reported sales price of our Ordinary Shares equals or exceeds \$18.00 per share (as adjusted for share splits, share dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading days within a 30-day period ending three trading days before we send notice of the redemption to the Warrant holders, provided that on the date we give notice of redemption and during the entire period thereafter until the time we redeem the Warrants, we have an effective registration statement under the Securities Act covering our Ordinary Shares issuable upon exercise of the Warrants and current prospectus relating to them is available.

In addition, we have the ability to redeem the outstanding Warrants at any time after they become exercisable and prior to their expiration, at a price of \$0.10 per Warrant upon a minimum of 30 days' prior written notice of redemption provided that the last reported sales price of our Ordinary Shares equals or exceeds \$10.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) on

the trading day prior to the date on which we send the notice of redemption to the warrant holders, and provided that certain other conditions are met, including that holders will be able to exercise their Warrants on a cashless basis prior to redemption for a number of Ordinary Shares determined based on the redemption date and the fair market value of our Ordinary Shares as set forth in the Warrant Agreement. The value received upon exercise of the Warrants (i) may be less than the value the holders would have received if they had exercised their Warrants at a later time where the underlying share price is higher and (ii) may not compensate the holders for the value of the Warrants, including because the number of Ordinary Shares received is capped at 0.361 Ordinary Shares per Warrant (subject to adjustment) irrespective of the remaining life of the Warrants.

If and when the Warrants that are not exchanged become redeemable by us, we may exercise our redemption right even if we are unable to register or qualify the underlying securities for sale under all applicable state securities laws. Redemption of the outstanding Warrants could force a Warrant holder: (i) to exercise their Warrants and pay the exercise price therefor at a time when it may be disadvantageous to do so, (ii) to sell their Warrants at the then-current market price when they might otherwise wish to hold their Warrants or (iii) to accept the nominal redemption price which, at the time the outstanding Warrants are called for redemption, will be substantially less than the market value of the Warrants.

The liquidity of the Warrants that are not exchanged may be reduced.

If the Warrant Amendment is approved, it is unlikely that any Warrants will remain outstanding following the completion of the Offer and Consent Solicitation. See "*—The Warrant Amendment, if approved, will allow us to require that all outstanding Warrants that are not tendered in the Offer be exchanged for Ordinary Shares at a ratio 10% less than the exchange ratio applicable to the Offer*" However, if any Warrants that are not exchanged remain outstanding, then the ability to sell such Warrants may become more limited due to the reduction in the number of Warrants outstanding upon completion of the Offer and Consent Solicitation. A more limited trading market might adversely affect the liquidity, market price and price volatility of the Warrants. If there continues to be a market for our Warrants, they may trade at a discount to the price at which they would trade if the number outstanding were not reduced, depending on the market for similar securities and other factors.

Allego could be treated as a U.S. corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes as a result of the Business Combination.

Under current U.S. federal income tax law, a corporation generally will be considered to be a U.S. corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes if it is created or organized in the United States or under the law of the United States or of any State. Accordingly, under generally applicable U.S. federal income tax rules, a corporation organized under the laws of the Netherlands would generally be treated as a non-U.S. corporation (and, therefore, not a U.S. tax resident) for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Section 7874 of the Code and the Treasury regulations promulgated thereunder, however, contain specific rules that may cause a non-U.S. corporation to be treated as a U.S. corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes (an **Tnverted Corporation**"). If it were determined that Allego were an Inverted Corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes under Section 7874 of the Code and the Treasury regulations promulgated thereunder, Allego would be liable for U.S. federal income tax purposes under Section 7874 of the Code and the Treasury regulations promulgated thereunder, and its dividends, if any, would be subject to taxation by the U.S. as dividends from a U.S. Corporation.

Regardless of the application of Section 7874 of the Code, Allego is expected to be treated as a Dutch tax resident for Dutch tax purposes. Consequently, if Allego were an Inverted Corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes under Section 7874 of the Code, it could be liable for both U.S. and Dutch taxes and dividends paid by Allego to its shareholders could be subject to both U.S. and Dutch withholding taxes.

Allego does not expect to be an Inverted Corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and Allego intends to take this position on its tax returns. However, the application of Section 7874 of the Code is complex,

subject to detailed U.S. Treasury regulations (the application of which is uncertain in various respects and is subject of ongoing regulatory change) and subject to certain factual uncertainties. Allego has not sought and will not seek any rulings from the IRS as to such tax treatment and there can be no assurance that the IRS will not challenge Allego's status as a non-U.S. corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes under Section 7874 of the Code or that such challenge would not be sustained by a court. Further, there can be no assurance that your tax advisor or Allego's tax advisors, will agree with the position that Allego is not an Inverted Corporation pursuant to Section 7874 of the Code. Allego is not representing to you that Allego will not be treated as an Inverted Corporation or Surrogate Foreign Corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes under Section 7874 of the Code.

If Allego were a passive foreign investment company ("PFIC") for U.S. federal income tax purposes, U.S. Holders of Allego Ordinary Shares or Warrants could be subject to adverse U.S. federal income tax consequences.

If Allego is treated as a PFIC, within the meaning of Section 1297 of the Code for any taxable year (or portion thereof) during which a U.S. Holder (as defined in "*Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences*") holds Allego Ordinary Shares or Warrants (regardless of whether Allego remains a PFIC for subsequent taxable years), certain adverse U.S. federal income tax consequences, such as taxation at the highest marginal ordinary income tax rates on capital gains and on certain actual or deemed distributions, and interest charges on certain taxes treated as deferred, may apply to such U.S. Holder and such U.S. Holder might be subject to additional reporting requirements. Under certain circumstances, certain elections may be available to U.S. Holders of Allego Ordinary Shares to mitigate some of the adverse tax consequences resulting from PFIC treatment, but U.S. Holders will not be able to make similar elections with respect to the Warrants.

Based on the composition of Allego's income and assets, including goodwill, Allego has taken the position that it is not a PFIC for the taxable year of the Business Combination, but such position is not free from doubt. Allego's PFIC status for the current taxable year or any subsequent taxable year will not be determinable until after the end of each such taxable year, and Allego cannot assure you that it will not be a PFIC in the current taxable year or in any subsequent taxable year. If Allego were later determined to be a PFIC, you may be unable to make certain advantageous elections with respect to your ownership of Allego Securities that would mitigate the adverse consequences of Allego's PFIC status, or making such elections retroactively could have adverse tax consequences to you. Allego is not representing to you, and there can be no assurance, that Allego will not be treated as a PFIC for the taxable year of the Business Combination or in any subsequent taxable year. Allego has not sought and will not seek any rulings from the IRS or any opinion from any tax advisor as to such tax treatment. U.S. Holders should consult with, and rely solely upon, their tax advisors to determine the application of the PFIC rules to them and any resultant tax consequences.

Please see the section titled "*Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences — Passive Foreign Investment Company Ruleš*" for a more detailed discussion with respect to our potential PFIC status. U.S. Holders (as defined in "*Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences*") are urged to consult their tax advisors regarding the possible application of the PFIC rules to holders of our Ordinary Shares or Warrants.

THE OFFER AND CONSENT SOLICITATION

Participation in the Offer and Consent Solicitation involves a number of risks, including, but not limited to, the risks identified in the section entitled "Risk Factors." Warrant holders should carefully consider these risks and are urged to speak with their personal legal, financial, investment and/or tax advisor as necessary before deciding whether or not to participate in the Offer and Consent Solicitation. In addition, we strongly encourage you to read this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange in its entirety, and the information and documents that have been included herein, before making a decision regarding the Offer and Consent Solicitation.

General Terms

Until the Expiration Date, we are offering to holders of our Warrants the opportunity to receive 0.23 Ordinary Shares in exchange for each Warrant they hold. Holders of the Warrants tendered for exchange will not have to pay any of the exercise price for the tendered Warrants in order to receive Ordinary Shares pursuant to the Offer. Our obligation to complete the Offer is not conditioned on the receipt of a minimum number of tendered Warrants.

No fractional Ordinary Shares will be issued pursuant to the Offer. In lieu of issuing fractional Ordinary Shares, any holder of Warrants who would otherwise have been entitled to receive fractional Ordinary Shares pursuant to the Offer will, after aggregating all such fractional Ordinary Shares of such holder, receive one additional whole Ordinary Share in lieu of such fractional Ordinary Shares.

As part of the Offer, we are also soliciting from the holders of the Warrants their consent to the Warrant Amendment, which, if approved, will permit the Company to require that all Warrants outstanding upon completion of the Offer be converted into Ordinary Shares at a ratio of 0.207 Ordinary Shares per Warrant, which is a ratio 10% less than the exchange ratio applicable to the Offer. The Warrant Amendment will permit us to eliminate all of the Warrants that remain outstanding after the Offer is consummated. A copy of the Warrant Amendment is attached hereto as Annex A. We urge that you carefully read the Warrant Amendment in its entirety. Pursuant to the terms of the Warrant Agreement, the consent of holders of at least 50% of the number of the then outstanding Warrants is required to amend the Warrant Agreement.

Holders who tender Warrants for exchange in the Offer will automatically be deemed, without any further action, to have given their consent to approval of the Warrant Amendment (effective upon our acceptance of the tendered Warrants). You cannot tender any Warrants for exchange in the Offer without giving your consent to the Warrant Amendment. Thus, before deciding whether to tender any Warrants, you should be aware that a tender of Warrants may result in the approval of the Warrant Amendment.

The Offer and Consent Solicitation is subject to the terms and conditions contained in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange.

You may tender some or all of your Warrants into the Offer.

If you elect to tender Warrants in the Offer and Consent Solicitation, please follow the instructions in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange and the related documents.

If you tender Warrants, you may withdraw your tendered Warrants at any time before the Expiration Date and retain them on their current terms or amended terms if the Warrant Amendment is approved, by following the instructions herein. In addition, Warrants that are not accepted by us for exchange by September 22, 2023 may thereafter be withdrawn by you until such time as the Warrants are accepted by us for exchange.

Corporate Information

Allego was formed under the laws of the Netherlands in 2021 as a private limited liability company (besloten venootschap met beperkte aansprakelijkeid) and was converted into a public limited liability company

(*naamloze vennootschap*) on the closing of the Business Combination. The mailing address of Allego's registered office is Westervoortsedijk 73 KB, 6827 AV Arnhem, the Netherlands, and Allego's phone number is +31(0)88 033 3033. Allego's principal website address is www.allego.eu. We do not incorporate the information contained on, or accessible through, Allego's websites into this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange, and you should not consider it as a part of this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange.

Our Ordinary Shares and Warrants trade on NYSE under the symbols "ALLG" and "ALLG.WS" respectively.

Warrants Subject to the Offer

The Warrants were issued by Spartan and assumed by Allego in connection with the Business Combination. Each Warrant entitles the holder to purchase one Ordinary Share at a price of \$11.50 per share, subject to adjustment and are quoted on NYSE under the symbol "ALLG.WS."

As of August 21, 2023, a total of 13,799,948 Warrants were outstanding. Pursuant to the Offer, we are offering up to an aggregate of 3,173,989 Ordinary Shares in exchange for the Warrants, subject to adjustment for fractional Warrants as described below in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange.

Offer Period

The Offer and Consent Solicitation will expire on the Expiration Date, which is Midnight (end of day), Eastern Time, on September 22, 2023, or such later time and date to which we may extend. We expressly reserve the right, in our sole discretion, at any time or from time to time, to extend the period of time during which the Offer and Consent Solicitation is open. There can be no assurance that we will exercise our right to extend the Offer Period. During any extension, all Warrant holders who previously tendered Warrants will have a right to withdraw such previously tendered Warrants until the Expiration Date, as extended. If we extend the Offer Period, we will make a public announcement of such extension by no later than 9:00 a.m., Eastern Time, on the next business day following the Expiration Date as in effect immediately prior to such extension.

We may withdraw the Offer and Consent Solicitation only if the conditions to the Offer and Consent Solicitation are not satisfied or waived prior to the Expiration Date. Upon any such withdrawal, we are required by Rule 13e-4(f)(5) under the Exchange Act to promptly return the tendered Warrants. We will announce our decision to withdraw the Offer and Consent Solicitation by disseminating notice by public announcement or otherwise as permitted by applicable law.

At the expiration of the Offer Period, the current terms of the Warrants will continue to apply to any Warrants that are not exchanged, or the amended terms if the Warrant Amendment is approved, until the Warrants expire on March 16, 2027.

Amendments to the Offer and Consent Solicitation

We reserve the right at any time or from time to time, to amend the Offer and Consent Solicitation, including by increasing or (if the conditions to the Offer are not satisfied) decreasing the exchange ratio of Ordinary Shares issued for every Warrant exchanged or by changing the terms of the Warrant Amendment.

If we make a material change to the terms of the Offer and Consent Solicitation or the information concerning the Offer and Consent Solicitation, or if we waive a material condition of the Offer and Consent Solicitation, we will extend the Offer and Consent Solicitation to the extent required by Rules 13e-4(d)(2) and 13e-4(e)(3) under the Exchange Act. These rules require that the minimum period during which an offer must remain open after material changes to the terms of the offer or information concerning the offer, other than a change in price or a change in percentage of securities sought, will depend upon the facts and circumstances, including the relative materiality of the changed terms or information.

If we increase or decrease the exchange ratio of our Ordinary Shares issuable in exchange for a Warrant, the amount of Warrants sought for tender or the dealer manager's soliciting fee, and the Offer and Consent Solicitation is scheduled to expire at any time earlier than the end of the tenth business day from the date that we first publish, send or give notice of such an increase or decrease, then we will extend the Offer and Consent Solicitation until the expiration of that ten business day period.

Other material amendments to the Offer and Consent Solicitation may require us to extend the Offer and Consent Solicitation for a minimum of five business days.

Partial Exchange Permitted

Our obligation to complete the Offer is not conditioned on the receipt of a minimum number of tendered Warrants. If you choose to participate in the Offer, you may tender less than all of your Warrants pursuant to the terms of the Offer. No fractional Ordinary Shares will be issued pursuant to the Offer. In lieu of issuing fractional shares, any holder of Warrants who would otherwise have been entitled to receive fractional shares pursuant to the Offer will, after aggregating all such fractional shares of such holder, receive one additional whole Ordinary Share in lieu of such fractional shares.

Conditions to the Offer and Consent Solicitation

The Offer and Consent Solicitation are conditioned upon the following:

- the registration statement, of which this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange forms a part, shall have become effective under the Securities Act, and shall not be the subject of any stop order or proceeding seeking a stop order;
- no action or proceeding by any government or governmental, regulatory or administrative agency, authority or tribunal or any other person, domestic or foreign, shall have been threatened, instituted or pending before any court, authority, agency or tribunal that directly or indirectly challenges the making of the Offer, the tender of some or all of the Warrants pursuant to the Offer or otherwise relates in any manner to the Offer;
- there shall not have been any action threatened, instituted, pending or taken, or approval withheld, or any statute, rule, regulation, judgment, order or injunction threatened, proposed, sought, promulgated, enacted, entered, amended, enforced or deemed to be applicable to the Offer or Consent Solicitation or us, by any court or any authority, agency or tribunal that, in our reasonable judgment, would or might, directly or indirectly, (i) make the acceptance for exchange of, or exchange for, some or all of the Warrants illegal or otherwise restrict or prohibit completion of the Offer or Consent Solicitation, or (ii) delay or restrict our ability, or render us unable, to accept for exchange or exchange some or all of the Warrants; and
- there shall not have occurred (i) any general suspension of, or limitation on prices for, trading in securities in U.S. or Dutch securities or financial markets; (ii) a declaration of a banking moratorium or any suspension of payments in respect to banks in the United States or the Netherlands; (iii) any limitation (whether or not mandatory) by any government or governmental, regulatory or administrative authority, agency or instrumentality, domestic or foreign, or other event that, in our reasonable judgment, would or would be reasonably likely to affect the extension of credit by banks or other lending institutions; or (iv) a natural disaster, a potential renewed COVID-19 pandemic, an outbreak of a pandemic or contagious disease other than COVID-19, or a commencement or significant worsening of a war or armed hostilities or other national or international calamity, including but not limited to, catastrophic terrorist attacks against the Netherlands, the United States or their respective citizens.

The Consent Solicitation is conditioned on our receiving the consent of holders of at least 50% of the number of the then outstanding Warrants (which is the minimum number required to amend the Warrant Agreement).

We will not complete the Offer and Consent Solicitation unless and until the registration statement described above is effective. If the registration statement is not effective at the Expiration Date, we may, in our discretion, extend, suspend or cancel the Offer and Consent Solicitation, and will inform Warrant holders of such event. If we extend the Offer Period, we will make a public announcement of such extension and the new Expiration Date by no later than 9:00 a.m., Eastern Time, on the next business day following the Expiration Date as in effect immediately prior to such extension.

In addition, as to any Warrant holder, the Offer and Consent Solicitation is conditioned upon such Warrant holder desiring to tender Warrants in the Offer delivering to the exchange agent in a timely manner the holder's Warrants to be tendered and any other required paperwork, all in accordance with the applicable procedures described in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange.

The foregoing conditions are solely for our benefit, and we may assert one or more of the conditions regardless of the circumstances giving rise to any such conditions. We may also, in our sole and absolute discretion, waive these conditions in whole or in part, subject to the potential requirement to disseminate additional information and extend the Offer Period. The determination by us as to whether any condition has been satisfied shall be conclusive and binding on all parties. The failure by us at any time to exercise any of the foregoing rights shall not be deemed a waiver of any such right, and each such right shall be deemed a continuing right which may be asserted at any time and from time to time prior to the Expiration Date.

We may withdraw the Offer and Consent Solicitation only if the conditions of the Offer and Consent Solicitation are not satisfied or waived prior to the Expiration Date. Promptly upon any such withdrawal, we will return the tendered Warrants and the related consent to the Warrant Amendment will be revoked. We will announce our decision to withdraw the Offer and Consent Solicitation by disseminating notice by public announcement or otherwise as permitted by applicable law.

No Recommendation; Warrant Holder's Own Decision

None of our affiliates, directors, officers or employees, or the information agent, the exchange agent or the dealer manager for the Offer and Consent Solicitation, is making any recommendations to any Warrant holder as to whether to exchange their Warrants and deliver their consent to the Warrant Amendment. Each Warrant holder must make its own decision as to whether to tender Warrants for exchange pursuant to the Offer and consent to the amendment of the Warrant Agreement pursuant to the Consent Solicitation.

Procedure for Tendering Warrants for Exchange and Consenting to the Warrant Amendment

Issuance of Ordinary Shares upon exchange of Warrants pursuant to the Offer and acceptance by us of Warrants for exchange pursuant to the Offer and providing your consent to the Warrant Amendment will be made only if Warrants are properly tendered pursuant to the procedures described below. A tender of Warrants pursuant to such procedures, if and when accepted by us, will constitute a binding agreement between the tendering holder of Warrants and us upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Offer and Consent Solicitation. The proper tender of your Warrants will constitute a consent to the Warrant Amendment with respect to each Warrant tendered.

A tender of Warrants made pursuant to any method of delivery set forth herein will also constitute an agreement and acknowledgement by the tendering Warrant holder that, among other things: (i) the Warrant holder agrees to exchange the tendered Warrants on the terms and conditions set forth in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange, in each case as may be amended or supplemented prior to the Expiration Date; (ii) the Warrant holder consents to the Warrant Amendment; (iii) the Offer is discretionary and may be extended, modified, suspended or terminated by us as provided herein; (iv) such Warrant holder is voluntarily participating in the Offer; (v) the future value of our Warrants is unknown and cannot be predicted with certainty; and (vi) such Warrant holder has read this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange and Warrant Amendment.

Registered Holders of Warrants; Beneficial Owners of Warrants

For purposes of the tender procedures set forth below, the term "registered holder" means any person in whose name Warrants are registered on our books or who is listed as a participant in a clearing agency's security position listing with respect to the Warrants.

Persons whose Warrants are held through a direct or indirect participant of The Depository Trust Company (*DTC*), such as a broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other financial intermediary, are not considered registered holders of those Warrants but are "beneficial owners." Beneficial owners cannot directly tender Warrants for exchange pursuant to the Offer. Instead, a beneficial owner must instruct its broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other financial intermediary to tender Warrants for exchange on behalf of the beneficial owner. See "*Required Communications by Beneficial Owners*."

Required Communications by Beneficial Owners

Persons whose Warrants are held through a direct or indirect DTC participant, such as a broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other financial intermediary, are not considered registered holders of those Warrants, but are "beneficial owners," and must instruct the broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other financial intermediary to tender Warrants on their behalf.

Tendering Warrants Using Book-Entry Transfer

To participate in the Offer and Consent Solicitation, holders of Warrants must comply with DTC's Automated Tender Offer Program (ATOP') procedures described below.

In addition, either:

- the exchange agent must receive, prior to the Expiration Date a properly transmitted Agent's Message (as defined herein); or
- the exchange agent must receive, prior to the Expiration Date, as applicable, a timely confirmation of book-entry transfer of such Warrants into the exchange agent's account at DTC according to the procedure for book-entry transfer described below.

Tenders of Warrants pursuant to the procedures described above, and acceptance therefore by us, will constitute a binding agreement between the tendering holder and us upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Offer and Consent Solicitation, which agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of New York.

No documents should be sent to us, the dealer manager or the information agent. Delivery of an Agent's Message through ATOP is at the election and risk of the person delivering or transmitting, and delivery will be deemed made only when actually received by the exchange agent.

By tendering Warrants pursuant to the Offer, you will be deemed to have agreed that the delivery and surrender of the Warrants is not effective, and the risk of loss of the Warrants does not pass to the exchange agent, until receipt by the exchange agent of the items listed above together with all accompanying evidences of authority and any other required documents in form satisfactory to us. In all cases, you should allow sufficient time to assure delivery to the exchange agent at or prior to the Expiration Date.

By tendering Warrants pursuant to the Offer, you will also be deemed to have made the representations and warranties set forth herein, including that you have full power and authority to tender, sell, exchange, assign and transfer the Warrants tendered hereby, and that when such Warrants are accepted for exchange by us, we will acquire good title thereto, free and clear of all liens, restrictions, charges and encumbrances and not subject to any adverse claim or right. You will also be deemed to have agreed to, upon request, execute and deliver any additional documentation deemed by the exchange agent or by us to be necessary or desirable to complete the sale, assignment and transfer of the Warrants tendered hereby.

The exchange agent has established an account for the Warrants at DTC for purposes of the Offer and Consent Solicitation. Any financial institution that is a participant in DTC's system may make book-entry delivery of Warrants by causing DTC to transfer such Warrants into the exchange agent's account in accordance with ATOP. However, even though delivery of Warrants may be effected through book-entry transfer into the exchange agent's account at DTC, an "Agent's Message" as described in the next paragraph, and any other required documentation, must in any case also be transmitted to and received by the exchange agent at its address set forth in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange prior to the Expiration Date, or the guaranteed delivery procedures described under "*—Guaranteed Delivery Procedures*" must be followed.

DTC participants and holders of Warrants desiring to tender Warrants for exchange pursuant to the Offer must do so through ATOP. DTC will verify the acceptance and execute a book-entry delivery of the tendered Warrants to the exchange agent's account at DTC. DTC will then send an "Agent's Message" to the exchange agent for acceptance. Delivery of the Agent's Message by DTC will satisfy the terms of the Offer and Consent Solicitation as set forth in this document, and that we may enforce such agreement against such participant. The term "Agent's Message" means a message, transmitted by DTC to, and received by, the exchange agent and forming a part of a Book-Entry Confirmation, which states that DTC has received an express acknowledgment from the participant in DTC tendering the Warrants for exchange that such participant has received and agrees to be bound by the terms of the Offer and Consent Solicitation as set forth in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange, and that we may enforce such agreement against the participant.

Any Warrants duly tendered and delivered as described above shall be automatically cancelled upon the issuance of Ordinary Shares in exchange for such Warrants as part of the completion of the Offer.

Book-Entry Delivery Procedures for Tendering Warrants Held with DTC

To tender Warrants on your behalf by a nominee with DTC, you must:

- · inform your nominee of your interest in tendering your Warrants pursuant to the Offer and Consent Solicitation; and
- instruct your nominee to tender all Warrants you wish to be tendered in the Offer and Consent Solicitation into the exchange agent's account at DTC in accordance with DTC's procedure for transfer at or prior to the Expiration Date.

Any financial institution that is a nominee in DTC, including Euroclear and Clearstream, must tender Warrants by effecting a book-entry transfer of Warrants to be tendered in the Offer and Consent Solicitation into the account of the exchange agent at DTC by electronically transmitting its acceptance of such Offer and Consent Solicitation through the ATOP procedures for transfer. DTC will then verify the acceptance, execute a book-entry delivery to the exchange agent's Message to the exchange agent. An "Agent's Message" is a message, transmitted by DTC to, and received by, the exchange agent and forming part of a book-entry confirmation, which states that DTC has received an express acknowledgement from an organization that participates in DTC (a "*participant*"), tendering Warrants that the participant has received and that we may enforce the agreement against the participant. Delivery of documents to DTC does not constitute delivery to the exchange agent.

Guaranteed Delivery Procedures

If a registered holder of Warrants desires to tender its Warrants for exchange pursuant to the Offer, but (i) the procedure for book-entry transfer cannot be completed on a timely basis, or (ii) time will not permit all required documents to reach the exchange agent prior to the Expiration Date, the holder can still tender its Warrants if all the following conditions are met:

• the tender is made by or through an Eligible Institution;

- the exchange agent receives by hand, mail, overnight courier, facsimile or electronic mail transmission, prior to the Expiration Date, a properly completed and duly executed Notice of Guaranteed Delivery in the form we have provided with this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange, with signatures guaranteed by an Eligible Institution; and
- a confirmation of a book-entry transfer into the exchange agent's account at DTC of all Warrants delivered electronically (and an Agent's Message in accordance with ATOP) must be received by the exchange agent within two days that NYSE is open for trading after the date the exchange agent receives such Notice of Guaranteed Delivery.

In any case where the guaranteed delivery procedure is utilized for the tender of Warrants pursuant to the Offer, the issuance of Ordinary Shares for those Warrants tendered for exchange pursuant to the Offer and accepted pursuant to the Offer will be made only if the exchange agent has timely received the applicable foregoing items.

Timing and Manner of Deliveries

UNLESS THE GUARANTEED DELIVERY PROCEDURES DESCRIBED ABOVE ARE FOLLOWED, WARRANTS WILL BE PROPERLY TENDERED ONLY IF, BY THE EXPIRATION DATE, THE EXCHANGE AGENT RECEIVES SUCH WARRANTS BY BOOK-ENTRY TRANSFER, TOGETHER WITH A PROPERLY COMPLETED AGENT'S MESSAGE.

ALL DELIVERIES IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFER AND CONSENT SOLICITATION, INCLUDING THE TENDERED WARRANTS, MUST BE MADE TO THE EXCHANGE AGENT. NO DELIVERIES SHOULD BE MADE TO US. ANY DOCUMENTS DELIVERED TO US WILL NOT BE FORWARDED TO THE EXCHANGE AGENT AND THEREFORE WILL NOT BE DEEMED TO BE PROPERLY TENDERED. THE METHOD OF DELIVERY OF ALL REQUIRED DOCUMENTS IS AT THE OPTION AND RISK OF THE TENDERING WARRANT HOLDERS. IF DELIVERY IS BY MAIL, WE RECOMMEND REGISTERED MAIL WITH RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED (PROPERLY INSURED). IN ALL CASES, SUFFICIENT TIME SHOULD BE ALLOWED TO ENSURE TIMELY DELIVERY.

Determination of Validity

All questions as to the form of documents and the validity, eligibility (including time of receipt) and acceptance for exchange of any tender of Warrants will be determined by us, in our sole discretion, and our determination will be final and binding. We reserve the absolute right to reject any or all tenders of Warrants that we determine are not in proper form or reject tenders of Warrants that may, in the opinion of our counsel, be unlawful. We also reserve the absolute right to waive any defect or irregularity in any tender of any particular Warrant, whether or not similar defects or irregularities are waived in the case of other tendered Warrants. Neither we nor any other person will be under any duty to give notice of any defect or irregularity in tenders, nor shall any of us or them incur any liability for failure to give any such notice.

Fees and Commissions

Tendering Warrant holders who tender Warrants directly to the exchange agent will not be obligated to pay any charges or expenses of the exchange agent, the dealer manager or any brokerage commissions. Beneficial owners who hold Warrants through a broker or bank should consult that institution as to whether or not such institution will charge the owner any service fees in connection with tendering Warrants on behalf of the owner pursuant to the Offer and Consent Solicitation.

Table of Contents

Transfer Taxes

We will pay all transfer taxes, if any, applicable to the transfer of Warrants to us in the Offer. If transfer taxes are imposed for any other reason, the amount of those transfer taxes, whether imposed on the registered holder or any other persons, will be payable by the tendering holder.

Withdrawal Rights

By tendering Warrants for exchange, a holder will be deemed to have validly delivered its consent to the Warrant Amendment. Tenders of Warrants made pursuant to the Offer may be withdrawn at any time prior to the Expiration Date. Consents to the Warrant Amendment in connection with the Consent Solicitation may be revoked at any time before the Expiration Date by withdrawing the tender of your Warrants. A valid withdrawal of tendered Warrants before the Expiration Date will be deemed to be a concurrent revocation of the related consent to the Warrant Amendment. Tenders of Warrants and consent to the Warrant Amendment may not be withdrawn after the Expiration Date. If the Offer Period is extended, you may withdraw your tendered Warrants that are not accepted by us for exchange by September 22, 2023 may thereafter be withdrawn by you until such time as the Warrants are accepted by us for exchange.

To be effective, a written notice of withdrawal must be timely received by the exchange agent at its address identified in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange. Any notice of withdrawal must specify the name of the person who tendered the Warrants for which tenders are to be withdrawn and the number of Warrants to be withdrawn. If the Warrants to be withdrawn have been delivered to the exchange agent, a signed notice of withdrawal must be submitted prior to release of such Warrants. In addition, such notice must specify the name of the registered holder (if different from that of the tendering Warrant holder). A withdrawal may not be cancelled, and Warrants for which tenders are withdrawn may be tendered again by following one of the procedures described above in the section entitled "*—Procedure for Tendering Warrants for Exchange and Consenting to the Warrant Amendment*" at any time prior to the Expiration Date.

A beneficial owner of Warrants desiring to withdraw tendered Warrants previously delivered through DTC should contact the DTC participant through which such owner holds its Warrants. In order to withdraw Warrants previously tendered, a DTC participant may, prior to the Expiration Date, withdraw its instruction by (i) withdrawing its acceptance through DTC's Participant Tender Offer Program ("*PTOP*") function, or (ii) delivering to the exchange agent by mail, hand delivery or facsimile transmission, notice of withdrawal of such instruction. The notice of withdrawal must contain the name and number of the DTC participant. A withdrawal of an instruction must be executed by a DTC participant as such DTC participant's name appears on its transmission through the PTOP function to which such withdrawal relates. If the tender being withdrawn was made through ATOP, it may only be withdrawal complies with the provisions described in this paragraph.

A holder who tendered its Warrants other than through DTC should send written notice of withdrawal to the exchange agent specifying the name of the Warrant holder who tendered the Warrants being withdrawa. Withdrawal of a prior Warrant tender will be effective upon receipt of the notice of withdrawal by the exchange agent. Selection of the method of notification is at the risk of the Warrant holder, and notice of withdrawal must be timely received by the exchange agent.

All questions as to the form and validity (including time of receipt) of any notice of withdrawal will be determined by us, in our sole discretion, which determination shall be final and binding. Neither we nor any other person will be under any duty to give notification of any defect or irregularity in any notice of withdrawal or incur any liability for failure to give any such notification.

Acceptance for Issuance of Shares

Upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Offer and Consent Solicitation, we will accept for exchange Warrants validly tendered until the Expiration Date, which is Midnight (end of day), Eastern Time, on September 22, 2023, or such later time and date to which we may extend. Our Ordinary Shares to be issued upon exchange of Warrants pursuant to the Offer, along with written notice from the exchange agent confirming the balance of any Warrants not exchanged, will be delivered promptly following the Expiration Date. In all cases, Warrants will only be accepted for exchange pursuant to the Offer after timely receipt by the exchange agent of book-entry delivery of the tendered Warrants (and an Agent's Message in accordance with ATOP).

For purposes of the Offer and Consent Solicitation, we will be deemed to have accepted for exchange Warrants that are validly tendered and for which tenders are not withdrawn, unless we give written notice to the Warrant holder of our non-acceptance.

Announcement of Results of the Offer and Consent Solicitation

We will announce the final results of the Offer and Consent Solicitation, including whether all of the conditions to the Offer and Consent Solicitation have been satisfied or waived and whether we will accept the tendered Warrants for exchange, as promptly as practicable following the end of the Offer Period. The announcement will be made by a press release and by amendment to the Schedule TO we will file with the SEC in connection with the Offer and Consent Solicitation.

Background and Purpose of the Offer and Consent Solicitation

Our Board approved the Offer and Consent Solicitation on August 24, 2023. The purpose of the Offer and Consent Solicitation is to attempt to simplify our capital structure and reduce the potentially dilutive impact of the Warrants, thereby providing us with more flexibility for financing our operations in the future. The Warrants that are tendered for exchange pursuant to the Offer will be retired and cancelled automatically upon the issuance of Ordinary Shares in exchange for such Warrants pursuant to the Offer.

Agreements, Regulatory Requirements and Legal Proceedings

There are no present or proposed agreements, arrangements, understandings or relationships between us, and any of our directors, executive officers, affiliates or any other person relating, directly or indirectly, to the Offer and Consent Solicitation or to our securities that are the subject of the Offer and Consent Solicitation.

Except for the requirements of applicable federal and state securities laws, we know of no federal or state regulatory requirements to be complied with or federal or state regulatory approvals to be obtained by us in connection with the Offer and Consent Solicitation. There are no antitrust laws applicable to the Offer and Consent Solicitation. The margin requirements under Section 7 of the Exchange Act, and the related regulations thereunder, are inapplicable to the Offer and Consent Solicitation.

There are no pending legal proceedings relating to the Offer and Consent Solicitation.

Interests of Directors, Executive Officers and Others

Neither we nor any of our directors, executive officers or affiliates beneficially own any of the Warrants.

MARKET INFORMATION, DIVIDENDS AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

Market Information of Ordinary Shares and Warrants

Our Ordinary Shares and Warrants are listed on NYSE under the symbols "ALLG" and "ALLG.WS," respectively. As of August 21, 2023, a total of 13,799,948 Warrants were outstanding.

As of August 21, 2023, there were approximately 12 holders of record of our Ordinary Shares and one holder of record of our Warrants. Such numbers do not include DTC participants or beneficial owners holding shares through nominee names.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sales prices per share of our Ordinary Shares and Warrants as reported on the NYSE for periods subsequent to March 16, 2022 and of the common stock and warrants of Spartan for periods prior to March 16, 2022:

Quarter Ended	Low Sales Price of Ordinary Shares		High Sales Price of Ordinary Shares	Low Sales Price of Warrants		High Sales Price of Warrants	
June 30, 2023	\$	1.85	\$3.88	\$	0.13	\$	0.29
March 31, 2023	\$	2.17	\$4.89	\$	0.10	\$	0.34
December 31, 2022	\$	2.33	\$5.06	\$	0.10	\$	0.51
September 30, 2022	\$	3.35	\$6.59	\$	0.31	\$	0.61
June 30, 2022	\$	5.01	\$15.95	\$	0.45	\$	1.25
March 31, 2022	\$	5.66	\$28.44	\$	0.63	\$	1.85
December 31, 2021	\$	9.85	\$10.00	\$	0.98	\$	1.80
September 30, 2021	\$	9.67	\$9.93	\$	0.95	\$	1.49
June 30, 2021	\$	9.71	\$10.00	\$	0.86	\$	1.41

Dividends

Allego has never paid or declared any cash dividends in the past, and Allego does not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Allego intends to retain all available funds and any future earnings to fund the further development and expansion of its business. Under Dutch law, Allego may only pay dividends and other distributions from its reserves to the extent its shareholders' equity (*eigen vermogen*) exceeds the sum of its paid-in and called-up share capital plus the reserves Allego must maintain under Dutch law or the Articles and (if it concerns a distribution of profits) after adoption of Allego's statutory annual accounts by the General Meeting from which it appears that such dividend distribution is allowed. Subject to those restrictions, any future determination to pay dividends or other distributions from its reserves will be at the discretion of the Board and will depend upon a number of factors, including Allego's results of operations, financial condition, future prospects, contractual restrictions, restrictions imposed by applicable law and other factors Allego deems relevant.

Under the Articles, the Board may decide that all or part of the profits shown in Allego's adopted statutory annual accounts will be added to Allego's reserves. After reservation of any such profits, any remaining profits will be at the disposal of the General Meeting at the proposal of the Board for distribution on the Ordinary Shares, subject to applicable restrictions of Dutch law. The Board is permitted, subject to certain requirements and applicable restrictions of Dutch law, to declare interim dividends without the approval of the General Meeting. Dividends and other distributions shall be made payable no later than a date determined by the Board. Claims to dividends and other distributions not made within five years from the date that such dividends or distributions became payable will lapse and any such amounts will be considered to have been forfeited to Allego (*verjaring*).

Allego may reclaim any distributions, whether interim or not interim, made in contravention of certain restrictions of Dutch law from shareholders that knew or should have known that such distribution was not

permissible. In addition, on the basis of Dutch case law, if after a distribution Allego is not able to pay its due and collectable debts, then its shareholders or directors who at the time of the distribution knew or reasonably should have foreseen that result may be liable to Allego's creditors. Allego has never declared or paid any cash dividends and Allego has no plan to declare or pay any dividends in the foreseeable future on Ordinary Shares. Allego currently intends to retain any earnings for future operations and expansion.

Since Allego is a holding company, its ability to pay dividends will be dependent upon the financial condition, liquidity and results of operations of, and Allego's receipt of dividends, loans or other funds from, its subsidiaries. Allego's subsidiaries are separate and distinct legal entities and have no obligation to make funds available to Allego. In addition, there are various statutory, regulatory and contractual limitations and business considerations on the extent, if any, to which Allego's subsidiaries may pay dividends, make loans or otherwise provide funds to Allego.

Source and Amount of Funds

To comply with the Dutch law requirement that Ordinary Shares issuable upon completion of this Offer are fully paid for, the par value per Ordinary Share will be charged against our share premium reserve recognized for Dutch tax purposes upon such issuance. Consequently, and because this transaction is an offer to holders to exchange their existing Warrants for our Ordinary Shares, there is no other source of funds or other cash consideration being paid by us to, or to us from, those tendering Warrant holders pursuant to the Offer. We estimate that the total amount of cash required to complete the transactions contemplated by the Offer and Consent Solicitation, including the payment of any fees, expenses and other related amounts incurred in connection with the transactions will be approximately \$1,750,000. We expect to have sufficient funds to complete the transactions contemplated by the Offer and Consent Solicitation and to pay fees, expenses and other related amounts from our cash on hand.

Exchange Agent

Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, has been appointed the exchange agent for the Offer and Consent Solicitation. All correspondence in connection with the Offer should be sent or delivered by each holder of the Warrants, or a beneficial owner's custodian bank, depositary, broker, trust company or other nominee, to the exchange agent at the address and telephone numbers set forth on the back cover page of this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange. We will pay the exchange agent reasonable and customary fees for its services and will reimburse it for its reasonable, out-of-pocket expenses in connection therewith.

Information Agent

D.F. King & Co., Inc. has been appointed as the information agent for the Offer and Consent Solicitation, and will receive customary compensation for its services. Questions concerning tender procedures and requests for additional copies of this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange should be directed to the information agent at the address and telephone numbers set forth on the back cover page of this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange.

Dealer Manager

We have retained BofA Securities, Inc. to act as dealer manager in connection with the Offer and Consent Solicitation and will pay the dealer manager a customary fee as compensation for its services. We will also reimburse the dealer manager for certain expenses. The obligations of the dealer manager to perform this function are subject to certain conditions. We have agreed to indemnify the dealer manager against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the federal securities laws. Questions about the terms of the Offer or Consent Solicitation may be directed to the dealer manager at its address and telephone number set forth on the back cover page of this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange.

The dealer manager and its affiliates are full service financial institutions engaged in various activities, which may include sales and trading, commercial and investment banking, advisory, investment management, investment research, principal investment, hedging, market making, brokerage and other financial and non-financial activities and services. The dealer manager and its affiliates have provided, and may in the future provide, a variety of these services to us and to persons and entities with relationships with us, for which they have received or will receive customary fees and expenses.

In the ordinary course of their various business activities, the dealer manager and its affiliates, officers, directors and employees may purchase, sell or hold a broad array of investments and actively traded securities, derivatives, loans, commodities, currencies, credit default swaps and other financial instruments for their own account and for the accounts of their customers, and such investment and trading activities may involve or relate to assets, securities and/or instruments of us (directly, as collateral securing other obligations or otherwise) and/or persons and entities with relationships with us. The dealer manager and its affiliates may also communicate independent investment recommendations, market color or trading ideas and/or publish or express independent research views in respect of such assets, securities or instruments and may at any time hold, or recommend to clients that they should acquire, long and/or positions in such assets, securities and instruments. In the ordinary course of its business, the dealer manager or its affiliates may at any time hold long or short positions, and may trade for their own accounts or the accounts of customers, in securities of the Company, including Warrants, and, to the extent that the dealer manager or its affiliates own Warrants during the Offer and Consent Solicitation, they may tender such Warrants under the terms of the Offer and Consent Solicitation.

Fees and Expenses

The expenses of soliciting tenders of the Warrants and the Consent Solicitation will be borne by us. The principal solicitations are being made by mail; however, additional solicitations may be made by facsimile transmission, telephone or in person by the dealer manager and the information agent, as well as by our officers and other employees and affiliates.

You will not be required to pay any fees or commissions to us, the dealer manager, the exchange agent or the information agent in connection with the Offer and Consent Solicitation. If your Warrants are held through a broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other nominee that tenders your Warrants on your behalf, your broker or other nominee may charge you a commission or service fee for doing so. You should consult your broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other nominee to determine whether any charges will apply.

Transactions and Agreements Concerning Our Securities

Other than as set forth below and (i) in the section of this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange entitled 'Description of Share Capital and Articles of Association'' and (ii) as set forth in the Articles, there are no agreements, arrangements or understandings between the Company, or any of our directors or executive officers, and any other person with respect to our securities that are the subject of the Offer and Consent Solicitation.

Neither we, nor any of our directors, executive officers or controlling persons, or any executive officers, directors, managers or partners of any of our controlling persons, has engaged in any transactions in our Warrants in the last 60 days.

Tender and Support Agreement

Parties representing approximately 30.4% of the outstanding Warrants have agreed to tender their Warrants in the Offer and consent to the Warrant Amendment in the Consent Solicitation pursuant to the Tender and Support Agreement.

Therefore, if holders of an additional approximately 19.6% of the outstanding Warrants consent to the Warrant Amendment in the Consent Solicitation, and the other conditions described herein are satisfied or waived, then the Warrant Amendment will be adopted with respect to the Warrants.

Registration Under the Exchange Act

The Warrants currently are registered under the Exchange Act. This registration may be terminated upon application by us to the SEC if there are fewer than 300 record holders of the Warrants. We currently do not intend to terminate the registration of the Warrants, if any, that remain outstanding after completion of the Offer and Consent Solicitation. Notwithstanding any termination of the registration of our Warrants, we will continue to be subject to the reporting requirements under the Exchange Act as a result of the continuing registration of our Ordinary Shares.

Accounting Treatment

The Warrants will be remeasured to fair value through profit and loss upon the exchange. We will account for the exchange of Warrants as a settlement of the related warrants liability and an issuance of Ordinary Shares without further consideration received. The fair value of the Warrants exchanged will be recorded as a debit to warrants liability, the par value of each Ordinary Share issued in the Offer will be recorded as a credit to share capital, and the difference between the fair value of the Warrants and the par value of Ordinary Shares will be recorded as a credit to share premium. Furthermore, the difference between the fair value of the Ordinary Shares issued and the fair value of the Warrants exchanged will be recognized through profit and loss. The Offer will not modify the current accounting treatment for the Warrants that are not exchanged.

Absence of Appraisal or Dissenters' Rights

Holders of the Warrants do not have any appraisal or dissenters' rights under applicable law in connection with the Offer and Consent Solicitation.

SELLING RESTRICTIONS

Notice to Prospective Investors in the European Economic Area

In relation to each Member State of the European Economic Area (each a "*Relevant State*"), no Ordinary Shares have been offered or will be offered to the public in that Relevant State in connection with this offering prior to the publication of a prospectus in relation to the shares that has been approved by the competent authority in that Relevant State or, where appropriate, approved by the competent authority in another Relevant State and notified to the competent authority in that Relevant State, all in accordance with Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 (the "*Prospectus Regulation*"), except that offers of Ordinary Shares may be made to the public in that Relevant State at any time under the following exemptions under the Prospectus Regulation:

- to any legal entity which is a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Regulation;
- to fewer than 150 natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined in the Prospectus Regulation), subject to obtaining the
 prior consent of the representative of the dealer manager for any such offer; or
- in any other circumstances falling within Article 1(4) of the Prospectus Regulation,

provided that no such offer of Ordinary Shares shall require us or any representative of the dealer manager to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Regulation or supplement a prospectus pursuant to Article 23 of the Prospectus Regulation. Neither we nor the representative of the dealer manager have authorized, nor do they authorize, the making of any offer of Ordinary Shares in circumstances in which an obligation arises for us or the dealer manager to publish a prospectus for such offer pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Regulation or supplement a prospectus pursuant to Article 23 of the Prospectus Regulation.

Each person in a Relevant State who initially acquires any shares or to whom any offer is made will be deemed to have represented, acknowledged and agreed to and with our Company and the representative of the dealer manager that it is a qualified investor within the meaning of the Prospectus Regulation.

In the case of any Ordinary Shares being offered to a financial intermediary as that term is used in Article 5(1) of the Prospectus Regulation, each such financial intermediary will be deemed to have represented, acknowledged and agreed to and with our Company and the representative of the dealer manager that the Ordinary Shares acquired by it in the Offer have not been acquired on a non-discretionary basis on behalf of, nor have they been acquired with a view to their offer or resale to, persons in circumstances which may give rise to an offer of Ordinary Shares to the public other than their offer or resale in a Relevant State to qualified investors within the meaning of the Prospectus Regulation, in circumstances in which the prior consent of the representative of the dealer manager has been obtained to each such proposed offer or resale.

We, the representative of the dealer manager and our and its respective affiliates will rely upon the truth and accuracy of the foregoing representations, acknowledgements and agreements.

For the purposes of this selling restriction, the expression an "offer to the public" in relation to any Ordinary Shares in any Relevant State means the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of the Offer and any Ordinary Shares to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe for any Ordinary Shares.

MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following discussion is a summary of material U.S. federal income tax considerations for U.S. Holders (as defined below) of the receipt of Ordinary Shares in exchange for Warrants pursuant to the Offer, of the Warrant Amendment of Warrants not exchanged for Ordinary Shares in the Offer and of the ownership and disposition of our Ordinary Shares received in exchange for Warrants pursuant to the Offer. This section applies only to U.S. Holders that hold their Warrants and, upon the exchange of the Warrants pursuant to the Offer, Ordinary Shares as "capital assets" for U.S. federal income tax purposes (generally, property held for investment).

This discussion is included for general informational purposes only, does not purport to consider all aspects of U.S. federal income taxation that might be relevant to a Holder, and does not constitute, and is not, a tax opinion for or tax advice to any particular U.S. Holder. This discussion is limited to U.S. federal income tax considerations and does not address estate or any gift tax considerations or considerations arising under the tax laws of any state, local or non-U.S. jurisdiction. This discussion does not describe all of the U.S. federal income tax consequences that may be relevant to you in light of your particular circumstances, including the alternative minimum tax, the Medicare tax on certain investment income and the different consequences that may apply to U.S. Holders that are subject to special rules under U.S. federal income tax law that apply to certain types of investors, such as:

- financial institutions or financial services entities;
- broker-dealers;
- taxpayers that are subject to the mark-to-market accounting rules with respect to our Ordinary Shares or Warrants;
- persons required to accelerate the recognition of any item of gross income with respect to our Ordinary Shares or Warrants as a result of such income being recognized on an applicable financial statement;
- tax-exempt entities;
- governments or agencies or instrumentalities thereof;
- insurance companies;
- mutual funds;
- pension plans;
- individual retirement accounts or other tax-deferred accounts;
- regulated investment companies or real estate investment trusts;
- partnerships (including entities or arrangements treated as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes);
- U.S. expatriates or former long-term residents of the United States;
- persons that directly, indirectly or constructively own ten percent or more (by vote or value) of our capital stock;
- S corporations;
- trusts and estates;
- persons that acquired their Warrants pursuant to an exercise of employee share options, in connection with employee share incentive plans or otherwise as compensation;
- persons that hold Ordinary Shares or Warrants as part of a straddle, constructive sale, constructive ownership transaction, hedging, wash sale, synthetic security, conversion or other integrated or similar transaction;
- U.S. Holders whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar; or
- "controlled foreign corporations," "passive foreign investment companies" or corporations that accumulate earnings to avoid U.S. federal income tax.

If a partnership (or any entity or arrangement treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes) holds our Warrants or Ordinary Shares received in exchange for the Warrants in the Offer, the tax treatment of such partnership and a person treated as a partner of such partnership will generally depend on the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership. Partnerships holding our Warrants or Ordinary Shares received in exchange for the Warrants in the Offer and persons that are treated as partners of such partnerships should consult their tax advisors as to the particular U.S. federal income tax consequences to them.

This discussion is based on the Code, proposed, temporary and final Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder, and judicial and administrative interpretations thereof, all as of the date hereof. All of the foregoing is subject to change, which change could apply retroactively and could affect the tax considerations described herein.

We have not sought, and do not intend to seek, any rulings from the IRS as to any U.S. federal income tax considerations described herein. There can be no assurance that the IRS will not take positions inconsistent with the considerations discussed below or that any such positions would not be sustained by a court.

THIS DISCUSSION IS ONLY A SUMMARY OF CERTAIN U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS APPLICABLE TO U.S. HOLDERS OF OUR WARRANTS AND OF ORDINARY SHARES RECEIVED IN EXCHANGE FOR THE WARRANTS IN THE OFFER. EACH HOLDER SHOULD CONSULT ITS OWN TAX ADVISOR WITH RESPECT TO THE PARTICULAR TAX CONSEQUENCES TO SUCH HOLDER OF THE FOREGOING, INCLUDING THE APPLICABILITY AND EFFECTS OF U.S. FEDERAL NON-INCOME, STATE AND LOCAL AND NON-U.S. TAX LAWS.

As used herein, a "U.S. Holder" is a beneficial owner of a Warrant or an Ordinary Share who or that is, for U.S. federal income tax purposes:

- an individual who is a citizen or resident of the United States;
- a corporation (or other entity that is treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes) that is created or organized (or treated as created or organized) in or under the laws of the United States or any state thereof or the District of Columbia;
- an estate whose income is subject to U.S. federal income tax regardless of its source; or
- a trust if (1) a U.S. court can exercise primary supervision over the administration of such trust and one or more United States persons have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust or (2) it has a valid election in place to be treated as a United States person.

Exchange of Warrants for our Ordinary Shares

For a U.S. Holder of Warrants who participates in the Offer, we intend to treat such U.S. Holder's exchange of Warrants for Ordinary Shares in the Offer as a "recapitalization" within the meaning of Section 368(a)(1)(E) of the Code pursuant to which, subject to the PFIC rules below, (i) such U.S. Holder should not recognize any gain or loss on the exchange of Warrants for Ordinary Shares, (ii) such U.S. Holder's aggregate tax basis in the Ordinary Shares received in the exchange should equal the U.S. Holder's aggregate tax basis in the Warrants surrendered in the exchange and (iii) such U.S. Holder's holding period for the Ordinary Shares received in the exchange should include the U.S. Holder's holding period for the surrendered Warrants. Special tax basis and holding period rules apply to U.S. Holders that acquired different blocks of Warrants at different prices or at different times. U.S. Holder's should consult their tax advisors as to the applicability of these special rules to their

particular circumstances. Because there is a lack of direct legal authority regarding the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the exchange of Warrants for Ordinary Shares, there can be no assurance in this regard. Alternative characterizations by the IRS or a court are possible, including ones that would require U.S. Holders to recognize taxable income. If our treatment of the exchange of Warrants for Ordinary Shares were successfully challenged by the IRS and such exchange were not treated as a recapitalization for United States federal income tax purposes, exchanging U.S. Holders may be subject to taxation in a manner analogous to the rules applicable to dispositions of Ordinary Shares described below under "*—Gain or Loss on Sale, Taxable Exchange or Other Taxable Disposition of our Ordinary Shares.*"

Although we believe the exchange of Warrants for Ordinary Shares pursuant to the Offer is avalue-for-value transaction, because of the uncertainty inherent in any valuation, there can be no assurance that the IRS or a court would agree. If the IRS or a court were to view the exchange pursuant to the Offer as the issuance of Ordinary Shares to an exchanging Holder having a value in excess of the Warrants surrendered by such Holder, such excess value could be viewed as a constructive dividend or a fee received in consideration for consenting to the Warrant Amendment (which fee may be taxable as ordinary income to the U.S. Holder).

If we are or have been treated as a PFIC, as discussed below under "*—Passive Foreign Investment Company Rules*," under certain proposed Treasury regulations, any gain realized on the exchange of Warrants for Ordinary Shares pursuant to the Offer might be subject to certain special and adverse rules requiring recognition even though the exchange pursuant to the Offer may otherwise qualify as a nonrecognition transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Losses would not be recognized. U.S. Holders are urged to consult with their tax advisors regarding the treatment of the Offer if we are or have been treated as a PFIC.

If a U.S. Holder exchanges Warrants for Ordinary Shares pursuant to the Offer, and if the U.S. Holder holds five percent or more of Ordinary Shares prior to the exchange, or if the U.S. Holder holds Warrants and other securities of ours prior to the exchange with a tax basis of \$1 million or more, such U.S. Holder will be required to file with its U.S. federal income tax return for the year in which the exchange occurs a statement setting forth certain information relating to the exchange (including the fair market value, prior to the exchange, of the Warrants transferred in the exchange and the U.S. Holder's tax basis, prior to the exchange, in Ordinary Shares or other securities), and to maintain permanent records containing such information.

Warrants not exchanged for our Ordinary Shares if the Warrant Amendment is approved

Although not free from doubt, if the Warrant Amendment is approved, we intend to treat all Warrants not exchanged for Ordinary Shares in the Offer as having been exchanged for "new" Warrants pursuant to the Warrant Amendment and to treat such deemed exchange as a "recapitalization" within the meaning of Section 368(a)(1)(E) of the Code, pursuant to which (i) a U.S. Holder of such Warrants should not recognize any gain or loss on the deemed exchange of Warrants for "new" Warrants, (ii) such U.S. Holder's aggregate tax basis in the "new" Warrants deemed to be received in the exchange should equal the U.S. Holder's aggregate tax basis in the "new" Warrants deemed to be received in the exchange should include the U.S. Holder's holding period for the "new" Warrants deemed to be received in the exchange should include the U.S. Holder's holding period for the Warrants deemed surrendered. Special tax basis and holding period rules apply to holders that acquired different blocks of Warrants at different prices or at different times. U.S. Holders should consult their tax advisor as to the applicability of these special rules to their particular circumstances.

Because there is a lack of direct legal authority regarding the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the deemed exchange of Warrants for "new" Warrants pursuant to the Warrant Amendment, there can be no assurance in this regard and alternative characterizations by the IRS or a court are possible, including ones that would require U.S. Holders to recognize taxable income. If our treatment of the deemed exchange of Warrants for "new" Warrants pursuant to the Warrant Amendment were successfully challenged by the IRS and such exchange were not treated as a recapitalization for United States federal income tax purposes, exchanging U.S. Holders may be subject to taxation in a manner analogous to the rules applicable to dispositions of Ordinary

Shares described below under "-Gain or Loss on Sale, Taxable Exchange or Other Taxable Disposition of our Ordinary Shares"

If we are or have been treated as a PFIC as discussed below under "*Passive Foreign Investment Company Rules*," under certain proposed Treasury regulations, any gain realized on the deemed exchange of Warrants for "new" Warrants pursuant to the Warrant Amendment might be subject to certain special and adverse rules requiring recognition even though the deemed exchange pursuant to the Warrant Amendment may otherwise qualify as a nonrecognition transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Losses would not be recognized. U.S. Holders are urged to consult with their tax advisors regarding the treatment of the Warrant Amendment if we were characterized as a PFIC.

Warrants not exchanged for our Ordinary Shares if the Warrant Amendment is not approved

If the Warrant Amendment is not approved, a U.S. Holder should not have any U.S. federal income tax consequences from the Offer with respect to Warrants that are not exchanged for our Ordinary Shares pursuant to the Offer.

Dividends and Other Distributions on our Ordinary Shares

As described in "Market Information, Dividends and Related Shareholder Matters-Dividends," we do not anticipate making distributions to U.S. Holders of Ordinary Shares at this time. Subject to the PFIC rules discussed below under the heading "-Passive Foreign Investment Company Rules," distributions on our Ordinary Shares will generally be taxable as a dividend for U.S. federal income tax purposes to the extent paid from our current or accumulated earnings and profits, as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles. Distributions in excess of our current and accumulated earnings and profits will constitute a return of capital that will be applied against and reduce (but not below zero) the U.S. Holder's adjusted tax basis in its Ordinary Shares. Any remaining excess will be treated as gain realized on the sale or other disposition of the Ordinary Shares and will be treated as described below under the heading "-Gain or Loss on Sale, Taxable Exchange or Other Taxable Disposition of our Ordinary Shares" Because we do not calculate our earnings and profits under U.S. federal income tax principles, a U.S. Holder should expect all cash distributions to be reported as dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes. The amount of any such distribution will include any amounts withheld by us (or another applicable withholding agent). Amounts treated as dividends that we pay to a U.S. Holder that is a taxable corporation generally will be taxed at regular tax rates and will not qualify for the dividends received deduction generally allowed to domestic corporations in respect of dividends received from other domestic corporations. With respect to non-corporate U.S. Holders, under tax laws currently in effect and subject to certain exceptions (including, but not limited to, dividends treated as investment income for purposes of investment interest deduction limitations), dividends generally will be taxed at the lower applicable long-term capital gains rate only if our Ordinary Shares are readily tradable on an established securities market in the United States or we are eligible for benefits under an applicable tax treaty with the United States, and, in each case, we are not treated as a PFIC with respect to such U.S. Holder at the time the dividend was paid or in the preceding year and provided certain holding period requirements are met. U.S. Holders should consult their tax advisors regarding the availability of the lower rate for dividends paid with respect to our Ordinary Shares.

The amount of any dividend distribution, if any, paid in foreign currency will be the U.S. dollar amount calculated by reference to the applicable exchange rate in effect on the date of actual or constructive receipt, regardless of whether the payment is in fact converted into U.S. dollars at that time. A U.S. Holder may have foreign currency gain or loss if the dividend is converted into U.S. dollars after the date of receipt.

Amounts taxable as dividends generally will include amounts, if any, withheld as described below under *Material Dutch Income Tax Considerations*" and generally be treated as income from sources outside the U.S. and will, depending on the circumstances of the U.S. Holder, generally be "passive" category income which is treated separately from other types of income for purposes of computing the foreign tax credit allowable to such

U.S. Holder. Additionally, the rules governing the treatment of foreign taxes imposed on a U.S. Holder and foreign tax credits are complex and the United States Treasury recently issued additional regulations imposing further restrictions on the use of foreign tax credits. Accordingly, U.S. Holders should consult their tax advisors about the impact of these rules in their particular situations.

Gain or Loss on Sale, Taxable Exchange or Other Taxable Disposition of our Ordinary Shares

Subject to the PFIC rules discussed below under the heading "*—Passive Foreign Investment Company Rules*," upon any sale, exchange or other taxable disposition of our Ordinary Shares, a U.S. Holder generally will recognize gain or loss in an amount equal to the difference between (i) the sum of (x) the amount of cash and (y) the fair market value of any other property received in such sale, exchange or other taxable disposition and (ii) the U.S. Holder's adjusted tax basis in such Ordinary Shares, in each case as calculated in U.S. dollars. Any such gain or loss generally will be capital gain or loss and will be long-term capital gain or loss if the U.S. Holder's holding period for such Ordinary Shares exceeds one year. Long-term capital gain realized by a non-corporate U.S. Holder generally will be taxable at a reduced rate. The deduction of capital losses is subject to limitations. The gain or loss will generally be U.S.-source gain or loss for foreign tax credit purposes.

Passive Foreign Investment Company Rules

The treatment of U.S. Holders of our Ordinary Shares received in exchange for Warrants pursuant to the Offer could be materially different from that described above if we are treated as a passive foreign investment company ("*PFIC*") for U.S. federal income tax purposes. U.S. Holders are urged to consult with their tax advisors regarding the treatment of the Offer and our Ordinary Shares received in exchange for Warrants pursuant to the Offer if we were characterized as a PFIC.

A non-U.S. corporation generally will be a PFIC for any taxable year if either (i) at least 75% of its gross income is passive income or (ii) at least 50% of its assets (determined based on a quarterly average) are held for the production of, or produce, passive income (such test described in clause (ii), "*Asset Test*"). Passive income generally includes, among other things, dividends, interest, rents and royalties (other than rents or royalties derived from the active conduct of a trade or business) and gains from the disposition of passive assets. In making this determination, the non-U.S. corporation is treated as earning its proportionate share of any income and owning its proportionate share of any assets of any corporation in which it holds, directly or indirectly, a 25% or greater interest by value of the stock. While the Asset Test is generally performed based on the fair market value of the assets, special rules apply with respect to the Asset Test in the case of the assets held by controlled foreign corporations. Based on the composition of our and our subsidiaries' income, assets, structure and operations and certain factual assumptions, although not free from doubt, we do not expect to be a PFIC for the taxable year, because PFIC status is determined annually and requires a factual determination that depends on, among other things, the composition of a company's income, assets and activities in each taxable year, and can only be made annually after the close of each taxable year, and is thus subject to significant uncertainty. Furthermore, the value of our gross assets is likely to be determined in part by reference to our market capitalization, which may fluctuate significantly. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that we will not be a PFIC for any taxable year.

Although our PFIC status is determined annually, we will generally continue to be treated as a PFIC in subsequent years in the case of a U.S. Holder who held our Ordinary Shares while we were a PFIC, whether or not we meet the test for PFIC status in those subsequent years. If we are determined to be a PFIC for any taxable year (or portion thereof) that is included in the holding period of a U.S. Holder of our Ordinary Shares and, in the case of our Ordinary Shares, the U.S. Holder did not make either an applicable PFIC election (or elections), as further described below, for our first taxable year in which we were treated as a PFIC and in which the U.S. Holder held (or was deemed to hold) such Ordinary Shares or otherwise, such U.S. Holder generally will be subject to special and adverse rules with respect to (i) any gain recognized by the U.S. Holder on the sale or other

disposition of its Ordinary Shares (which may include gain realized by reason of transfers of our Ordinary Shares that would otherwise qualify as nonrecognition transactions for U.S. federal income tax purposes) and (ii) any "excess distribution" made to the U.S. Holder (generally, any distributions to such U.S. Holder during a taxable year of the U.S. Holder that are greater than 125% of the average annual distributions received by such U.S. Holder in respect of the Ordinary Shares during the three preceding taxable years of such U.S. Holder or, if shorter, such U.S. Holder's holding period for the Ordinary Shares). Under proposed regulations, these rules could apply to any portion of the holding period of the Ordinary Shares received in exchange for Warrants pursuant to the Offer, or pursuant to the terms of the Warrant Amendment, if approved, that is attributable to the holding period for the Warrant prior to such exchange.

Under these rules:

- the U.S. Holder's gain or excess distribution will be allocated ratably over the U.S. Holder's holding period for our Ordinary Shares;
- the amount allocated to the U.S. Holder's taxable year in which the U.S. Holder recognized the gain or received the excess distribution, or to
 the period in the U.S. Holder's holding period before the first day of our first taxable year in which we are a PFIC, will be taxed as ordinary
 income;
- the amount allocated to other taxable years (or portions thereof) of the U.S. Holder and included in its holding period will be taxed at the highest tax rate in effect for that year and applicable to the U.S. Holder without regard to the U.S. Holder's other items of income and loss for such year; and
- an additional tax equal to the interest charge generally applicable to underpayments of tax will be imposed on the U.S. Holder with respect to the tax attributable to each such other taxable year of the U.S. Holder.

Under proposed Treasury regulations, for purposes of the above rules (i) the exercise of a warrant to acquire stock in a PFIC is not treated as a disposition of PFIC stock and (ii) gain is not recognized on a disposition of PFIC stock that results from a nonrecognition transfer if PFIC stock is exchanged for stock in the same or another corporation that is also a PFIC. However, (i) the exchange of Warrants for Ordinary Shares pursuant to the Offer or (ii) the deemed exchange of Warrants not exchanged for Ordinary Shares in the Offer for "new" warrants pursuant to the terms of the Warrant Amendment may not be eligible for those rules. U.S. Holders of Warrants should consult their tax advisors with respect to the application of these rules to the exercise, exchange or amendment of their Warrants if Allego were characterized as a PFIC for any taxable year (or portion thereof) that is included in the holding period of the U.S. Holder of our Warrants or Ordinary Shares.

If Allego is a PFIC and, at any time, owns equity in anon-U.S. corporation that is classified as a PFIC, a U.S. Holder generally would be deemed to own a proportionate amount of the shares of such lower-tier PFIC, and generally could incur liability for the deferred tax and interest charge described above if Allego receives a distribution from, or disposes of all or part of its interest in, the lower-tier PFIC, or the U.S. Holder otherwise was deemed to have disposed of an interest in the lower-tier PFIC. There can be no assurance that we will have timely knowledge of the status of any such lower-tier PFIC. U.S. Holders are urged to consult their tax advisors regarding the tax issues raised by lower-tier PFICs.

If we are a PFIC and our Ordinary Shares constitute "marketable stock," a U.S. Holder may avoid the adverse PFIC tax consequences discussed above if such U.S. Holder makes a mark-to-market election with respect to such shares for the first taxable year in which it holds (or is deemed to hold) our Ordinary Shares and each subsequent taxable year. Such U.S. Holder generally will include for each of its taxable years as ordinary income the excess, if any, of the fair market value of its Ordinary Shares at the end of such year over its adjusted basis in its Ordinary Shares. These amounts of ordinary income would not be eligible for the favorable tax rates applicable to qualified dividend income or long-term capital gains. The U.S. Holder also will recognize an ordinary loss in respect of the excess, if any, of its adjusted basis of its Ordinary Shares over the fair market value of its Ordinary Shares at the end of its taxable year (but only to the extent of the net amount of previously

included income as a result of the mark-to-market election). The U.S. Holder's basis in its Ordinary Shares will be adjusted to reflect any such income or loss amounts, and any further gain recognized on a sale or other taxable disposition of its Ordinary Shares will be treated as ordinary income.

The mark-to-market election is available only for "marketable stock," generally, stock that is regularly traded on a national securities exchange that is registered with the SEC, or on a foreign exchange or market that the IRS determines has rules sufficient to ensure that the market price represents a legitimate and sound fair market value. For this purpose, Ordinary Shares generally will be considered regularly traded (i) during the calendar year of initial public offering if they are traded, other than in de minimis quantities, on 1/6 of the days remaining in the quarter in which the initial public offering occurs and on at least 15 days during each remaining quarter of that calendar year (or, if the initial public offering occurs in the fourth quarter, on the greater of 1/6 of the days remaining in such quarter or 5 days) and (ii) during any other calendar year during which they are traded, other than in de minimis quantities, on at least 15 days during each quarter. Any trades that have as their principal purpose meeting this requirement will be disregarded. If made, a mark-to-market election would be effective for the taxable year for which the election was made and for all subsequent taxable years unless our Ordinary Shares cease to qualify as "marketable stock" for purposes of the PFIC rules or the IRS consents to the revocation of the election. Because a mark-to-market election cannot be made for any lower-tier PFICs that we may own, a U.S. Holder will generally continue to be subject to the PFIC rules discussed above with respect to such Holder's indirect interest in any investments Allego holds that are treated as an equity interest in a PFIC for U.S. federal income tax purposes. As a result, it is possible that any mark-to-market election will be of limited benefit. A U.S. Holder that is eligible to make a mark-to-market with respect to such Holder's Ordinary Shares may do so by providing the appropriate information on IRS Form 8621 and timely filing that form with the U.S. Holder's tax return for the year in which the election becomes effective. U.S. Holders are urged to consult their tax advisors regarding the availability and tax consequences of a mark-to-market election with respect to our Ordinary Shares under their particular circumstances. Under current law, a mark-to-market election may not be made with respect to Warrants that are not exchanged for Ordinary Shares.

Alternatively, a U.S. Holder of a PFIC may generally be able to avoid the adverse PFIC tax consequences described above in respect of stock of the PFIC by making and maintaining a timely and valid qualified electing fund ("*QEF*") election (if eligible to do so) to include in income its*pro rata* share of the PFIC's net capital gains (as long-term capital gain) and other earnings and profits (as ordinary income), on a current basis, in each case whether or not distributed, in the first taxable year of the U.S. Holder in which or with which the PFIC's taxable year ends and each subsequent taxable year. The U.S. Holder's adjusted basis in Ordinary Shares will be increased by the amounts so included in gross income. Any subsequent distribution by Allego that is paid out of the earnings and profits that were previously so included in gross income of the U.S. Holder generally will not be taxable as a dividend to the U.S. Holder, and the U.S.

Holder's adjusted basis in the Ordinary Shares will decrease by the amount of the distribution not treated as a taxable dividend. If a U.S. Holder has timely made a QEF election with respect to the Ordinary Shares, any gain such U.S. Holder recognizes upon the sale or other disposition of the Ordinary Shares generally will be treated as capital gain, and no interest charge will be imposed. In order to comply with the requirements of a QEF election, a U.S. Holder must receive a PFIC Annual Information Statement from the PFIC. We do not presently intend to provide a PFIC Annual Information Statement in order for U.S. Holders to make or maintain a QEF election.

It is not entirely clear how various aspects of the PFIC rules apply to the Warrants. However, QEF elections are not available with respect to Warrants, and U.S. Holders of Warrants who exchange Warrants for Ordinary Shares generally may not benefit from a QEF election if Allego were a PFIC during any period in which such Holder held Warrants. U.S. Holders are urged to consult their tax advisors as to the application of the PFIC rules to the Warrants.

PFIC Reporting Requirements

A U.S. Holder that owns (or is deemed to own) shares in a PFIC during any taxable year of the U.S. Holder, may have to file an IRS Form 8621 (whether or not a mark-to-market or any other election is made) and to provide such other information as may be required by the U.S. Treasury Department. Failure to do so, if required, will extend the statute of limitations applicable to such U.S. Holder until after such required information is furnished to the IRS.

The rules governing PFICs and mark-to-market and other elections are very complex and are affected by various factors in addition to those described above. Accordingly, U.S. Holders of our Ordinary Shares are urged to consult their own tax advisors concerning the application of the PFIC rules to our securities under their particular circumstances.

Additional Reporting Requirements

Certain U.S. Holders holding specified foreign financial assets with an aggregate value in excess of the applicable dollar thresholds are required to report information to the IRS relating to our Ordinary Shares, subject to certain exceptions (including an exception for our Ordinary Shares held in accounts maintained by U.S. financial institutions), by attaching a complete IRS Form 8938 (Statement of Specified Foreign Financial Assets) with their tax return for each year in which they hold our Ordinary Shares. Substantial penalties apply to any failure to file IRS Form 8938 and the period of limitations on assessment and collection of U.S. federal income taxes will be extended in the event of a failure to comply. U.S. Holders are urged to consult their tax advisors regarding the effect, if any, of these rules on the ownership and disposition of our Ordinary Shares.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Payments of dividends and sales proceeds that are made within the United States or through certain U.S.-related financial intermediaries are subject to information reporting and may be subject to backup withholding.

Backup withholding generally will not apply, however, to a U.S. Holder if (i) the U.S. Holder is a corporation (other than an S corporation) or other exempt recipient or (ii) the U.S. Holder provides a correct taxpayer identification number and certifies that it is not subject to backup withholding.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. The amount of any backup withholding from a payment to a U.S. Holder will be allowed as a credit against such U.S. Holder's U.S. federal income tax liability and may entitle it to a refund, provided that the required information is timely furnished to the IRS.

THE U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX DISCUSSION SET FORTH ABOVE IS INCLUDED FOR GENERAL INFORMATION ONLY AND MAY NOT BE APPLICABLE TO YOU DEPENDING UPON YOUR PARTICULAR SITUATION. YOU ARE URGED TO CONSULT YOUR OWN TAX ADVISOR WITH RESPECT TO THE TAX CONSEQUENCES TO YOU OF THE RECEIPT, OWNERSHIP AND DISPOSITION OF ORDINARY SHARES OR OF THE WARRANT AMENDMENT OR WARRANTS NOT EXCHANGED FOR ORDINARY SHARES IN THE OFFER, INCLUDING THE TAX CONSEQUENCES UNDER STATE, LOCAL, ESTATE, NON-U.S. AND OTHER TAX LAWS AND TAX TREATIES AND THE POSSIBLE EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN U.S. OR OTHER TAX LAWS.

MATERIAL DUTCH INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following discussion only outlines certain material Dutch income tax considerations of the receipt of Ordinary Shares in exchange for Warrants pursuant to the Offer, of the Warrant Amendment of Warrants not exchanged for Ordinary Shares in the Offer and of the ownership and disposition of our Ordinary Shares received in exchange for Warrants pursuant to the Offer. This section does not purport to describe all possible tax considerations or consequences that may be relevant to a holder of Warrants or Ordinary Shares and does not purport to deal with the tax consequences applicable to all categories of investors, some of which (such as trusts or similar arrangements) may be subject to special rules. In view of its general nature, this section should be treated with corresponding caution.

This section is based on the tax laws of the Netherlands, published regulations thereunder and published authoritative case law, all as in effect on the date hereof, including, for the avoidance of doubt, the tax rates applicable on the date hereof, and all of which are subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect. Any such change may invalidate the contents of this section, which will not be updated to reflect such change. Where this section refers to "the Netherlands" or "Dutch" it refers only to the part of the Kingdom of the Netherlands located in Europe.

This section is intended as general information only and is not Dutch tax advice or a complete description of all Dutch tax consequences relating to the receipt of Ordinary Shares in exchange for Warrants pursuant to the Offer, of the Warrant Amendment of the Warrants not exchanged for Ordinary Shares in the Offer or the ownership and disposition of our Ordinary Shares received in exchange for Warrants pursuant to the Offer. Holders of Warrants and prospective holders of Ordinary Shares should consult their own tax advisor regarding the Dutch tax consequences relating to the exchange of the Warrants for Ordinary Shares, the Warrant Amendment or the acquisition, ownership and disposition of Ordinary Shares in light of their particular circumstances.

Please note that this section does not describe the Dutch tax consequences for:

(i) a holder of Warrants or Ordinary Shares if such holder has a substantial interest (*animerkelijk belang*) or deemed substantial interest (*fictief aanmerkelijk belang*) in us under the Dutch Income Tax Act 2001 (*Wet inkomstenbelasting 2001*). Generally, a holder is considered to hold a substantial interest in us if such holder alone or, in the case of an individual, together with such holder's partner for Dutch income tax purposes, or any relatives by blood or marriage in the direct line (including foster children), directly or indirectly, holds (i) an interest of 5% or more of the total issued and outstanding capital of a certain class of shares; or (ii) rights, including Warrants, to acquire, directly or indirectly, such interest; or (iii) certain profit sharing rights that relate to 5% or more of our annual profits or to 5% or more of our liquidation proceeds. A deemed substantial interest may arise if a substantial interest (or part thereof) in us has been disposed of, or is deemed to have been disposed of, on a non-recognition basis;

(ii) a holder of Warrants or Ordinary Shares if the Warrants or Ordinary Shares held by such holder qualify or qualified as a participation (*deelneming*) for purposes of the Dutch Corporate Income Tax Act 1969 (*Wet op de vennootschapsbelasting 1969*). Generally, a holder's shareholding of, or right to acquire, 5% or more in our nominal paid-up share capital qualifies as a participation. A holder may also have a participation if (a) such holder does not have a shareholding of 5% or more but a related entity (statutorily defined term) has a participation or (b) we are a related entity (statutorily defined term);

(iii) a holder of Ordinary Shares which is or who is entitled to the dividend withholding tax exemption *(nhoudingsvrijstelling)* with respect to any income (*opbrengst*) derived from our Ordinary Shares (as defined in Article 4 of the Dutch Dividend Withholding Tax Act 1965 *(Vet op de dividendbelasting)*. Generally, a holder of Ordinary Shares may be entitled or required to apply, subject to certain other requirements, the dividend withholding tax exemption if it is an entity and holds an interest of 5% or more in our nominal paid-up share capital;

(iv) pension funds, investment institutions (*fiscale beleggingsinstellingen*) and tax exempt investment institutions (*rijgestelde beleggingsinstellingen*) (each as defined in the Dutch Corporate Income Tax Act 1969) and other entities that are, in whole or in part, not subject to or exempt from Dutch corporate income tax, entities that have a function comparable to an investment institution or a tax exempt investment institution, as well as entities that are exempt from corporate income tax in their country of residence, such country of residence being another state of the European Union, Norway, Liechtenstein, Iceland or any other state with which the Netherlands has agreed to exchange information in line with international standards; and

(v) a holder of Warrants or Ordinary Shares if such holder is an individual for whom the Warrants or Ordinary Shares or any benefit derived from the Warrants or Ordinary Shares is a remuneration or deemed to be a remuneration for (employment) activities performed by such holder or certain individuals related to such holder (as defined in the Dutch Income Tax Act 2001).

Exchange of Warrants for Ordinary Shares

Dividend withholding tax

The exchange of the Warrants does in our view not give rise to Dutch dividend withholding tax, except to the extent the par value of the Ordinary Shares (currently, the par value per Ordinary Share is \in 0.12) received by the holder of Warrants is not charged against our share premium reserve recognized for Dutch dividend withholding tax purposes. If any Dutch dividend withholding tax due is not effectively withheld for the account of the relevant holder of a Warrants, Dutch dividend withholding tax shall be due by us on a grossed-up basis, meaning that the Dutch dividend withholding tax basis shall be equal to the amount referred to in the preceding sentence multiplied by 100/85.

In addition, it cannot be excluded that payments made in consideration for the exchange of the Warrants are in part subject to Dutch dividend withholding tax. To date, no authoritative case law of the Dutch courts has been made publicly available in this respect.

Dutch Resident Entities

Generally, if the holder of Warrants is a legal entities that is resident or deemed to be resident of the Netherlands for Dutch corporate income tax purposes ("*Dutch Resident Entities*"), any income derived or deemed to be derived from the Warrants or any capital gains realized on the disposal or deemed disposal or exchange of the Warrants is subject to Dutch corporate income tax at a rate of 19% with respect to taxable profits up to \notin 200,000 and 25.8% with respect to taxable profits in excess of that amount (rates and brackets for 2023).

Dutch Resident Individuals

If the holder of Ordinary Shares is an individual who is resident or deemed to be resident of the Netherlands for Dutch personal income tax purposes ("*Dutch Resident Individuals*"), any income derived or deemed to be derived from the Warrants or any capital gains realized on the disposal or deemed disposal or exchange of the Warrants is subject to Dutch personal income tax at the progressive rates (with a maximum of 49.5% in 2023), if:

(i) the Warrants are attributable to an enterprise from which the holder of Warrants derives a share of the profit, whether as an entrepreneur *(ndernemer)* or as a person who has a co-entitlement to the net worth *(medegerechtigd tot het vermogen)* of such enterprise without being a shareholder (as defined in the Dutch Income Tax Act 2001); or

(ii) the holder of Warrants is considered to perform activities with respect to the Warrants that go beyond ordinary asset management *formaal, actief vermogensbeheer*) or otherwise derives benefits from the Warrants that are taxable as benefits from miscellaneous activities *(resultaat uit overige werkzaamheden)*.

Taxation of savings and investments

If the above-mentioned conditions (i) and (ii) do not apply to the Dutch Resident Individual, the Warrants will be subject to an annual Dutch income tax under the regime for savings and investments (*inkomen uit sparen en beleggen*). Taxation only occurs insofar the Dutch Resident Individual's net investment assets for the year exceed a statutory threshold (*heffingvrij vermogen*). The net investment assets for the year are the fair market value of the investment assets less the fair market value of the liabilities on January 1 of the relevant calendar year (reference date; *peildatum*). See for more information under 'Taxes on income and capital gains in respect of our Ordinary Shares—Taxation of savings and investments below'.

Actual income or capital gains realized in respect of the exchange of the Warrants are as such not subject to Dutch income tax.

Non-residents of the Netherlands

A holder of Warrants that is neither a Dutch Resident Entity nor a Dutch Resident Individual will not be subject to Dutch income tax in respect of income derived or deemed to be derived from the Warrants or in respect of capital gains realized on the disposal or deemed disposal or exchange of the Warrants, provided that:

(i) such holder does not have an interest in an enterprise or deemed enterprise (as defined in the Dutch Income Tax Act 2001 and the Dutch Corporate Income Tax Act 1969, as applicable) which, in whole or in part, is either effectively managed in the Netherlands or carried on through a permanent establishment, a deemed permanent establishment or a permanent representative in the Netherlands and to which enterprise or part of an enterprise the Warrants are attributable; and

(ii) in the event the holder is an individual, such holder does not carry out any activities in the Netherlands with respect to the Warrants that go beyond ordinary asset management and does not otherwise derive benefits from the Warrants that are taxable as benefits from miscellaneous activities in the Netherlands.

Warrants not exchange for our Ordinary Shares if the Warrant Amendment is approved

If the Warrants Amendment is approved and the Warrants are converted into Ordinary Shares, the Dutch tax consequences as set out under 'Exchange of Warrants for Ordinary Shares' apply to the conversion of the Warrants into Ordinary Shares.

Warrants not exchanged for our Ordinary Shares if the Warrant Amendment is not approved

If the Warrant Amendment is not approved, there are no Dutch income tax consequences of the Offer with respect to Warrants that are not exchanged for our Ordinary Shares pursuant to the Offer.

Dividends and Other Distributions on our Ordinary Shares

Dividends distributed by us are generally subject to Dutch dividend withholding tax at a rate of 15%. Generally, we are responsible for the withholding of such dividend withholding tax at source; the Dutch dividend withholding tax is for the account of the holder of Ordinary Shares.

The expression "dividends distributed" includes, but is not limited to:

- distributions in cash or in kind, deemed and constructive distributions and repayments ofpaid-in capital not recognized for Dutch dividend withholding tax purposes;
- liquidation proceeds, proceeds from the redemption of Ordinary Shares, or proceeds from the repurchase of Ordinary Shares (other than as
 temporary portfolio investment; *tijdelijke belegging*) by us or one of our subsidiaries or other affiliated entities, in each case to the extent
 such proceeds exceed the average paid-in capital of those Ordinary Shares as recognized for Dutch dividend withholding tax purposes;

- an amount equal to the par value of the Ordinary Shares issued or an increase of the par value of the Ordinary Shares, to the extent that no related contribution, recognized for Dutch dividend withholding tax purposes, has been made or will be made; and
- partial repayment of the paid-in capital recognized for Dutch dividend withholding tax purposes, if and to the extent that we have "net profits" (*zuivere winst*), unless (i) our General Meeting has resolved in advance to make such repayment and (ii) the par value of the Ordinary Shares concerned has been reduced by an equal amount by way of an amendment to our articles of association. The term "net profits" includes anticipated profits that have yet to be realized.

Dutch Resident Entities generally are entitled to an exemption from, or a credit for, any Dutch dividend withholding tax against their Dutch corporate income tax liability. The credit in any given year is, however, limited to the amount of Dutch corporate income tax payable in respect of the relevant year with an indefinite carry forward of any excess amount. Dutch Resident Individuals generally are entitled to a credit for any Dutch dividend withholding tax against their Dutch personal income tax liability and to a refund of any residual Dutch dividend withholding tax. The above generally also applies to holders of Ordinary Shares that are neither resident nor deemed to be resident of the Netherlands ("*Non-Resident Holders*") if the Ordinary Shares are attributable to a Dutch permanent establishment of such Non-Resident Holder.

A holder of Ordinary Shares resident of a country other than the Netherlands may, depending on such holder's specific circumstances, be entitled to exemptions from, reduction of, or full or partial refund of, Dutch dividend withholding tax under Dutch domestic tax law, EU law, or treaties for the avoidance of double taxation in effect between the Netherlands and such other country.

Dividend stripping

According to Dutch domestic anti-dividend stripping rules, no credit against Dutch tax, exemption from, reduction, or refund of Dutch dividend withholding tax will be granted if the recipient of the dividends we paid is not considered the beneficial owner (*uiteindelijk gerechtigde*; as described in the Dutch Dividend Withholding Tax Act 1965) of those dividends. This legislation generally targets situations in which a shareholder retains its economic interest in shares but reduces the withholding tax costs on dividends by a transaction with another party. It is not required for these rules to apply that the recipient of the dividend stripping transaction took place. The Dutch State Secretary of Finance takes the position that the definition of beneficial ownership introduced by this legislation will also be applied in the context of a double taxation convention.

Conditional withholding tax on dividends (as of January 1, 2024)

As of January 1, 2024, a Dutch conditional withholding tax will be imposed on dividends distributed by us to entities related *gelieerd*) to us (within the meaning of the Dutch Withholding Tax Act 2021; *Wet bronbelasting 2021*), if such related entity:

- is considered to be resident (gevestigd) in a jurisdiction that is listed in the yearly updated Dutch Regulation onlow-taxing states and non-cooperative jurisdictions for tax purposes (Regeling laagbelastende staten en niet-coöperatieve rechtsgebieden voor belastingdoeleinden) (a "Listed Jurisdiction"); or
- has a permanent establishment located in a Listed Jurisdiction to which the Ordinary Shares are attributable; or
- holds the Ordinary Shares with the main purpose or one of the main purposes of avoiding taxation for another person or entity and there is an
 artificial arrangement or transaction or a series of artificial arrangements or transactions; or

- is not considered to be the beneficial owner of the Ordinary Shares in its jurisdiction of residence because such jurisdiction treats another entity as the beneficial owner of the Ordinary Shares (a hybrid mismatch); or
- is not resident in any jurisdiction (also a hybrid mismatch); or
- is a reverse hybrid (within the meaning of Article 2(12) of the Dutch Corporate Income Tax Act 1969), if and to the extent (x) there is a participant in the reverse hybrid which is related (*gelieerd*) to the reverse hybrid, (y) the jurisdiction of residence of such participant treats the reverse hybrid as transparent for tax purposes and (z) such participant would have been subject to the Dutch conditional withholding tax in respect of dividends distributed by us without the interposition of the reverse hybrid, all within the meaning of the Dutch Withholding Tax Act 2021.

The Dutch conditional withholding tax on dividends will be imposed at the highest Dutch corporate income tax rate in effect at the time of the distribution (2023: 25.8%). The Dutch conditional withholding tax on dividends will be reduced, but not below zero, by any regular Dutch dividend withholding tax withheld in respect of the same dividend distribution. As such, based on the currently applicable rates, the overall effective tax rate of withholding the regular Dutch dividend withholding tax (as described above) and the Dutch conditional withholding tax on dividends will not exceed the highest corporate income tax rate in effect at the time of the distribution (2023: 25.8%).

Taxes on income and capital gains in respect of our Ordinary Shares

Dutch Resident Entities

Generally, if the holder of Ordinary Shares is a Dutch Resident Entity, any income derived or deemed to be derived from the Ordinary Shares or any capital gains realized on the disposal or deemed disposal of the Ordinary Shares is subject to Dutch corporate income tax at a rate of 19% with respect to taxable profits up to \notin 200,000 and 25.8% with respect to taxable profits in excess of that amount (rates and brackets for 2023).

Dutch Resident Individuals

If the holder of Ordinary Shares is Dutch Resident Individual, any income derived or deemed to be derived from the Ordinary Shares or any capital gains realized on the disposal or deemed disposal of the Ordinary Shares is subject to Dutch personal income tax at the progressive rates (with a maximum of 49.5% in 2023), if:

(i) the Ordinary Shares are attributable to an enterprise from which the holder of Ordinary Shares derives a share of the profit, whether as an entrepreneur (*ondernemer*) or as a person who has a co-entitlement to the net worth (*medegerechtigd tot het vermogen*) of such enterprise without being a shareholder (as defined in the Dutch Income Tax Act 2001); or

(ii) the holder of Ordinary Shares is considered to perform activities with respect to the Ordianry Shares that go beyond ordinary asset management (*normaal, actief vermogensbeheer*) or otherwise derives benefits from the Ordinary Shares that are taxable as benefits from miscellaneous activities (*resultaat uit overige werkzaamheden*).

Taxation of savings and investments

If the above-mentioned conditions (i) and (ii) do not apply to the Dutch Resident Individual, the Ordinary Shares will be subject to an annual Dutch income tax under the regime for savings and investments (*inkomen uit sparen en beleggen*). Taxation only occurs insofar the Dutch Resident Individual's net investment assets for the year exceed a statutory threshold (*heffingvrij vermogen*). The net investment assets for the year are the fair market value of the liabilities on January 1 of the relevant calendar year (reference date; *peildatum*). Actual income or capital gains realized in respect of the Ordinary Shares are as such not subject to Dutch income tax.

The Dutch Resident Individual's assets and liabilities taxed under this regime, including the Ordinary Shares, are allocated over the following three categories: (a) bank savings (*banktegoeden*), (b) other investments (*overige bezittingen*), including the Ordinary Shares, and (c) liabilities (*schulden*). The taxable benefit for the year (*voordeel uit sparen en beleggen*) is equal to the product of (x) the total deemed return divided by the sum of bank savings, other investments and liabilities minus the statutory threshold, and is taxed at a flat rate of 32% (rate for 2023).

The deemed return applicable to other investments, including the Ordinary Shares, is set at 6.17% for the calendar year 2023. Transactions in the three-month period before and after 1 January of the relevant calendar year implemented to arbitrate between the deemed return percentages applicable to bank savings, other investments and liabilities will for this purpose be ignored if the holder of Ordinary Shares cannot sufficiently demonstrate that such transactions are implemented for other than tax reasons.

Non-residents of the Netherlands

A holder of Ordinary Shares that is neither a Dutch Resident Entity nor a Dutch Resident Individual will not be subject to Dutch income tax in respect of income derived or deemed to be derived from the Ordinary Shares or in respect of capital gains realized on the disposal or deemed disposal of the Ordinary Shares, provided that:

(i) such holder does not have an interest in an enterprise or deemed enterprise (as defined in the Dutch Income Tax Act 2001 and the Dutch Corporate Income Tax Act 1969, as applicable) which, in whole or in part, is either effectively managed in the Netherlands or carried on through a permanent establishment, a deemed permanent establishment or a permanent representative in the Netherlands and to which enterprise or part of an enterprise the Ordinary Shares are attributable; and

(ii) in the event the holder is an individual, such holder does not carry out any activities in the Netherlands with respect to the Ordinary Shares that go beyond ordinary asset management and does not otherwise derive benefits from the Ordinary Shares that are taxable as benefits from miscellaneous activities in the Netherlands.

DESCRIPTION OF SHARE CAPITAL AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

This section of the Prospectus/Offer to Exchange includes a description of the material terms of the Articles and of applicable Dutch law. The following description is intended as a summary only and does not constitute legal advice regarding those matters and should not be regarded as such. The description is qualified in its entirety by reference to the complete text of the Articles, of which an unofficial English translation is attached as an exhibit to the registration statement of which this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange forms a part. We urge you to read the full text of the Articles.

Overview

Allego was incorporated pursuant to Dutch law on June 3, 2021. Allego's corporate affairs are governed by the Articles, the rules of the Board, Allego's other internal rules and policies and by Dutch law. Allego is registered with the Dutch Trade Register under number 73283754. Allego's corporate seat is in Arnhem, the Netherlands, and Allego's office address is Westervoortsedijk 73 KB, 6827 AV Arnhem, the Netherlands. As of the date of this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange, Allego is a Dutch public limited liability company (*naamloze vennootschap*).

Share Capital

Authorized Share Capital

As of the date of this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange, Allego has an authorized share capital in the amount of \notin 108,000,000, divided into 900,000,000 Ordinary Shares, each with a nominal value of \notin 0.12. Under Dutch law, Allego's authorized share capital is the maximum capital that Allego may issue without amending the Articles. An amendment of the Articles would require a resolution of General Meeting upon proposal by the Board.

The Articles provide that, for as long as any Ordinary Shares are admitted to trading on NYSE or on any other regulated stock exchange operating in the United States, the laws of the State of New York shall apply to the property law aspects of Ordinary Shares reflected in the register administered by Allego's transfer agent, subject to certain overriding exceptions under Dutch law. Such resolution, as well as a resolution to revoke such designation, has been made public in accordance with applicable law and has been deposited at the offices of the Company and the Dutch Trade Register for inspection.

Ordinary Shares

The following summarizes the material rights of holders of Ordinary Shares:

- each holder of Ordinary Shares is entitled to one vote per Ordinary Share on all matters to be voted on by shareholders generally, including the appointment of directors;
- there are no cumulative voting rights;
- the holders of Ordinary Shares are entitled to dividends and other distributions as may be declared from time to time by Allego out of funds legally available for that purpose, if any;
- upon Allego's liquidation and dissolution, the holders of Ordinary Shares will be entitled to share ratably in the distribution of all of Allego's
 assets remaining available for distribution after satisfaction of all Allego's liabilities; and
- the holders of Ordinary Shares have pre-emption rights in case of share issuances or the grant of rights to subscribe for shares, except if such
 rights are limited or excluded by the corporate body authorized to do so and except in such cases as provided by Dutch law and the Articles.

Warrants

In connection with the Business Combination, Allego entered into the Warrant Assumption Agreement, pursuant to which certain warrants of Spartan were automatically converted into warrants to acquire one Ordinary Share, and remain subject to the same terms and conditions (including exercisability) as were applicable to the corresponding warrant of Spartan immediately prior to the Business Combination.

Each whole Warrant entitles the registered holder to purchase one whole Ordinary Share at a price of \$11.50 per share, subject to adjustment as discussed below, provided that Allego has an effective registration statement under the Securities Act covering the Ordinary Shares issuable upon exercise of the Warrants and a current prospectus relating to them is available (or Allego permits holders to exercise their Warrants on a cashless basis under the circumstances specified in the Warrant Agreement) and such shares are registered, qualified or exempt from registration under the securities, or blue sky, laws of the state of residence of the holder. Pursuant to the Warrant Agreement, a Warrant holder may exercise its Warrants only for a whole number of Ordinary Shares. This means that only a whole Warrant may be exercised at any given time by a Warrant holder.

Redemption of Warrants when the price per Ordinary Share equals or exceeds \$18.00.

Allego may redeem the outstanding Warrants for cash:

- in whole and not in part;
- at a price of \$0.01 per Warrant;
- upon a minimum of 30 days' prior written notice of redemption, or the 30-day redemption period, to each Warrant holder; and
- if, and only if, the last reported sale price of the Ordinary Shares equals or exceeds \$18.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading days within a 30-day trading period ending on the third trading day prior to the date on which Allego sends the notice of redemption to the Warrant holders.

Allego will not redeem the Warrants as described above unless a registration statement under the Securities Act covering the Ordinary Shares issuable upon exercise of the applicable Warrants is effective and a current prospectus relating to those Ordinary Shares is available throughout the 30-day redemption period. If and when the Warrants become redeemable by Allego, Allego may exercise its redemption right even if it is unable to register or qualify the underlying securities for sale under all applicable state securities laws.

If the foregoing conditions are satisfied and Allego issues a notice of redemption of the Warrants, each Warrant holder will be entitled to exercise their Warrant prior to the scheduled redemption date. However, the price of the Ordinary Shares may fall below the \$18.00 redemption trigger price (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) as well as the \$11.50 (for whole shares) Warrant exercise price after the redemption notice is issued.

Redemption of Warrants when the price per Ordinary Share equals or exceeds \$10.00.

Allego may redeem the outstanding Warrants for cash:

- in whole and not in part;
- at a price of \$0.10 per Warrant, provided that holders will be able to exercise their Warrants on a cashless basis prior to redemption and
 receive that number of Ordinary Shares determined in accordance with the Warrant Agreement, based on the redemption date and the "fair
 market value" of Ordinary Shares except as otherwise described below;
- upon a minimum of 30 days' prior written notice of redemption to each Warrant holder; and

• if, and only if, the last reported sale price of the Ordinary Shares equals or exceeds \$10.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) on the trading day prior to the date on which Allego sends the notice of redemption to the Warrant holders.

Beginning on the date the notice of redemption is given until the Warrants are redeemed or exercised, holders may elect to exercise their Warrants on a cashless basis. The "fair market value" of the Ordinary Shares shall mean the average last reported sale price of the Ordinary Shares for the 10 trading days immediately following the date on which the notice of redemption is sent to the holders of Warrants. Allego will provide Warrant holders with the final fair market value no later than one business day after the ten-trading day period described above ends.

Redemption Procedures

A holder of a Warrant may notify Allego in writing in the event it elects to be subject to a requirement that such holder will not have the right to exercise such Warrant, to the extent that after giving effect to such exercise, such person (together with such person's affiliates), to the Warrant Agent's actual knowledge, would beneficially own in excess of 9.8% (or such other amount as a holder may specify) of the Ordinary Shares outstanding immediately after giving effect to such exercise.

Anti-Dilution Adjustments

If the number of outstanding Ordinary Shares is increased by a share dividend payable in Ordinary Shares, or by asplit-up of Ordinary Shares or other similar event, then, on the effective date of such dividend, split-up or similar event, the number of Ordinary Shares issuable on exercise of each Warrant will be increased in proportion to such increase in the outstanding Ordinary Shares. A rights offering to holders of Ordinary Shares entitling holders to purchase Ordinary Shares at a price less than the fair market value will be deemed a share dividend of a number of Ordinary Shares equal to the product of (i) the number of Ordinary Shares actually sold in such rights offering (or issuable under any other equity securities sold in such rights offering that are convertible into or exercisable for Ordinary Shares) multiplied by (ii) one (1) minus the quotient of (x) the price per Ordinary Share paid in such rights offering is for securities convertible into or exercisable for Ordinary Shares, there will be taken into account any consideration received for such rights, as well as any additional amount payable upon exercise or conversion and (ii) fair market value means the average last reported sale price of Ordinary Shares as reported for the ten (10) trading day period ending on the trading day prior to the first date on which the Ordinary Shares trade on the applicable exchange or in the applicable market, regular way, without the right to receive such rights.

If the number of outstanding Ordinary Shares is decreased by a consolidation, combination, reverse stock split or reclassification of Ordinary Shares or other similar event, then, on the effective date of such consolidation, combination, reverse stock split, reclassification or similar event, the number of Ordinary Shares issuable on exercise of each Warrant will be decreased in proportion to such decrease in outstanding Ordinary Shares.

Whenever the number of Ordinary Shares purchasable upon the exercise of the Warrants is adjusted, as described above, the Warrant exercise price will be adjusted by multiplying the Warrant exercise price immediately prior to such adjustment by a fraction (x) the numerator of which will be the number of Ordinary Shares purchasable upon the exercise of the Warrants immediately prior to such adjustment, and (y) the denominator of which will be the number of Ordinary Shares so purchasable immediately thereafter. The Warrant Agreement provides that no adjustment to the number of Ordinary Shares issuable upon exercise of a Warrant will be required until cumulative adjustments amount to 1% or more of the number of Ordinary Shares issuable upon exercise of a Warrant as last adjusted.

Any such adjustments that are not made will be carried forward and taken into account in any subsequent adjustment. All such carried forward adjustments will be made (i) in connection with any subsequent adjustment that (taken together with such carried forward adjustments) would result in a change of at least 1% in the number of Ordinary Shares issuable upon exercise of a Warrant and (ii) on the exercise date of any Warrant.

In case of any reclassification or reorganization of the outstanding Ordinary Shares (other than those described above or that solely affects the par value of such Ordinary Shares), or in the case of any merger or consolidation of Allego with or into another corporation (other than a consolidation or merger in which Allego is the continuing corporation and that does not result in any reclassification or reorganization of the outstanding Ordinary Shares), or in the case of any sale or conveyance to another corporation or entity of the assets or other property of Allego as an entirety or substantially as an entirety in connection with which Allego is dissolved, the holders of the Warrants will thereafter have the right to purchase and receive, upon the basis and upon the terms and conditions specified in the Warrants and in lieu of the Ordinary Shares immediately theretofore purchasable and receivable upon the exercise of the rights represented thereby, the kind and amount of shares of stock or other securities or property (including cash) receivable upon such reclassification, reorganization, merger or consolidation, or upon a dissolution following any such sale or transfer, that the holder of the Warrants would have received if such holder had exercised his, her or its Warrants immediately prior to such event. If less than 70% of the consideration receivable by the holders of Ordinary Shares in such a transaction is payable in the form of Ordinary Shares in the successor entity that is listed for trading on a national securities exchange or is quoted in an established over-the-counter market, or is to be so listed for trading or quoted immediately following such event, and if the registered holder of the Warrant properly exercises the Warrant within thirty days following public disclosure of such transaction, the Warrant exercise price will be reduced as specified in the Warrant Agreement based on the Black-Scholes value (as defined in the Warrant Agreement) of the Warrant. The purpose of such exercise price reduction is to provide additional value to holders of the Warrants when an extraordinary transaction occurs during the exercise period of the Warrants pursuant to which the holders of the Warrants otherwise do not receive the full potential value of the Warrants. The Warrant exercise price will not be adjusted for other events.

The Warrant Agreement provides that the terms of the Warrants may be amended without the consent of any holder to cure any ambiguity or correct any defective provision, but requires the approval by the holders of at least 50% of the then outstanding Warrants to make any change that adversely affects the interests of the registered holders of Warrants. You should review a copy of the Warrant Agreement, which is filed as an exhibit to the registration statement of which this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange forms a part, for a complete description of the terms and conditions applicable to the Warrants.

The Warrants may be exercised upon surrender of the Warrant certificate on or prior to the expiration date at the offices of the Warrant Agent, with the exercise form on the reverse side of the Warrant certificate completed and executed as indicated, accompanied by full payment of the exercise price (or on a cashless basis, if applicable), by certified or official bank check payable to Allego, for the number of Warrants being exercised. The Warrant holders do not have the rights or privileges of holders of Ordinary Shares or any voting rights until they exercise their Warrants and receive Ordinary Shares. After the issuance of Ordinary Shares upon exercise of the Warrants, each holder will be entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters to be voted on by shareholders.

No fractional shares will be issued upon exercise of the Warrants. If, upon exercise of the Warrants, a holder would be entitled to receive a fractional interest in a share, Allego will, upon exercise, round down to the nearest whole number of Ordinary Shares to be issued to the Warrant holder.

Allego has agreed that any action, proceeding or claim against it arising out of or relating in any way to the Warrant Agreement, including under the Securities Act, will be brought and enforced in the courts of the State of New York or the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York, and Allego has irrevocably submitted to such jurisdiction, which will be the exclusive forum for any such action, proceeding or claim.

However, there is uncertainty as to whether a court would enforce this provision and investors cannot waive compliance with the federal securities laws and the rules and regulations thereunder. Section 22 of the Securities Act creates concurrent jurisdiction for state and federal courts over all suits brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the Securities Act or the rules and regulations thereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, these provisions of the Warrant Agreement will not apply to suits brought to enforce any liability or duty created by the Exchange Act or any other claim for which the federal district courts of the United States of America are the sole and exclusive forum. Section 27 of the Exchange Act creates exclusive federal jurisdiction over all suits brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the Exchange Act or the rules and regulations thereunder.

Warrants that were Private Placement Warrants

On April 20, 2022, a permitted transferee of the Sponsor exercised the warrants that were Private Placement Warrants on a cashless basis. As a result of the exercise, on April 23, 2022, all of the outstanding warrants that were Private Placement Warrants were surrendered and the underlying Ordinary Shares were issued.

Shareholders' Register

Pursuant to Dutch law and the Articles, Allego must keep its shareholders' register accurate and current. The Board keeps the shareholders' register and records names and addresses of all holders of registered shares, showing the date on which the shares were acquired, the date of the acknowledgement by or notification of Allego as well as the amount paid on each share. The register also includes the names and addresses of those with a right of usufruct (*vruchtgebruik*) on registered shares belonging to another or a pledge (*pandrecht*) in respect of such shares. The Ordinary Shares listed in this transaction will be held through DTC. Therefore, DTC or its nominee will be recorded in the shareholders' register as the holder of those Ordinary Shares. The Ordinary Shares shall be in registered form (*op naam*).

Allego may issue share certificates (aandeelbewijzen) for registered shares in such form as may be approved by the Board.

Limitations on the Rights to Own Securities

Ordinary Shares may be issued to individuals, corporations, trusts, estates of deceased individuals, partnerships and unincorporated associations of persons. The Articles contain no limitation on the rights to own Allego's shares and no limitation on the rights of non-residents of the Netherlands or foreign shareholders to hold or exercise voting rights.

Limitation on Liability and Indemnification Matters

Under Dutch law, the members of the Board may be held liable for damages in the event of improper or negligent performance of their duties. They may be held jointly and severally liable for damages to Allego and to third-parties for infringement of the Articles or of certain provisions of Dutch law. In certain circumstances, they may also incur additional specific civil and criminal liabilities. Subject to certain exceptions, the Articles provide for indemnification of Allego's current and former directors and other current and former officers and employees as designated by the Board. No indemnification under the Articles shall be given to an indemnified person:

- if a competent court or arbitral tribunal has established, without having (or no longer having) the possibility for appeal, that the acts or
 omissions of such indemnified person that led to the financial losses, damages, expenses, suit, claim, action or legal proceedings as described
 above are of an unlawful nature (including acts or omissions which are considered to constitute malice, gross negligence, intentional
 recklessness and/ or serious culpability attributable to such indemnified person);
- to the extent that his or her financial losses, damages and expenses are covered under insurance and the relevant insurer has settled, or has
 provided reimbursement for, these financial losses, damages and expenses (or has irrevocably undertaken to do so);

- in relation to proceedings brought by such indemnified person against Allego, except for proceedings brought to enforce indemnification to
 which he or she is entitled pursuant to the Articles, pursuant to an agreement between such indemnified person and Allego which has been
 approved by the Board or pursuant to insurance taken out by Allego for the benefit of such indemnified person; and
- for any financial losses, damages or expenses incurred in connection with a settlement of any proceedings effected without Allego's prior consent.

Under the Articles, the Board may stipulate additional terms, conditions and restrictions in relation to the indemnification described above.

General Meeting of Shareholders and Voting Rights

General Meeting of Shareholders

General Meetings may be held in Amsterdam, Arnhem, Assen, The Hague, Haarlem,'s-Hertogenbosch, Groningen, Leeuwarden, Lelystad, Maastricht, Middelburg, Rotterdam, Schiphol (Haarlemmermeer), Utrecht or Zwolle, all in the Netherlands. The annual General Meeting must be held within six months of the end of each financial year. Additional extraordinary General Meetings may also be held, whenever considered appropriate by the Board and shall be held within three months after the Board has considered it to be likely that Allego's shareholders' equity (*eigen vermogen*) has decreased to an amount equal to or lower than half of Allego's paid-in and called up share capital, in order to discuss the measures to be taken if so required.

Pursuant to Dutch law, one or more shareholders or others with meeting rights under Dutch law who jointly represent at leastone-tenth of Allego's issued share capital may request Allego to convene a General Meeting, setting out in detail the matters to be discussed. If the Board has not taken the steps necessary to ensure that such meeting can be held within six weeks after the request, the proponent(s) may, on their application, be authorized by a competent Dutch court in preliminary relief proceedings to convene a General Meeting. The court shall disallow the application if it does not appear that the proponent(s) has/have previously requested the Board to convene a General Meeting and the Board has not taken the necessary steps so that the General Meeting could be held within six weeks after the request.

A General Meeting must be convened by an announcement published in a Dutch daily newspaper with national distribution. The notice must state the agenda, the time and place of the meeting, the record date (if any), the procedure for participating in the General Meeting by proxy, as well as other information as required by Dutch law. Allego will observe the statutory minimum convening notice period for a General Meeting. The agenda for the annual General Meeting shall include, among other things, the adoption of Allego's statutory annual accounts, appropriation of Allego's profits and proposals relating to the composition of the Board, including the filling of any vacancies. In addition, the agenda shall include such items as have been included therein by the Board. The agenda shall also include such items requested by one or more shareholders or others with meeting rights under Dutch law representing at least 3% of Allego's issued share capital. These requests must be made in writing or by electronic means and received by the Board at least 60 days before the day of the meeting. No resolutions shall be adopted on items other than those that have been included in the agenda.

In accordance with the Dutch Corporate Governance Code and the Articles, shareholders having the right to put an item on the agenda under the rules described above shall exercise such right only after consulting the Board in that respect. If one or more shareholders intend to request that an item be put on the agenda that may result in a change in Allego's strategy (for example, the dismissal of members of the Board), the Board must be given the opportunity to invoke a reasonable period of up to 180 days to respond to the shareholders' intentions. If invoked, the Board must use such response period for further deliberation and constructive consultation, in any event with the shareholders(s) concerned, and must explore the alternatives. At the end of the response time, the Board must report on this consultation and the exploration of alternatives to the General Meeting. The response period may be invoked only once for any given General Meeting and shall not apply: (a) in respect of a matter for

which either a response period or a statutory cooling-off period (as described below) has been previously invoked; or (b) if a shareholder holds at least 75% of Allego's issued share capital as a consequence of a successful public bid.

Moreover, the Board can invoke a cooling-off period of up to 250 days when shareholders, using either their shareholder proposal right or their right to request a General Meeting, propose an agenda item for the General Meeting to dismiss, suspend or appoint a member of the Board (or to amend any provision in the Articles dealing with those matters) or when a public offer for Allego is made or announced without Allego's support, provided, in each case, that the Board believes that such proposal or offer materially conflicts with the interests of Allego and its business. During a cooling-off period, the General Meeting cannot dismiss, suspend or appoint members of the Board (or amend the provisions in the Articles dealing with those matters) except at the proposal of the Board. During a cooling-off period, the Board must gather all relevant information necessary for a careful decision-making process and at least consult with shareholders representing 3% or more of Allego's issued share capital at the time the cooling-off period was invoked, as well as with Allego's Dutch works council (if we or, under certain circumstances, any of our subsidiaries would have one). Formal statements expressed by these stakeholders during such consultations must be published on Allego's website to the extent these stakeholders have approved that publication. Ultimately one week following the last day of the cooling-off period, the Board of directors must publish a report in respect of its policy and conduct of affairs during the cooling-off period on Allego's website. This report must remain available for inspection by shareholders representing rights under Dutch law at Allego's office and must be tabled for discussion at the next General Meeting. Shareholders representing at least 3% of Allego's issued share capital may request the Dutch Enterprise Chamber of the Amsterdam Court of Appeals (the "*Enterprise Chamber*") (Ondernemingskamer) for early termination of the cooling-off period. The Enterprise Chamber must rule in favor of

- a. the Board, in light of the circumstances at hand when the cooling-off period was invoked, could not reasonably have come to the conclusion that the relevant shareholder proposal or hostile offer constituted a material conflict with the interests of Allego and its business;
- b. the Board cannot reasonably believe that a continuation of the cooling-off period would contribute to careful policy-making; and
- c. if other defensive measures have been activated during the cooling-off period and not terminated or suspended at the relevant shareholders' request within a reasonable period following the request (i.e., no 'stacking' of defensive measures).

The General Meeting is presided over by the chairperson of the Board. If no chairperson has been elected or if he or she is not present at the meeting, the General Meeting shall be presided over by the vice-chairperson of the Board. If no vice-chairperson has been elected or if he or she is not present at the meeting, the General Meeting shall be presided over by a person designated in accordance with the Articles. Directors may always attend a General Meeting. In these meetings, they have an advisory vote. The chairperson of the General Meeting may decide at his or her discretion to admit other persons to the meeting.

All shareholders and others with meeting rights under Dutch law are authorized to attend the General Meeting, to address the meeting and, in so far as they have such right, to vote pro rata to his or her shareholding. Shareholders may exercise these rights, if they are the holders of Ordinary Shares on the record date, if any, as required by Dutch law, which is currently the 28th day before the day of the General Meeting. Under the Articles, shareholders and others with meeting rights under Dutch law must notify Allego in writing or by electronic means of their identity and intention to attend the General Meeting. This notice must be received by Allego ultimately on the seventh day prior to the General Meeting, unless indicated otherwise when such meeting is convened.

Each Ordinary Share confers the right on the holder to cast one vote at the General Meeting. Shareholders may vote by proxy. No votes may be cast at a General Meeting on Ordinary Shares held by Allego or its

subsidiaries or on Ordinary Shares for which Allego or its subsidiaries hold depository receipts. Nonetheless, the holders of a right of usufruct (*vruchtgebruik*) and the holders of a right of pledge (*pandrecht*) in respect of Ordinary Shares held by Allego or its subsidiaries in its share capital are not excluded from the right to vote on such Ordinary Shares, if the right of usufruct (*vruchtgebruik*) or the right of pledge (*pandrecht*) was granted prior to the time such Ordinary Shares were acquired by Allego or any of its subsidiaries. Neither Allego nor any of its subsidiaries may cast votes in respect of an Ordinary Share on which Allego or such subsidiary holds a right of usufruct (*vruchtgebruik*) or a right of pledge (*pandrecht*). Ordinary Shares which are not entitled to voting rights pursuant to the preceding sentences will not be taken into account for the purpose of determining the number of shareholders that vote and that are present or represented, or the amount of the share capital that is provided or that is represented at a General Meeting.

Decisions of the General Meeting are taken by a simple majority of votes cast, except where Dutch law or the Articles provide for a qualified majority or unanimity.

Directors

Appointment of Directors

Allego's directors are appointed by the General Meeting upon binding nomination by the Board. However, the General Meeting may at all times overrule a binding nomination by a resolution adopted by at least a two-thirds majority of the votes cast, provided such majority represents more than half of the issued share capital. If the General Meeting overrules a binding nomination, the Board shall make a new nomination.

The Board adopted a diversity policy for the composition of the Board, as well as a profile for the composition of the Board. The Board shall make any nomination for the appointment of a director with due regard to the rules and principles set forth in such diversity policy and profile, as applicable.

At a General Meeting, a resolution to appoint a director can only be passed in respect of candidates whose names are stated for that purpose in the agenda of that General Meeting or in the explanatory notes thereto.

Duties and Liabilities of Directors

Under Dutch law, the Board is charged with the management of Allego, subject to the restrictions contained in the Articles. The executive directors manage Allego's day-to-day business and operations and implement Allego's strategy. The non-executive directors focus on the supervision on the policy and functioning of the performance of the duties of all directors and Allego's general state of affairs. The directors may divide their tasks among themselves in or pursuant to internal rules. Each director has a statutory duty to act in the corporate interest of Allego and its business. Under Dutch law, the corporate interest of the interests of all corporate stakeholders, such as shareholders, creditors, employees, customers and suppliers. The duty to act in the corporate interest of Allego also applies in the event of a proposed sale or break-up of Allego, provided that the circumstances generally dictate how such duty is to be applied and how the respective interests of various groups of stakeholders should be weighed.

Certain Other Major Transactions

The Articles and Dutch law provide that resolutions of the Board concerning a material change to the identity or the character of Allego or the business are subject to the approval of Allego shareholders at the General Meeting. Such changes include:

- transferring the business or materially all of the business to a third-party;
- entering into or terminating a long-lasting alliance of Allego or of a subsidiary either with another entity or company, or as a fully liable partner of a limited partnership or general partnership, if this alliance or termination is of significant importance for Allego; and

 acquiring or disposing of an interest in the capital of a company by Allego or by a subsidiary with a value of at least one third of the value of the assets, according to the balance sheet with explanatory notes or, if Allego prepares a consolidated balance sheet, according to the consolidated balance sheet with explanatory notes in Allego's most recently adopted annual accounts.

Dividends and Other Distributions

Dividends

Allego has never paid or declared any cash dividends in the past, and Allego does not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Allego intends to retain all available funds and any future earnings to fund the further development and expansion of its business. See the section entitled *"Market Information, Dividends and Related Shareholder Matters—Dividends"* for more information.

Exchange Controls

Under Dutch law, there are no exchange controls applicable to the transfer to persons outside of the Netherlands of dividends or other distributions with respect to, or of the proceeds from the sale of, shares of a Dutch company, subject to applicable restrictions under sanctions and measures, including those concerning export control, pursuant to European Union regulations, the Sanctions Act 1977 (*Sanctiewet 1977*) or other legislation, applicable antiboycott regulations, applicable anti-money-laundering regulations and similar rules and provided that, under circumstances, payments of such dividends or other distributions must be reported to the Dutch Central Bank at their request for statistical purposes. There are no special restrictions in the Articles or Dutch law that limit the right of shareholders who are not citizens or residents of the Netherlands to hold or vote shares.

Squeeze-Out Procedure

A shareholder who holds at least 95% of Allego's issued share capital for his or her own account, alone or together with group companies, may initiate proceedings against Allego's other shareholders jointly for the transfer of their Ordinary Shares to such shareholder. The proceedings are held before the Enterprise Chamber of the Amsterdam Court of Appeal, or the Enterprise Chamber (*Ondernemingskamer*), and can be instituted by means of a writ of summons served upon each of the other shareholders in accordance with the provisions of the Dutch Code of Civil Procedure (*Wetboek van Burgerlijke Rechtsvordering*). The Enterprise Chamber may grant the claim forsqueeze-out in relation to the other shareholders and will determine the price to be paid for the Ordinary Shares, if necessary, after appointment of one or three experts who will offer an opinion to the Enterprise Chamber on the value to be paid for the Ordinary Shares of the other shareholders. Once the order to transfer becomes final before the Enterprise Chamber, the person acquiring the shares shall give written notice of the date and place of payment and the price to the holders of the Ordinary Shares to be acquired whose addresses are known to him. Unless the addresses of all of them are known to the acquiring person, such person is required to publish the same in a daily newspaper with a national circulation.

Dissolution and Liquidation

Under the Articles, Allego may be dissolved by a resolution of the General Meeting, subject to a proposal of the Board. In the event of a dissolution, the liquidation shall be effected by the Board, unless the General Meeting decides otherwise. During liquidation, the provisions of the Articles will remain in force as far as possible. To the extent that any assets remain after payment of all of Allego's liabilities, any remaining assets shall be distributed to Allego's shareholders in proportion to their number of Ordinary Shares.

Federal Forum Provision

Under the Articles, unless Allego consents in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the sole and exclusive forum for any complaint asserting a cause of action arising under the Securities Act, or the Exchange

Table of Contents

Act, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, shall be the U.S. federal district courts. For further information regarding the limitations that the forum provision may impose and the uncertainty as to whether a court would enforce such provisions with respect to the Securities Act or the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder, see the section entitled "*Risk Factors*" in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange and any risk factors described in any applicable supplement to this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange, and in our SEC filings that are incorporated by reference in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange.

LEGAL MATTERS

Certain matters of U.S. federal and New York State law will be passed upon for us by Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP and for the dealer manager by Davis Polk & Wardwell LLP. The validity of the Ordinary Shares offered in this offering and other legal matters as to Dutch law will be passed upon for us by NautaDutilh N.V.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements of Allego N.V. appearing in the 2022 Form20-F as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 and for the years in the three year period ended December 31, 2022 have been audited by Ernst & Young Accountants LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, as set forth in their report thereon, included therein (which contains an explanatory paragraph describing a change in account principle as described in Note 2.7.23 to the consolidated financial statements), and incorporated herein by reference. Such consolidated financial statements are incorporated herein by reference in reliance upon such report given on the authority of such firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

ENFORCEABILITY OF CIVIL LIABILITIES

We are organized and existing under the laws of the Netherlands and, as such, Dutch private international law governs the rights of our shareholders and the civil liability of our directors and executive officers are governed in certain respects by the laws of the Netherlands. The ability of our shareholders in certain countries other than the Netherlands to bring an action against us or our directors and executive officers may be limited under applicable law. In addition, substantially all of our assets are located outside the United States.

As a result, it may not be possible for shareholders to effect service of process within the United States upon us or our directors and executive officers or to enforce judgments against us or them in U.S. courts, including judgments predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the federal securities laws of the United States. In addition, it is not clear whether a Dutch court would impose civil liability on us or any of our directors and executive officers in an original action based solely upon the federal securities laws of the United States brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in the Netherlands.

As of the date of this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange, there is no treaty in effect between the United States and the Netherlands providing for the reciprocal recognition and enforcement of judgments, other than arbitration awards, in civil and commercial matters. It is noted that, as of the date of this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange, the Hague Convention on Choice of Court Agreements of 30 June 2005 has entered into force for the Netherlands, but has not entered into force for the United States. The Hague Convention of 2 July 2019 on the Recognition and Enforcement of Foreign Judgments in Civil or Commercial Matters has not entered into force for either the Netherlands or the United States. Accordingly, a judgment rendered by a court in the United States, whether or not predicated solely upon U.S. securities laws, would not automatically be recognized and enforced by the competent Dutch courts. However, if a person has obtained a judgment rendered by a court in the United States that is enforceable under the laws of the United States court was based on a ground of jurisdiction that is generally acceptable according to international standards, (ii) the judgment by the United States court was rendered in legal proceedings that comply with the Dutch standards of proper administration of justice including sufficient safeguards (*behoorlijke rechtspleging*), (iii) binding effect of such judgment is not contrary to Dutch public order (*penhare orde*) and (iv) the judgment by the United States court is not incompatible with a decision rendered between the same parties by a Dutch court, or with a previous decision rendered between the same parties by a Dutch court, or with a previous decision rendered between the same parties by a foreign court in a dispute that concerns the same subject and is based on the same cause, provided that the previous decision qualifies for recognition in the Netherlands. However, even if such a United States judgment is given binding effect, a claim based on that judgment may still be rejecte

Based on the lack of a treaty as described above, U.S. investors may not be able to enforce against us or our directors, representatives or certain experts named herein who are residents of the Netherlands or countries other than the United States any judgments obtained in U.S. courts in civil and commercial matters, including judgments under the U.S. federal securities laws.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

Available Information

We have filed with the SEC a registration statement (including amendments and exhibits to the registration statement) on FormF-4 under the Securities Act. This Prospectus/Offer to Exchange, which is part of the registration statement, does not contain all of the information set forth in the registration statement and the exhibits and schedules to the registration statement. For further information, we refer you to the registration statement and the exhibits and schedules filed as part of the registration statement. If a document has been filed as an exhibit to the registration statement, we refer you to the copy of the document that has been filed. Each statement in this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange relating to a document filed as an exhibit is qualified in all respects by the filed exhibit.

We are subject to the informational requirements of the Exchange Act that are applicable to foreign private issuers. Accordingly, we are required to file or furnish reports and other information with the SEC, including annual reports on Form 20-F and current reports on Form 6-K. The SEC maintains an internet website at <u>http://www.sec.gov</u>, from which you can electronically access the registration statement and its materials.

As a foreign private issuer, we are exempt under the Exchange Act from, among other things, the rules prescribing the furnishing and content of proxy statements, and our executive officers and directors are exempt from the reporting and short-swing profit recovery provisions contained in Section 16 of the Exchange Act. In addition, we will not be required under the Exchange Act to file periodic reports and financial statements with the SEC as frequently or as promptly as U.S. companies whose securities are registered under the Exchange Act.

Incorporation by Reference

The SEC's rules allow us to "incorporate by reference" information into this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange, which means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to another document filed separately with the SEC. The information incorporated by reference is considered to be part of this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange and any applicable prospectus supplement, and later information that we file with the SEC will automatically update and supersede this information. This Prospectus/Offer to Exchange and any applicable prospectus supplement incorporate by reference the documents set forth below that have previously been filed with the SEC (other than those documents or the portions of those documents that are "furnished" unless otherwise specified below):

- our annual report on Form 20-F for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 filed with the SEC on May 16, 2023;
- our current report on Form 6-K furnished with the SEC on July 3, 2023;
- our current report on Form 6-K furnished with the SEC on August 24, 2023 (other than Exhibit 99.1 thereto); and
- the description of the securities contained in our registration statement on <u>Form 8-A</u> filed on March 17, 2022 pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act, together with all amendments and reports filed for the purpose of updating that description.

In addition, any other reports on Form 6-K that we subsequently furnish to the SEC pursuant to the Exchange Act prior to the termination of an offering made pursuant to this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange, but excluding any information furnished to, rather than filed with, the SEC, will also be incorporated by reference into this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange (if they state that they are incorporated by reference into this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange (if they state that they are incorporated by reference into this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange) and deemed to be part of this registration statement from the date of the filing of such documents.

FORM OF WARRANT AMENDMENT AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO WARRANT AGREEMENT

This Amendment (this "*Amendment*") is made as of , 2023, by and between Allego N.V., public limited liability company *(naamloze vennootschap)* formed under the laws of the Netherlands (formerly Athena Pubco B.V.) (the "*Company*"), and Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, a New York corporation, as warrant agent ("*Continental*"), and constitutes an amendment to the Warrant Agreement, dated as of February 8, 2021, by and between the Spartan Acquisition Corp. III ("*Spartan*") and Continental, as assumed by the Company pursuant to the Warrant Assumption Agreement, dated as of March 16, 2022, by and among the Company, Spartan and Continental (as assumed, the "*Existing Warrant Agreement*"). Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined in this Amendment shall have the meanings given to such terms in the Existing Warrant Agreement.

WHEREAS, on March 16, 2022, the Company completed its business combination with Spartan (the 'Business Combination''),

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 4.4 of the Existing Warrant Agreement, upon effectiveness of the Business Combination, the Registered Holders of the Warrants thereafter had the right to purchase and receive, upon the basis and upon the terms and conditions specified in the Warrants and in lieu of shares of the common stock of Spartan immediately theretofore purchasable and receivable upon the exercise of the rights represented thereby, an Alternative Issuance (as defined in the Existing Warrant Agreement) in ordinary shares of the Company, each with a nominal value $\in 0.12$ per share (the "*Ordinary Shares*");

WHEREAS, Section 9.8 of the Existing Warrant Agreement provides that the Company and the Warrant Agent may amend, subject to certain conditions provided therein, the Existing Warrant Agreement with the vote or written consent of Registered Holders of 50% of the number of the then outstanding Public Warrants;

WHEREAS, on April 20, 2022, a permitted transferee of Spartan Acquisition Sponsor III LLC, the Company's sponsor, exercised all of the warrants that were private placement warrants on a cashless basis. As a result of the exercise, on April 23, 2022, all of the outstanding private placement warrants were surrendered and the underlying Ordinary Shares were issued;

WHEREAS, the Company desires to amend the Existing Warrant Agreement to provide the Company with the right to require the Registered Holders of the Warrants to exchange all of the outstanding Warrants for Ordinary Shares, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, in the exchange offer and consent solicitation undertaken by the Company pursuant to the Registration Statement on FormF-4 filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, the Registered Holders of more than 50% of the number of the then outstanding Public Warrants.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties hereto agree to amend the Existing Warrant Agreement as set forth herein.

1. Amendment of Existing Warrant Agreement. The Existing Warrant Agreement is hereby amended by adding:

(a) the new Section 6A thereto:

"6A Mandatory Exchange.

6A.1 Company Election to Exchange. Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement to the contrary, all (and not less than all) of the outstanding Warrants may be exchanged, at the option of the Company,

at any time while they are exercisable and prior to their expiration, at the office of the Warrant Agent, upon notice to the Registered Holders of the then outstanding Warrants, as described in Section 6A.2 below, for Ordinary Shares (or any Alternative Issuance pursuant to Section 4.4), at the exchange rate of 0.207 Ordinary Shares (or any Alternative Issuance pursuant to Section 4.4 for each Warrant held by the Registered Holder thereof (the "*Consideration*") (subject to equitable adjustment by the Company in the event of any share splits, share dividends, recapitalizations or similar transaction with respect to the Ordinary Shares). In lieu of issuing fractional shares, any Registered Holder of Warrants who would otherwise have been entitled to receive fractional shares as Consideration will, after aggregating all such fractional shares of such Registered Holder, receive one additional whole Ordinary Share in lieu of such fractional shares.

6A.2 Date Fixed for, and Notice of, Exchange. In the event that the Company elects to exchange all of the Warrants, the Company shall fix a date for the exchange (the "*Exchange Date*"). Notice of exchange shall be mailed by first class mail, postage prepaid, by the Company not less than fifteen (15) days prior to the Exchange Date to the Registered Holders at their last addresses as they shall appear on the registration books. Any notice mailed in the manner herein provided shall be conclusively presumed to have been duly given whether or not the Registered Holder received such notice. The Company will make a public announcement of its election following the mailing of such notice.

6A.3 Exercise After Notice of Exchange. The Warrants may be exercised, for cash at any time after notice of exchange shall have been given by the Company pursuant to Section 6A.2 hereof and prior to the Exchange Date. On and after the Exchange Date, the Registered Holder of the Warrants shall have no further rights except to receive, upon surrender of the Warrants, the Consideration."

2. Miscellaneous Provisions.

- 2.1 Severability. This Amendment shall be deemed severable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of any term or provision hereof shall not affect the validity or enforceability of this Amendment or of any other term or provision hereof. Furthermore, in lieu of any such invalid or unenforceable term or provision, the parties hereto intend that there shall be added as a part of this Amendment a provision as similar in terms to such invalid or unenforceable provision as may be possible and be valid and enforceable.
- 2.2 Applicable Law. The validity, interpretation, and performance of this Amendment and of the Warrants shall be governed in all respects by the laws of the State of New York, without giving effect to conflicts of law principles that would result in the application of the substantive laws of another jurisdiction. The Company hereby agrees that any action, proceeding or claim against it arising out of or relating in any way to this Amendment shall be brought and enforced in the courts of the State of New York or the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York, and irrevocably submits to such jurisdiction, which jurisdiction shall be exclusive forum for such action, proceeding or claim. The Company hereby waives any objection to such exclusive jurisdiction and that such courts represent an inconvenient forum. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the provisions of this paragraph will not apply to suits brought to enforce any liability or duty created by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or any other claim for which the federal district courts of the United States of America are the sole and exclusive forum.
- 2.3 Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts (which may include counterparts delivered by any standard form of telecommunication) and each of such counterparts shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original, and all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument. The words "execution," "signed," "signature," and words of like import in this Amendment or in any other certificate, agreement or document related to this Amendment, if any, shall include images of manually executed signatures transmitted by facsimile or other electronic format (including, without limitation, "pdf," "tiff" or "jpg") and other electronic signatures (including, without limitation, DocuSign and AdobeSign). The use of electronic signatures and electronic records

(including, without limitation, any contract or other record created, generated, sent, communicated, received, or stored by electronic means) shall be of the same legal effect, validity and enforceability as a manually executed signature or use of a paper-based record-keeping system to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, including the Federal Electronic Signatures in Global and National Commerce Act, the New York State Electronic Signatures and Records Act and any other applicable law, including, without limitation, any state law based on the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act or the Uniform Commercial Code.

- 2.4 Effect of Headings. The section headings herein are for convenience only and are not part of this Amendment and shall not affect the interpretation thereof.
- 2.5 Entire Agreement. The Existing Warrant Agreement, as modified by this Amendment, constitutes the entire understanding of the parties and supersedes all prior agreements, understandings, arrangements, promises and commitments, whether written or oral, express or implied, relating to the subject matter hereof, and all such prior agreements, understandings, arrangements, promises and commitments are hereby canceled and terminated.

[Signature Pages Follow]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties has caused this Amendment to be duly executed as of the date first above written.

ALLEGO N.V.

By:

Name: Title:

CONTINENTAL STOCK TRANSFER & TRUST COMPANY,

as Warrant Agent

By:

Name: Title:

Allego N.V.

Offer to Exchange Warrants to Acquire Ordinary Shares

of

Allego N.V. for Ordinary Shares of Allego N.V. and Consent Solicitation

PRELIMINARY PROSPECTUS

The exchange agent for the Offer and the Consent Solicitation is:

Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company Attn: Corporate Actions 1 State Street, 30th Floor, New York, New York 10004

Any questions or requests for assistance may be directed to the dealer manager at the address and telephone number set forth below. Requests for additional copies of this Prospectus/Offer to Exchange may be directed to the information agent. Beneficial owners may also contact their custodian for assistance concerning the Offer and Consent Solicitation.

The information agent for the Offer and Consent Solicitation is:

D.F. King & Co., Inc. 48 Wall Street, New York, NY 10005 Bank and Brokers Call Collect: (212) 269-5550 All Others, Please Call Toll-Free: (800) 967-7635 allego@dfking.com

The dealer manager for the Offer and the Consent Solicitation is:

BofA Securities, Inc. One Bryant Park New York, New York 10036

PART II

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

Item 20. Indemnification of Directors and Officers.

Under Dutch law, our executive directors and non-executive directors may be held liable for damages in the event of improper or negligent performance of their duties. They may be held liable for damages to our company and to third-parties for infringement of our Articles or of certain provisions of Dutch law. In certain circumstances, they may also incur other specific civil and criminal liabilities. Subject to certain exceptions, the Articles provide for indemnification of our current and former directors and other current and former officers and employees as designated by the Board. No indemnification under the Articles shall be given to an indemnified person:

- if a competent court or arbitral tribunal has established, without having (or no longer having) the possibility for appeal, that the acts or
 omissions of such indemnified person that led to the financial losses, damages, expenses, suit, claim, action or legal proceedings as described
 above are of an unlawful nature (including acts or omissions which are considered to constitute malice, gross negligence, intentional
 recklessness and/or serious culpability attributable to such indemnified person);
- to the extent that his or her financial losses, damages and expenses are covered under insurance and the relevant insurer has settled, or has
 provided reimbursement for, these financial losses, damages and expenses (or has irrevocably undertaken to do so);
- in relation to proceedings brought by such indemnified person against our company, except for proceedings brought to enforce
 indemnification to which he is entitled pursuant to our Articles, pursuant to an agreement between such indemnified person and our company
 which has been approved by our Board or pursuant to insurance taken out by our company for the benefit of such indemnified person; and
- · for any financial losses, damages or expenses incurred in connection with a settlement of any proceedings effected without our prior consent.

Under the Articles, the Board may stipulate additional terms, conditions and restrictions in relation to the indemnification described above.

The indemnification rights set forth above shall not be exclusive of any other right which an indemnified person may have or hereafter acquire under any statute, provision of the Articles, agreement, vote of shareholders or disinterested directors or otherwise.

Allego maintains standard policies of insurance that provide coverage (1) to its directors and officers against loss arising from claims made by reason of breach of duty or other wrongful act and (2) to Allego with respect to indemnification payments that it may make to such directors and officers.

Item 21. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) Exhibits

The exhibits filed as part of this Registration Statement are listed in the index to exhibits immediately following the signature page to this Registration Statement, which index to exhibits is incorporated herein by reference.

Exhibit Number	Description
2.1	Business Combination Agreement, dated as of July 28, 2021, by and among Spartan, Allego, Madeleine, Allego Holding, Athena Merger Sub, Inc. and E8-Investor (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 filed with Spartan's Current Report on Form8-K filed by Spartan on July 28, 2021)**
2.2	Amendment to Business Combination Agreement and Plan of Reorganization, dated as of February 28, 2022, by and among Spartan, Allego Holding, Madeleine Charging, Allego, Athena Merger Sub, Inc. and E8 Investor (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 filed with Spartan's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 28, 2022)**
2.3	Second Amendment to Business Combination Agreement and Plan of Reorganization, dated as of March 8, 2022, by and among Spartan, Allego Holding, Madeleine Charging, Allego, Athena Merger Sub, Inc. and E8 Investor (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.3 filed with Spartan's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 9, 2022)**
3.1	English translation of Deed of Conversion and Amendment of the Articles of Association of Allego (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to Allego N.V.'s Form 20-F (File No. 001-41329) filed with the SEC on March 22, 2022)**
4.1	Warrant Agreement, dated as of February 8, 2021, by and between Spartan and Continental Stock & Trust Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 filed with Spartan's Current Report on Form 8-K filed by Spartan on February 12, 2021)**
4.2	Warrant Assumption Agreement, dated as of March 16, 2022, among Spartan Acquisition Corp. III, Athena Pubco B.V. and Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as Warrant Agent. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Allego N.V.'s Form 20-F (File No. 001-41329) filed with the SEC on March 22, 2022)**
5.1	Opinion of NautaDutilh N.V. as to the validity of Ordinary Shares
8.1	Tax Opinion of Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP as to U.S. tax matters
10.1	Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of March 16, 2022, by and among Allego, Sponsor, Madeleine Charging, E8 Investor and certain other holders thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Allego N.V.'s Form 20-F (File No. 001-41329) filed with the SEC on March 22, 2022)**
10.2	Form of Subscription Agreement, dated as of July 28, 2021, by and between Spartan, Athena Pubco B.V., and the Subscriber party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4 filed with Spartan's Current Report on Form 8-K filed by Spartan on July 28, 2021)**
10.3	Letter Agreement, dated February 8, 2021, by and among Spartan, its officers and directors and its Sponsor (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Spartan's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-40022) filed with the SEC on February 12, 2021)**
10.4	Amendment No. 1 to Letter Agreement, dated July 28, 2021, by and among Spartan, its Sponsor and the other individuals party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Spartan's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-40022) filed with the SEC on July 28, 2021)**

Table of Contents

Exhibit Number	Description
10.5	Performance Fee Agreement, dated as of December 16, 2020, by and between Madeleine and E8 Investors, with Novation contract signed on August 10, 2021 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Allego's Form F-4 (File No. 333-259916) filed with the SEC on September 30, 2021)**
10.6	Amended and Restated Facility Agreement, dated as of December 13, 2022, by and among Allego N.V. as borrower, Société Générale as structuring bank, and other parties and lenders (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 of Allego N.V.'s Form 6-K filed with the SEC on December 20, 2022)**
10.7	Allego Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 of Allego's FormF-4 (File No. 333-259916) filed with the SEC on September 30, 2021)**
10.8	Second Special Fee Agreement, dated as of February 25, 2022, by and between Madeleine and E8 Investors, with Novation contract signed on May 5, 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Allego N.V.'s Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to Form F-1 (File No. 333-264056) filed with the SEC on September 30, 2022)**
10.9	Form of Dealer Manager Agreement
10.10	Form of Tender and Support Agreement by and between the Company and the participating Warrant holders
21.1	List of Subsidiaries of Allego N.V. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to Allego N.V.'s Post-Effective Amendment to FormF-1 Registration Statement (File No. 333-264056) filed with the SEC on September 30, 2022).**
23.1	Consent of Ernst & Young Accountants LLP
23.2	Consent of NautaDutilh N.V. (included as part of Exhibit 5.1)
23.3	Consent of Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP (included as part of Exhibit 8.1)
24.1	Power of Attorney (included in the signature page to this Form F-4 Registration Statement)
99.1	Form of Notice of Guaranteed Delivery
107	Filing Fee Table

** Previously filed.

Item 22. Undertakings.

- (a) The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes:
 - (1) To file, during any period during which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration statement:
 - (i) to include any prospectus required by section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;
 - (ii) to reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in the registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the SEC pursuant to Rule 424(b) (§230.424(b) of this chapter) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than 20% change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the "Calculation of Registration Fee" table in the effective registration statement; and
 - (iii) to include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the registration statement or any material change to such information in the registration statement.
 - (2) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
 - (3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the termination of the offering.
 - (4) That, for the purpose of determining liability under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser, each prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) as part of a registration statement relating to an offering, other than registration statements relying on Rule 430B or other than prospectuses filed in reliance on Rule 430A, shall be deemed to be part of and included in the registration statement as of the date it is first used after effectiveness. Provided, however, that no statement made in a registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement will, as to a purchaser with a time of contract of sale prior to such first use, supersede or modify any statement that was made in the registration statement or prospectus that was part of the registration statement or made in any such document immediately prior to such date of first use.
 - (5) That, for the purpose of determining liability of the registrant under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser in the initial distribution of the securities, the undersigned registrant undertakes that in a primary offering of securities of the undersigned registrant pursuant to this registration statement, regardless of the underwriting method used to sell the securities to the purchaser, if the securities are offered or sold to such purchaser by means of any of the following communications, the undersigned registrant will be a seller to the purchaser and will be considered to offer or sell such securities to such purchaser:
 - (i) Any preliminary prospectus or prospectus of the undersigned registrant relating to the offering required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424;
 - Any free writing prospectus relating to the offering prepared by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant or used or referred to by the undersigned registrant;
 - (iii) The portion of any other free writing prospectus relating to the offering containing material information about the undersigned registrant or its securities provided by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant; and
(iv) Any other communication that is an offer in the offering made by the undersigned registrant to the purchaser.

- (b) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to supply by means of a post-effective amendment all information concerning a transaction, and the company being acquired involved therein, that was not the subject of and included in the registration statement when it became effective.
- (c) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.
- (d) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes (i) to respond to requests for information that is incorporated by reference into the prospectus pursuant to Items 4, 10(b), 11, or 13 of this Form, within one business day of receipt of such request, and to send the incorporated documents by first class mail or other equally prompt means; and (ii) to arrange or provide for a facility in the U.S. for the purpose of responding to such requests. The undertaking in subparagraph (i) above includes information contained in documents filed subsequent to the effective date of the registration statement through the date of responding to the request.

II-5

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form F-4 has duly caused this registration statement on FormF-4 to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in Hague, the Netherlands on August 25, 2023.

ALLEGO N.V.

By: /s/ Mathieu Bonnet

Name: Mathieu Bonnet Title: Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below hereby constitutes and appoints Mathieu Bonnet and Ton Louwers, and each of them, his or her true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, each with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments, including post-effective amendments, to this registration statement, and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done, as fully for all intents and purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of said attorneys in-fact and agents, or his or her substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature	Title	Date
/s/ Mathieu Bonnet Mathieu Bonnet	Chief Executive Officer and Director (principal executive officer)	August 25, 2023
/s/ Ton Louwers Ton Louwers	Chief Financial Officer (principal financial and accounting officer)	August 25, 2023
/s/ Jane Garvey Jane Garvey	Chair of the Board of Directors	August 25, 2023
/s/ Julien Touati Julien Touati	Vice-Chair of the Board of Directors	August 25, 2023
/s/ Julia Prescot Julia Prescot	Director	August 25, 2023
/s/ Christian Vollmann Christian Vollmann	Director	August 25, 2023
/s/ Thomas Josef Maier Thomas Josef Maier	Director	August 25, 2023

II-6

Table of Contents

Signature	Title	Date
/s/ Patrick Sullivan Patrick Sullivan	Director	August 25, 2023
/s/ Ronald Stroman Ronald Stroman	Director	August 25, 2023
/s/ Thierry Déau Thierry Déau	Director	August 25, 2023

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED U.S. REPRESENTATIVE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the undersigned, the duly authorized representative in the United States of Allego N.V. has signed this registration statement on Form F-4 on August 25, 2023.

ALLEGO N.V.

By: /s/ Benjamin Goldberg

 Name:
 Benjamin Goldberg

 Title:
 Authorized Representative in the United States

II-8

ATTORNEYS • CIVIL LAW NOTARIES • TAX ADVISERS

NautaDutilh

Amsterdam, 25 August 2023.

P.O. Box 7113 1007 JC Amsterdam Beethovenstraat 400 1082 PR Amsterdam T +31 20 71 71 000 F +31 20 71 71 111

To the Company:

We have acted as legal counsel as to Dutch law to the Company in connection with the Exchange Offer and the filing of the Registration Statement with the SEC. This opinion letter is rendered to you in order to be filed with the SEC as an exhibit to the Registration Statement.

Capitalised terms used in this opinion letter have the meanings set forth in Exhibit A to this opinion letter. The section headings used in this opinion letter are for convenience of reference only and are not to affect its construction or to be taken into consideration in its interpretation.

This opinion letter is strictly limited to the matters stated in it and may not be read as extending by implication to any matters not specifically referred to in it. Nothing in this opinion letter should be taken as expressing an opinion in respect of any representations or warranties, or other information, contained in any document reviewed by us in connection with this opinion letter.

In rendering the opinions expressed in this opinion letter, we have reviewed and relied upon a draft of the Deed of Issue, a draft of the Registration Statement and pdf copies or drafts, as the case may be, of the Corporate Documents and we have assumed that the Deed of Issue shall be entered into for bona fide commercial reasons. We have not investigated or verified any factual matter disclosed to us in the course of our review.

AmsterdamThis opinion letter sets out our opinion on certain matters of the laws with general applicability of the Netherlands, and,
insofar as they are directly applicable in the Netherlands, of the European Union, as at today's date and as presently
interpreted under published authoritative case law of the Dutch courts, the General Court and the Court of Justice of the
European Union. We do not express any opinion on Dutch or European competition law, data protection law, tax law,
securitisation law or regulatory law. No undertaking is assumed on our part to revise, update or amend this opinion letter in
connection with, or to notify or inform you of, any developments and/or changes of Dutch law subsequent to today's date.
We do not purport to opine on the consequences of amendments to the Deed of Issue, the Registration Statement or the
Corporate Documents subsequent to the date of this opinion letter.Rotterdam

All legal relationships are subject to NautaDutilh N.V.'s general terms and conditions (see https://www.nautadutilh.com/terms), which apply mutatis mutandis to our relationship with third parties relying on statements of NautaDutilh N.V., include a limitation of liability clause, have been filed with the Rotterdam District Court and will be provided free of charge upon request. NautaDutilh N.V.; corporate seat Rotterdam; trade register no. 24338323.

NautaDutilh

The opinions expressed in this opinion letter are to be construed and interpreted in accordance with Dutch law. The competent courts at Amsterdam, the Netherlands, have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any issues of interpretation or liability arising out of or in connection with this opinion letter. Any legal relationship arising out of or in connection with this opinion letter. Any legal relationship arising out of or in connection with this opinion letter. Any legal relationship arising out of or in connection with this opinion letter (whether contractual or non-contractual), including the above submission to jurisdiction, is governed by Dutch law and shall be subject to the general terms and conditions of NautaDutilh. Any liability arising out of or in connection with this opinion letter shall be limited to the amount which is paid out under NautaDutilh's insurance policy in the matter concerned. No person other than NautaDutilh may be held liable in connection with this opinion letter.

In this opinion letter, legal concepts are expressed in English terms. The Dutch legal concepts concerned may not be identical in meaning to the concepts described by the English terms as they exist under the law of other jurisdictions. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency, the relevant expression shall be deemed to refer only to the Dutch legal concepts described by the English terms.

For the purposes of this opinion letter, we have assumed that:

- a. drafts of documents reviewed by us will be signed in the form of those drafts, each copy of a document conforms to the original, each original is authentic, and each signature is the genuine signature of the individual purported to have placed that signature;
- b. if any signature under any document is an electronic signature (as opposed to a handwritten ("wet ink") signature) only, it is either a qualified electronic signature within the meaning of the eIDAS Regulation, or the method used for signing is otherwise sufficiently reliable;
- c. the Registration Statement has been or will be declared effective by the SEC in the form reviewed by us;

2

d. at the Relevant Moment, (i) Ordinary Shares shall have been admitted for trading on a trading system outside the European Economic Area comparable to a regulated market or a multilateral trading facility as referred to in Section 2:86c(1) DCC and (ii) no financial instruments issued by the Company (or depository receipts for or otherwise representing such financial instruments) have been admitted to trading on a regulated market, multilateral trading facility or organised trading facility operating in the European Economic Area (and no request for admission of any such financial instruments to trading on any such trading venue has been made);

- e. (i) no internal regulations (*reglementen*) have been adopted by any corporate body of the Company which would affect the validity of the resolutions recorded in the Resolutions and (ii) the Articles of Association are the Company's articles of association in force at the Relevant Moment;
- f. (i) at the Relevant Moment, the resolutions recorded in the Resolutions shall be in full force and effect, (ii) at the Relevant Moment, the factual statements made and the confirmations given in the Resolutions and in the Deed of Issue shall be complete and correct and (iii) the Resolutions correctly reflect the resolutions recorded therein;
- g. at the Relevant Moment, the authorised share capital (*maatschappelijk kapitaal*) of the Company shall allow for the issuance of the Exchange Shares;
- at the Relevant Moment, the Company's equity (*eigen vermogen*) and in particular the share premium reserve recognized for Dutch dividend withholding tax purposes (*fiscaal erkend agio*) of the Company shall allow for the aggregate nominal value of the Exchange Shares to be charged against such share premium reserve in accordance with the relevant Resolutions;
- i. at the Relevant Moment, the Deed of Issue shall have been validly signed and executed on behalf of the Company; and
- j. the issuance of Exchange Shares, to the extent made in the Netherlands, has been, is and will be made in conformity with the Prospectus Regulation and the rules promulgated thereunder.

Based upon and subject to the foregoing and subject to the qualifications set forth in this opinion letter and to any matters, documents or events not disclosed to us, we express the following opinions:

Corporate Status

1. The Company has been duly incorporated as a *besloten vennootschap met beperkte aansprakelijkheid* and is validly existing as a *naamloze vennootschap*.

Exchange Shares

2. When issued and accepted in accordance with the Resolutions and the Deed of Issue, the Exchange Shares shall be validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable.

3

NautaDutilh

4

The opinions expressed above are subject to the following qualifications:

- A. Opinion 1 must not be read to imply that the Company cannot be dissolved (*ntbonden*). A company such as the Company may be dissolved, inter alia by the competent court at the request of the company's board of directors, any interested party (*belanghebbende*) or the public prosecution office in certain circumstances, such as when there are certain defects in the incorporation of the company. Any such dissolution will not have retro-active effect.
- B. Pursuant to Section 2:7 DCC, any transaction entered into by a legal entity may be nullified by the legal entity itself or its liquidator in bankruptcy proceedings (*curator*) if the objects of that entity were transgressed by the transaction and the other party to the transaction knew or should have known this without independent investigation (*wist of zonder eigen onderzoek moest weten*). The Dutch Supreme Court (*Hoge Raad der Nederlanden*) has ruled that in determining whether the objects of a legal entity are transgressed, not only the description of the objects in that legal entity's articles of association (*statuten*) is decisive, but all (relevant) circumstances must be taken into account, in particular whether the interests of the legal entity were served by the transaction. Based on the objects clause contained in the Articles of Association, we have no reason to believe that, by entering into the Deed of Issue, the Company would transgress the description of the objects contained in its Articles of Association. However, we cannot assess whether there are other relevant circumstances that must be taken into account, in particular whether the interests of the objects contained in its Articles of Association. However, we cannot assess whether there are other relevant circumstances that must be taken into account, in particular whether the interests of the Company are served by entering into the Deed of Issue structures that must be taken into account, in particular whether the interests of the Company are served by entering into the Deed of Issue structures that must be taken into account, in particular whether the interests of the Company are served by entering into the Deed of Issue structures that must be taken into account.
- C. Pursuant to Section 2:98c DCC, a company such as the Company may grant loans (*eningen verstrekken*) only in accordance with the restrictions set out in Section 2:98c DCC, and may not provide security (*zekerheid stellen*), give a price guarantee (*koersgarantie geven*) or otherwise bind itself, whether jointly and severally or otherwise with or for third parties (*zich op andere wijze sterk maken of zich hoofdelijk of anderszins naast of voor anderen verbinden*) with a view to (*met het oog op*) the subscription or acquisition by third parties of shares in its share capital or depository receipts. This prohibition also applies to its subsidiaries (*dochtervennootschappen*). It is generally assumed that a transaction entered into in violation of Section 2:98c DCC is null and void (*nietig*). Based on the content of the Deed of Issue, we have no reason to believe that the Company or its subsidiaries will violate Section 2:98c DCC in connection with the issue of the Exchange Shares. However, we cannot confirm this definitively, since the determination of whether a company (or a subsidiary) has provided security, has given a price guarantee or has otherwise bound itself, with a view to the subscription or acquisition by third parties of shares in its share capital or depository receipts, as described above, is a matter of fact.

NautaDutilh

- D. The opinions expressed in this opinion letter may be limited or affected by:
 - rules relating to Insolvency Proceedings or similar proceedings under a foreign law and other rules affecting creditors' rights generally;
 - b. the provisions of fraudulent preference and fraudulent conveyance (*Actio Pauliana*) and similar rights available in other jurisdictions to insolvency practitioners and insolvency office holders in bankruptcy proceedings or creditors;
 - c. claims based on tort (onrechtmatige daad);
 - d. sanctions and measures, including but not limited to those concerning export control, pursuant to European Union regulations, under the Dutch Sanctions Act 1977 (*Sanctiewet 1977*) or other legislation;
 - e. the Anti-Boycott Regulation, Anti Money Laundering Laws and related legislation;
 - f. any intervention, recovery or resolution measure by any regulatory or other authority or governmental body in relation to financial enterprises or their affiliated entities; and
 - g. the rules of force majeure (*niet toerekenbare tekortkoming*), reasonableness and fairness (*redelijkheid en billijkheid*), suspension (*opschorting*), dissolution (*ontbinding*), unforeseen circumstances (*onvoorziene omstandigheden*) and vitiated consent (i.e., duress (*bedreiging*), fraud (*bedrog*), abuse of circumstances (*misbruik van omstandigheden*) and error (*dwaling*)) or a difference of intention (*wil*) and declaration (*verklaring*).
- E. The term "non-assessable" has no equivalent in the Dutch language and for purposes of this opinion letter such term should be interpreted to mean that a holder of an Ordinary Share shall not by reason of merely being such a holder be subject to assessment or calls by the Company or its creditors for further payment on such Ordinary Share.

5

• NautaDutilh

F. This opinion letter does not purport to express any opinion or view on the operational rules and procedures of any clearing or settlement system or agency.

We consent to the filing of this opinion letter as an exhibit to the Registration Statement and also consent to the reference to NautaDutilh in the Registration Statement under the caption "Legal Matters". In giving this consent we do not admit or imply that we are a person whose consent is required under Section 7 of the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or any rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

Sincerely yours,

/s/ NautaDutilh N.V. NautaDutilh N.V.

• NautaDutilh

EXHIBIT A

LIST OF DEFINITIONS

"Anti Money Laundering Laws"	The European Anti-Money Laundering Directives, as implemented in the Netherlands in the Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing Prevention Act (<i>Wet ter voorkoming van witwassen en financieren van terrorisme</i>) and the Dutch Criminal Code (<i>Wetboek van Strafrecht</i>).
"Anti-Boycott Regulation"	Council Regulation (EC) No 2271/96 of 22 November 1996 on protecting against the effects of the extra-territorial application of legislation adopted by a third country, and actions based thereon or resulting therefrom.
"Articles of Association"	The Company's articles of association (statuten) as contained in the Deed of Conversion.
"Bankruptcy Code"	The Dutch Bankruptcy Code (Faillissementswet).
"Board"	The Company's board of directors (bestuur).
"Commercial Register"	The Dutch Commercial Register (handelsregister).
"Company"	Allego N.V., a public company with limited liability (naamloze vennootschap), registered with the Commercial Register under number 82985537.
"Consent Solicitation"	The soliciting of consents by the Company from holders of Warrants to amend the Spartan Warrant Agreement to make certain amendments to the terms of the Warrants as described in the Registration Statement.
"Corporate Documents"	The Deed of Incorporation, the Deed of Conversion, the Articles of Association and the Resolutions.
	7

	• NautaDutilh
"DCC"	The Dutch Civil Code (Burgerlijk Wetboek).
"Deed of Conversion"	The deed of conversion and amendment to the Company's articles of association as they read at that time dated March 16, 2022.
"Deed of Incorporation"	The Company's deed of incorporation (akte van oprichting) dated June 3, 2021.
"Deed of Issue"	The private deed of issue of the Exchange Shares prepared by us with reference 82045354 M 53217963.
"eIDAS Regulation"	Regulation (EU) No 910/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23 July 2014 on electronic identification and trust services for electronic transactions in the internal market and repealing Directive 1999/93/EC.
"Exchange Offer"	The offer by the Company to the holders of Warrants to exchange their respective Warrants for Ordinary Shares as described in the Registration Statement, together with the related Consent Solicitation.
"Exchange Shares"	Up to 3,173,989 Ordinary Shares to be issued in connection with the Exchange Offer.
"General Meeting"	The Company's general meeting (algemene vergadering).
"Insolvency Proceedings"	Any insolvency proceedings within the meaning of Regulation (EU) 2015/848 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 May 2015 on insolvency proceedings (recast), as amended by Regulation (EU) 2021/2260 of the European Parliament and of the Counsel of 15 December 2021, listed in Annex A thereto and any statutory proceedings for the restructuring of debts (<i>akkoordprocedure</i>) pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code.
	8

	NautaDutilh
"NautaDutilh"	NautaDutilh N.V.
"the Netherlands"	The European territory of the Kingdom of the Netherlands and " Dutch " is in or from the Netherlands.
"Ordinary Shares"	Ordinary shares in the Company's capital, with a nominal value of EUR 0.12 each.
"Prospectus Regulation"	Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 14 June 2017 on the prospectus to be published when securities are offered to the public or admitted to trading on a regulated market, and repealing Directive 2003/71/EC.
"Registration Statement"	The Company's registration statement on Form F-4 filed or to be filed with the SEC in connection with the Exchange Offer in the form reviewed by us.
"Relevant Moment"	The moment when Exchange Shares are issued pursuant to the execution of the Deed of Issue.
"Resolutions"	Each of the following:
	a. the written resolutions of the Board, dated August 24, 2023, and the draft written resolution of the Board prepared by us with reference 82045354 M 53245050; and
	b. the written resolution of the General Meeting, dated March 16, 2022.
"SEC"	The United States Securities and Exchange Commission.
"Spartan Warrant Agreement"	The warrant agreement dated February 8, 2021, by and between Spartan Acquisition Corp. III and Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as amended by means of the Warrant Assumption Agreement and assumed by the Company.

• NautaDutilh

"Warrant Assumption Agreement"

"Warrants"

The warrant assumption agreement dated March 16, 2022, by and between Spartan Acquisition Corp. III, the Company and Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company.

The rights, in the form of warrants, which have been granted pursuant to the Spartan Warrant Agreement and certain resolutions of the Company dated March 16, 2022, which entitle the holders thereof, upon exercise thereof in accordance with their terms, to acquire Ordinary Shares.

Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLF

2001 M Street, NW Suite 600 Washington, DC 20036 +1 202 682 7000 tel +1 202 857 0940 fax

August 25, 2023

Allego N.V. Mathieu Bonnet, Chief Executive Officer Westervoortsedijk 73 KB 6827 AV Arnhem, the Netherlands +31 (0) 88 033 3033

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have acted as U.S. tax counsel to Allego, N.V., a public limited liability company (naamloze vennootschap) organized under the laws of the Netherlands (the "Issuer"), in connection with (a) the offer to exchange (the 'Exchange Offer") by the Issuer, any and all of the Issuer's outstanding warrants (the "Warrants") to purchase the Issuer's ordinary shares, nominal value of $\in 0.12$ per share (the 'Ordinary Shares"), that were issued under the Warrant Agreement, dated as of February 8, 2021, by and between Spartan Acquisition Corp. III and Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as warrant agent, as assumed by the Issuer pursuant to the Warrant Assumption Agreement, dated as of March 16, 2022, by and among the Issuer, Spartan Acquisition Corp. III and Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company (as assumed, the "Warrant Agreement") in exchange for Ordinary Shares, and (b) the solicitation of consents from the holders of the Warrants to certain proposed amendments to the Warrant Agreement (the "Consent Solicitation"). The Exchange Offer and Consent Solicitation are being made pursuant to a registration statement on Form F-4 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Act"), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission") on August 25, 2023 (the "Registration Statement") and a preliminary prospectus and offer to exchange dated August 25, 2023 (the "Preliminary Prospectus and Offer to Exchange"), filed as an exhibit to the Issuer's Schedule TO, dated August 25, 2023, filed with the Commission. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the meaning given to such terms in the Registration Statement.

The facts, as we understand them, and upon which with your permission we rely in rendering the opinion herein, are set forth in the Preliminary Prospectus and Offer to Exchange. In rendering this opinion, we have examined originals or copies, certified or otherwise identified to our satisfaction, of such agreements and other documents as we have deemed necessary or appropriate and we have made such investigations of law as we have deemed appropriate as a basis for the opinion expressed below. In our examination, we have assumed, without independent verification, (i) the authenticity and accuracy of all documents reviewed by us

Weil, Gotshel & Manges LLF

(including the conformity to original documents of all documents submitted to us as email, fax or photostatic copies and the authenticity of such original documents), (ii) that the signatures on all documents examined by us are genuine and have been duly authorized, and such documents reflect all material terms of the agreement between the parties to such documents, (iii) that the parties to such documents have complied and will comply with the terms thereof, and that such documents are enforceable in accordance with their respective terms, (iv) that such documents have been duly authorized by, have been duly executed and delivered by, and constitute (to the extent containing contractual or other obligations) legal, valid, binding and enforceable obligations of, all parties to such documents, (v) that all of the parties to such documents are duly organized, validly existing, and have power and authority (corporate, partnership, or other) to execute, deliver, and perform the obligations in such documents, and (vi) that the transactions provided for by each agreement were and will be carried out in accordance with their terms. In rendering our opinion, we have made no independent investigation of the facts referred to herein (including in any statements referred to herein) and have relied for the purpose of rendering this opinion exclusively on those facts that have been provided to us by you and your agents, which we assume have been, and will continue to be, true.

This opinion is rendered to you as of the date of this letter, and we undertake no obligation to update this opinion subsequent to the date hereof. This opinion is based on current provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, regulations promulgated thereunder and interpretations thereof by the Internal Revenue Service and the courts having jurisdiction over such matters. Our opinion is not binding upon the Internal Revenue Service or the courts, and there can be no assurance that the Internal Revenue Service will not assert a contrary position. Furthermore, no assurance can be given that future legislative, judicial or administrative changes, on either a prospective or retroactive basis, would not affect the conclusions stated in this opinion. Any variation or difference in the facts from those set forth in the Preliminary Prospectus and Offer to Exchange or any other documents we reviewed in connection with the Exchange Offer and Consent Solicitation may affect the conclusions stated herein.

No opinion is expressed as to any matter not discussed herein. For the avoidance of doubt, we express no opinion with respect to either the passive foreign investment company status of the Issuer or the treatment of the Issuer as a U.S. corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes as a result of the Business Combination.

Based on such facts and subject to the qualifications, assumptions and limitations set forth herein and in the Preliminary Prospectus and Offer to Exchange, we hereby confirm that the statements in the Preliminary Prospectus and Offer to Exchange under the caption "*Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations*," insofar as such statements purport to constitute summaries of United States federal income tax law and regulations or legal conclusions with respect thereto, constitute accurate summaries of the matters described therein in all material respects.

Weil, Gotshel & Manges LLF

This opinion is furnished to you solely in connection with the Registration Statement and this opinion is not to be relied upon for any other purpose without our prior written consent. We hereby consent to the filing of this opinion with the Commission as an exhibit to the Registration Statement, and to the references therein to us. In giving such consent, we do not thereby admit that we are in the category of persons whose consent is required under Section 7 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

Very truly yours,

/s/ Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP

Allego N.V.

Dealer Manager and Solicitation Agent Agreement (the "Agreement")

New York, New York August 25, 2023

BofA Securities, Inc., as Dealer Manager

c/o BofA Securities, Inc. One Bryant Park New York, New York 10036

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Allego N.V., a public limited liability company (*naamloze vennootschap*) governed by the laws of the Netherlands (the '<u>Company</u>" or "<u>we</u>"), plans to make an offer (such offer as described in the Prospectus (as defined below), together with the related Consent Solicitation (as defined below), the "<u>Exchange Offer</u>"), for any and all of its outstanding Warrants (as defined below), in exchange for consideration consisting of 0.23 Ordinary Shares (as defined below), par value €0.12 per share (the "<u>Exchange Shares</u>") for each Warrant tendered, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Offering Documents (as defined below). Certain terms used herein are defined in Section 21 hereof.

Concurrently with making the Exchange Offer, the Company plans to solicit consents (the '<u>Consents</u>'') from the holders of Warrants (as described in the Offering Documents, the "<u>Consent Solicitation</u>") to make certain amendments to the terms of the Warrants. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Offering Documents, if Consents are received from the holders of at least 50% of the number of the then outstanding Warrants (which is the minimum number required to amend the Warrant Agreement), the Warrant Amendment set forth in the Offering Documents shall be adopted.

Any reference herein to the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus or the Prospectus shall be deemed to refer to and include the documents incorporated by reference therein pursuant to Item 11 of Form F-4, if applicable, which were filed under the Exchange Act on or before the filing of the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Effective Date or the issue date of the Preliminary Prospectus or the Prospectus, as the case may be; and any reference herein to the terms "amend," "amendment" or "supplement" with respect to the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Effective Date or the issue date of the filing of any document under the Exchange Act after the initial filing of the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Effective Date or the issue date of the Preliminary Prospectus, as the case may be, deemed to be incorporated therein by reference.

1

1. Appointment as Dealer Manager and Solicitation Agent.

(a) BofA Securities, Inc. will act as the exclusive dealer manager and solicitation agent for the Exchange Offer (the <u>Dealer Manager</u>" or "<u>you</u>") in accordance with your customary practices, including without limitation to use commercially reasonable efforts to solicit tenders pursuant to the Exchange Offer, the solicitation of Consents pursuant to the Consent Solicitation and assisting in the distribution of the Offering Documents and to perform such services as are customarily performed by investment banking firms acting as dealer managers and solicitation agents of an exchange offer of like nature.

(b) You agree that all actions taken by you as Dealer Manager have complied and will comply in all material respects with all applicable laws, regulations and rules of the United States, including, without limitation, the applicable rules and regulations of the registered national securities exchanges of which you are a member and of FINRA.

(c) The Dealer Manager, in its sole discretion, may continue to own or dispose of, in any manner it may elect, any Warrants it may beneficially own at the date hereof or hereafter acquire, in any such case, subject to applicable law. The Dealer Manager has no obligation to the Company, pursuant to this Agreement or otherwise, to tender or refrain from tendering Warrants beneficially owned by it in any Exchange Offer (or to deliver Consents in any related Consent Solicitation). The Dealer Manager acknowledges and agrees that if any Exchange Offer is not consummated for any reason, the Company shall have no obligation, pursuant to this Agreement or otherwise, to acquire any Warrants from the Dealer Manager or otherwise to hold the Dealer Manager harmless with respect to any losses it may incur in connection with the resale to any third parties of any Warrants.

(d) The Company agrees that it will not file, use or publish any material in connection with the Exchange Offer, use the name BofA or BofA Securities, Inc. or refer to you or your relationship with the Company, without your prior written consent to the form of such use or reference. There shall be no fee for any such permitted use or reference other than as set forth herein.

2. <u>Compensation</u>. The Company shall pay to you, promptly after the Expiration Date, or as otherwise set forth in that certain engagement letter dated as of August 21, 2023, between the Company and the Dealer Manager such fee contained in such letter (the "Fee"), as well as reimburse you for certain reasonable and documented out-of-pocket fees and expenses contemplated in such engagement letter.

3. Representations and Warranties. The Company represents and warrants to, and agrees with, you as set forth below in this Section 3:

(a) *Form F-4*. The Company has prepared and filed with the Commission thePre-Effective Registration Statement on Form F-4, including a related Preliminary Prospectus, for registration under the Securities Act of the Exchange Shares in connection with the Exchange Offer. The Pre-Effective Registration Statement will have been declared effective by the Commission prior to the Expiration Date and any request on the part of the Commission or any other federal, state or local or other governmental or regulatory agency, authority or instrumentality or court or arbitrator for the amending or supplementing of the Offering Documents or for additional information has been complied with. The Company meets the conditions for the use of Form F-4 with respect to the Pre-Effective Registration Statement and the Registration Statement in connection with the Exchange Offer as contemplated by this Agreement.

(b) Pre-Effective Registration Statement, Registration Statement, Preliminary Prospectus and Prospectus. (i) The Pre-Effective Registration Statement and any amendment thereto, as of the Commencement Date, the Registration Statement, as of the Effective Date, the Expiration Date and the Exchange Date, and the Preliminary Prospectus and any amendments and supplements thereto, as of its date, the Commencement Date and the Exchange Date, comply, and will comply, in all material respects with the Securities Act and the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations of the Commission thereunder (including Rule 13e-4 and Rule 14e under the Exchange Act), (ii) the Prospectus (together with any supplement and amendment thereto), as of the date it is first filed in accordance with Rule 424(b) under the Securities Act (if it is so filed) and the Exchange Date, will comply, in all material respects with the Securities Act and the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations of the Commission thereunder (including Rule 13e-4 and Rule 14e under the Exchange Act), (iii) the Pre-Effective Registration Statement and any amendment thereto as of the Commencement Date, and the Registration Statement, as of the Effective Date, the Expiration Date and the Exchange Date, did not contain, and will not contain, any untrue statement of a material fact and did not omit, and will not omit, to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading, (iv) the Preliminary Prospectus as of its date did not contain any untrue statement of a material fact and did not omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading and (v) the Prospectus (together with any supplement or amendment thereto), as of the date it is first filed in accordance with Rule 424(b) (if required), the Expiration Date and the Exchange Date, will not contain any untrue statement of a material fact and will not omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; provided, however, that the Company makes no representations or warranties as to the information contained in or omitted from the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, any Preliminary Prospectus or the Prospectus (or any supplement or amendment thereto) in reliance upon and in conformity with information furnished to the Company in writing by or on behalf of the Dealer Manager expressly for inclusion therein (the "Dealer Manager Information"), it being understood that the Dealer Manager Information shall include only the name and the contact information of the Dealer Manager.

(c) Documents Incorporated by Reference. The documents incorporated by reference in the Schedule TO (as defined below), when they became effective or were filed with the Commission, as the case may be, conformed in all material respects to the requirements of the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, as applicable, and the rules and regulations of the

Commission thereunder, and none of such documents contained an untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading *provided*, *however*, that this representation and warranty shall not apply to any statements or omissions made in reliance upon and in conformity with the Dealer Manager Information.

(d) Schedule TO. (i) On the Commencement Date, the Company will duly file with the Commission the Schedule TO pursuant to Rule13e-4 promulgated by the Commission under the Exchange Act, a copy of which Schedule TO (including the documents required by Item 12 thereof to be filed as exhibits thereto) in the form in which it is to be so filed has been or will be furnished to the Dealer Manager; (ii) any amendments to the Schedule TO and the final form of all such documents filed with the Commission or published, sent, or given to holders of Warrants will be furnished or otherwise made available to you prior to any such amendment, filing, publication, or distribution; (iii) the Schedule TO as so filed as amended or supplemented from time to time will comply in all material respects with the provisions of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder; and (iv) the Schedule TO as filed or as amended or supplemented from time to time will not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements made therein, in light of the circumstances under which they are made, not misleading, except that the Company makers no representation or warranty with respect to any statement contained in, or any matter omitted from, the Schedule TO and in conformity with the Dealer Manager Information.

(e) [Reserved].

(f) No Stop Orders. No stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement is in effect, and no proceedings for such purpose or pursuant to Section 8A under the Securities Act are pending before or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened by the Commission.

(g) *Emerging Growth Company*. From the time of initial filing of the Registration Statement to the Commission through the date hereof, the Company has been and is an "emerging growth company," as defined in Section 2(a) of the Securities Act (an "<u>Emerging Growth Company</u>").

(h) *Testing-the-Waters Materials*. The Company (i) has not alone engaged in any Testing-the-Waters Communication with any person other than Testing-the-Waters Communications with the consent of the Dealer Manager with entities that are reasonably believed to be qualified institutional buyers within the meaning of Rule 144A under the Securities Act or institutions that are reasonably believed to be accredited investors within the meaning of Rule 501 under the Securities Act and (ii) has not authorized anyone other than the Dealer Manager to engage in Testing-the-Waters Communications. The Company reconfirms that the Dealer Manager has been authorized to act on its behalf in undertaking Testing-the-Waters Communications. The Company has not distributed or approved for distribution any Testing-the-Waters Communication that is a written communication within the meaning of Rule 405 under the Securities Act. "Testing-the-Waters Communication" means any communication with potential investors undertaken in reliance on Section 5(d) or Rule 163B of the Securities Act.

(i) *Financial Statements*. The financial statements included or incorporated by reference in each of the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus, together with the related schedules and notes thereto, comply as to form in all material respects with the applicable accounting requirements of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act, as applicable, and present fairly in all material respects the consolidated financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as of the dates shown and its results of operations and cash flows for the periods shown, and such financial statements have been prepared in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and applied on a consistent basis throughout the periods involved. The other financial information included or incorporated by reference in each of the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus has been derived from the accounting records of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries and presents fairly in all material respects the information shown thereby. The statistical, industry-related and market-related data included in each of the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the reliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus are based on or derived from sources which the Company reasonably and in good faith believes are reliable and accurate and such data is consistent with the sources from which they are derived, in each case in all material respects.

(j) No Material Adverse Change. There has not occurred any Material Adverse Change, or any development involving a prospective Material Adverse Change, in the condition, financial or otherwise, or in the earnings, business or operations of the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, since the date of the latest audited financial statements included within the Commission Reports, except as disclosed in the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus.

(k) Organization and Good Standing. The Company has been duly incorporated, is validly existing as a public limited liability company in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation (to the extent the concept of good standing or any functional equivalent is applicable in such jurisdiction), has the corporate power and authority to own or lease its property and to conduct its business as described in each of the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus, and is duly qualified to transact business and is in good standing in each jurisdiction in which the conduct of its business or its ownership or leasing of property requires such qualification, except to the extent that the failure to be so qualified or be in good standing would not, singly or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect on the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(1) Significant Subsidiaries. Each "significant subsidiary" (as such term is defined in Rule 1-02 of Regulation S-X) of the Company (the "<u>Significant Subsidiaries</u>") has been duly incorporated, organized or formed, is validly existing as a corporation or other business entity in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation, organization or formation (to the extent the concept of good standing or any functional equivalent is applicable in such jurisdiction), has the corporate or other business entity power and authority to own or lease its property and to conduct its business as described in each of the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus and is duly qualified to transact business and is in good standing in each

jurisdiction in which the conduct of its business or its ownership or leasing of property requires such qualification, except to the extent that the failure to be so qualified or be in good standing would not, singly or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect on the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole; all of the issued share capital or other equity interests of each Significant Subsidiary of the Company have been duly and validly authorized and issued, are fully paid and non-assessable and are owned directly or indirectly by the Company, free and clear of all liens, encumbrances, equities or claims, except for such liens, encumbrances, equities or claims that would not be, singly or in the aggregate, material to the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(m) Capitalization. All the outstanding Ordinary Shares of the Company have been duly and validly authorized and issued and are fully paid and non-assessable (meaning that a holder of any such Ordinary Shares shall not by reason of merely being such a holder be subject to assessment or calls by the Company or its creditors for further payment on such Ordinary Shares) and are not subject to any pre-emptive or similar rights; except as described in or expressly contemplated by the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus and other than the Warrants, there are no outstanding rights (including, without limitation, pre-emptive rights), warrants or options to acquire, or instruments convertible into or exchangeable for, any Ordinary Shares or other equity interest in the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or any contract, commitment, agreement, understanding or arrangement of any kind relating to the issuance of any Ordinary Shares of the Company or any such subsidiary, any such convertible or exchangeable securities or any such rights, warrants or options; the share capital of the Company conforms in all material respects to the description thereof contained in the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus; and all the outstanding shares or other equity interests of each subsidiary owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company have been duly and validly authorized and issued, are fully paid and non-assessable (meaning, with respect to shares of any Dutch subsidiaries of the Company, that the holder of such shares shall not by reason of merely being a shareholder be subject to assessment or calls by the relevant subsidiary or its creditors for further payment on such shares) (except, in the case of any foreign subsidiary, for directors' qualifying Ordinary Shares) and are owned directly or indirectly by the Company, free and clear of any lien, charge, encumbrance, security interest, restriction on voting or transfer or any other claim of any third party other than as described in the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus. The Exchange Shares will, prior to their issuance, have been duly authorized for issuance by the Company, and, when issued and delivered as contemplated therein, will be duly and validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable (meaning that a holder of any such Exchange Shares shall not by reason of merely being such a holder be subject to assessment or calls by the Company or its creditors for further payment on such Exchange Shares); neither the filing of the Registration Statement nor the issuance of the Exchange Shares as contemplated by the Offering Documents will give rise to any preemptive or similar rights, other than those which have been waived or satisfied.

(n) *Required Filings*. The Company has filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 13e-4(c)(1) under the Exchange Act (or Rule 425 under the Securities Act) or otherwise all written communications made by the Company or any Affiliate of the Company in connection with or relating to the Exchange Offer that are required to be filed with the Commission, in each case on the date of their first use.

(o) *Compliance*. The Company has complied in all material respects with the Securities Act and the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations of the Commission thereunder in connection with the Exchange Offer, the Offering Documents and the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. The Company is subject to and in full compliance with the reporting requirements of Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act. The Company has not received from the Commission any written comments, questions or requests for modification of disclosure in respect of any Commission Reports, except for comments, questions or requests (i) that have been satisfied by the provision of supplemental information to the staff of the Commission, or (ii) in respect of which the Company has agreed with the staff of the Commission to make a prospective change in future Commission Reports, of which agreement the Dealer Manager and its counsel have been made aware.

(p) *Options.* Except as described in the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus, the Company has not sold, issued or distributed any Ordinary Shares during the six-month period preceding the date hereof, including any sales pursuant to Rule 144A under, or Regulation D or S of, the Securities Act, other than Ordinary Shares issued pursuant to employee benefit plans, qualified stock option plans or other employee compensation plans or pursuant to outstanding restricted stock units, options, rights or warrants.

(q) *Due Authorization.* The Company has full right, power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and to perform its obligations hereunder; and all action required to be taken for the due and proper authorization, execution and delivery by it of this Agreement and the consummation by it of the transactions contemplated hereby has been or, in respect of the issuance of the Exchange Shares and the exclusion of pre-emption rights in respect of such issuance, will ultimately on the Exchange Date have been duly and validly taken.

(r) Dealer Manager and Solicitation Agent Agreement. This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Company.

(s) *No Violation or Default*. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries: (i) is in default under or in violation of (and no event has occurred that has not been waived that, with notice or lapse of time or both, would result in a default by the Company or any of its subsidiaries under), nor has the Company or any of its subsidiaries received notice of a claim that it is in default under or that it is in violation of, any indenture, loan or credit agreement or any other agreement or instrument to which it is a party or by which it or any of its properties is bound (whether or not such default or violation has been waived), (ii) is in violation of any judgment, decree or order of any court, arbitrator or other governmental authority or (iii) is or has been in violation of any statute, rule, ordinance or regulation of any governmental authority, including without limitation all foreign, federal, state and local laws relating to taxes, environmental protection, occupational health and safety, product quality and safety and employment and labor matters, except in the case of each of clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) as could not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect.

(t) *No Conflicts.* The execution, delivery and performance by the Company of this Agreement, the conduct and consummation of the Exchange Offer and the consummation by the Company of any other transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus will not (i) conflict with or violate any provision of the Allego Articles, (ii) conflict with or violate any provision of any of the Company's subsidiaries' certificates or articles of incorporation, bylaws or other organizational or charter documents, (iii) conflict with, or constitute a default (or an event that with notice or lapse of time or both would become a default) under, result in the creation of any Lien upon any of the properties or assets of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or give to others any rights of termination, amendment, anti-dilution or similar adjustments, acceleration or cancellation (with or without notice, lapse of time or both) of, any agreement, credit facility, debt or other instrument (evidencing a Company or subsidiary debt or otherwise) or other understanding to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries is bound or affected, or (iv) conflict with or result in a violation of any law, rule, regulation, order, judgment, injunction, decree or other restriction of any court or governmental authority to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries is subject (including federal and state securities laws and regulations), or by which any property or asset of the Company or any of its subsidiaries is bound or affected; except in the case of each of clauses (ii), (iii) and (iv), such as could not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect.

(u) *No Consents Required.* The execution and delivery by the Company of, and the performance by the Company of its obligations under this Agreement will not contravene any provision of applicable law or the Allego Articles or any agreement or other instrument binding upon the Company or any of its subsidiaries that is material to the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or any judgment, order or decree of any governmental body, agency or court having jurisdiction over the Company or any subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or any judgment, order or decree of any governmental body, agency or court having jurisdiction over the Company or any subsidiary, and no consent, approval, authorization or order of, or qualification with, any governmental body, agency or court is required for the performance by the Company of its obligations under this Agreement, except such as may be required by the securities or Blue Sky laws of the various states or the rules and regulations of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. in connection with the offer and issuance of the Exchange Shares.

(v) *No Legal Proceedings.* There are no legal or governmental proceedings pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries is a party or to which any of the properties of the Company or any of its subsidiaries is subject (i) other than proceedings accurately described in all material respects in each of the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus and proceedings that would not, singly or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or on the power or ability of the Company to perform its obligations under this Agreement or to consummate the transactions contemplated by each of the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus or (ii) that are required to be described in the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus and are not so

described; and there are no statutes, regulations, contracts or other documents that are required to be described in the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus or to be filed as exhibits to the Registration Statement that are not described in all material respects or filed as required.

(w) Independent Accountants. Ernst & Young Accountants LLP, who have certified certain financial statements of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries, for the applicable periods, and delivered their report with respect to the audited financial statements and schedules filed with the Commission as part of the Registration Statement and included in each of the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus, is an independent registered public accounting firm with respect to the Company within the meaning of the Securities Act and the applicable rules and regulations thereunder adopted by the Commission and the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).

(x) *Title to Real and Personal Property*. The Company and each of its subsidiaries have good and marketable title in fee simple to all real property, if any, and good and marketable title to all personal property owned by them which is material to the business of the Company and its subsidiaries as now conducted by the Company and its subsidiaries, except to the extent that the failure to have good and marketable title to any real or personal property would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on the Company and its subsidiaries taken as a whole, in each case free and clear of all Liens and defects except such Liens and defects would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on the Company and its subsidiaries are held by them under valid, subsisting and enforceable leases with such exceptions as are not material and do not interfere with the use made and proposed to be made of such property and buildings by the Company and its subsidiaries.

(y) Intellectual Property. Except as would not, singly or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on the Company and its subsidiaries taken as a whole, (i) the Company and its subsidiaries own or have a valid license to all patents, inventions, copyrights, know how (including trade secrets and other unpatented and/or unpatentable proprietary or confidential information, systems or procedures), trademarks, service marks and trade names and all other worldwide intellectual property rights (including all registrations and applications for registration of, and all goodwill associated with, any of the foregoing) (collectively, "Intellectual Property Rights") used or held for use in any material respect by the Company or such subsidiaries; (ii) the applications and registrations of Intellectual Property Rights owned by the Company and its subsidiaries are subsisting and, to the Company's knowledge, the registrations of Intellectual Property Rights owned by the Company and its subsidiaries are valid and enforceable, and, to the Company's knowledge, there is no pending or threatened action, suit, proceeding or claim by others challenging the validity, scope or enforceability of, or any rights of the Company or any of its subsidiaries in, any such Intellectual Property Rights; (iii) in the past three years, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries in, any such Intellectual Property Rights; (iii) in the past three years, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries in, any such Intellectual Property Rights; (iii) in the past three years, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries in, any such Intellectual Property Rights; (iii) in the past three years, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries in, any such Intellectual Property Rights; (iii) in the past three years, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries in, any such Intellectual Property Rights; (iii) in the past three years, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries in, any such Intellectual Propert

Company's knowledge, no Person is infringing, misappropriating or otherwise violating, or, in the last year, has infringed, misappropriated or otherwise violated, any Intellectual Property Rights owned by the Company or any of its subsidiaries; (v) to the Company's knowledge, (A) neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries infringes, misappropriates or otherwise violates, or, in the past three years, has infringed, misappropriated or otherwise violated, any Intellectual Property Rights of any Person, and (B) the conduct of each of the respective businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as described in Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus does not infringe, misappropriate, or otherwise violate any Intellectual Property Rights of any Person; (vi) all employees or contractors engaged in the development of any material Intellectual Property Rights on any of its subsidiaries have executed an invention assignment agreement whereby such employees or contractors assign all of their right, title and interest in and to such Intellectual Property Rights to the Company and its subsidiaries use, and have used, commercially reasonable efforts to appropriately maintain the confidentiality of all material Intellectual Property Rights owned by the Company and its subsidiaries, including the maintenance and protection of all information intended to be maintained as a trade secret.

(z) *Data Privacy*. (i) The Company and each of its subsidiaries have complied during the past three years and are presently in compliance, in all material respects, with all internal and external privacy policies, contractual obligations, applicable laws, statutes, judgments, orders, rules and regulations of any court or arbitrator or other governmental or regulatory authority and any other legal obligations, in each case, relating to the collection, use, transfer, import, export, storage, protection, disposal and disclosure by the Company or any of its subsidiaries of Personal Information ("<u>Data Security Obligations</u>"); (ii) the Company and its subsidiaries have not received any written notification of or written complaint regarding and are unaware of any other facts that, individually or in the aggregate, would reasonably indicate non-compliance in any material respect with any Data Security Obligation by the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and (iii) to the knowledge of the Company, there is no action, suit or proceeding by or before any court or governmental agency, authority or body pending or to the knowledge of the Company, threatened alleging non-compliance in any material respect with any Data Security Obligation by the Company or any of its subsidiaries. "Personal Information" shall mean any information that identifies, could be used to identify or is otherwise related to an individual person, in addition to any definition for "personal information" or any similar term provided by applicable law.

(aa) No Undisclosed Relationships. No relationship, direct or indirect, exists between or among the Company or any of its subsidiaries, on the one hand, and the directors, officers, shareholders or other Affiliates of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, on the other, that is required by the Securities Act to be described in each of the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus and that is not so described in such documents.

(bb) *Investment Company Act.* The Company is not, and after giving effect to the consummation of the Exchange Offer will not be, an "investment company" or an entity "controlled" by an "investment company" within the meaning of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, and the rules and regulations of the Commission thereunder (collectively, the "<u>Investment Company Act</u>").

(cc) *Taxes*. The Company and each of its subsidiaries have filed all federal, state, local and foreign tax returns required to be filed through the date of this Agreement or have requested extensions thereof (except where the failure to file would not, singly or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole) and have paid all taxes required to be paid thereon (except for cases in which the failure to pay would not, singly or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole) are Amaterial Adverse Effect on the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or, except as currently being contested in good faith and for which reserves required by IFRS have been created in the financial statements of the Company on tax deficiency has been determined adversely to the Company or any of its subsidiaries have any notice or knowledge of any tax deficiency which could reasonably be expected to have) a Material Adverse Effect on the Company or its subsidiaries and which could reasonably be expected to have) a Material Adverse Effect on the Company or its subsidiaries and which could reasonably be expected to have) a Material Adverse Effect on the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(dd) *Licenses and Permits*. The Company and each of its subsidiaries possess all certificates, authorizations and permits issued by the appropriate federal, state or foreign regulatory authorities necessary to conduct their respective businesses as now conducted by the Company and its subsidiaries ("<u>Permits</u>"), except to the extent that the failure to possess such Permits would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, and neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has received any notice of proceedings relating to the revocation or modification of any such Permit which, singly or in the aggregate, if the subject of an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding, would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(ee) *No Labor Disputes.* No material labor dispute with the employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries exists, or, to the knowledge of the Company, is imminent; and the Company is not aware of any existing, threatened or imminent labor disturbance by the employees of any of its principal suppliers, manufacturers or contractors that could, singly or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(ff) Certain Environmental Matters. Except as described in the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus or would not, singly or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect, (A) neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is in violation of any applicable federal, state, local or foreign statute, law, rule, regulation, ordinance, code, policy or rule of common law or any legally binding judicial or administrative interpretation thereof, including any judicial or administrative order, consent decree or judgment, relating to pollution or protection of, the environment (including, without limitation, ambient air, surface water, groundwater, land surface or subsurface strata) or wildlife, including, without limitation, applicable laws and regulations relating to the release or threatened release of chemicals, pollutants, contaminants, wastes, toxic substances, hazardous substances, petroleum

or petroleum products, or asbestos-containing materials (collectively, "<u>Hazardous Materials</u>") or to the manufacture, processing, distribution, use, treatment, storage, disposal, transport or handling of Hazardous Materials (collectively, "<u>Environmental Laws</u>"), (B) the Company and its subsidiaries have all permits, authorizations and approvals required under any applicable Environmental Laws and are each in compliance with their requirements and (C) there are no pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened administrative, regulatory or judicial actions, suits, demands, demand letters, claims, liens, notices of noncompliance or violation or proceedings or, to the knowledge of the Company, investigations, by any private party or any arbitrator, court, governmental body, regulatory body, administrative agency or other authority, body or agency alleging non-compliance with or liability under any Environmental Law against the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

(gg) Compliance with ERISA. (i) Each employee benefit plan, within the meaning of Section 3(3) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA"), for which the Company or any member of its "Controlled Group" (defined as any entity, whether or not incorporated, that is under common control with the Company within the meaning of Section 4001(a)(14) of ERISA or any entity that would be regarded as a single employer with the Company under Section 414(b),(c),(m) or (o) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code")) would have any liability (each, a "Plan") has been maintained in compliance with its terms and the requirements of any applicable statutes, orders, rules and regulations, including but not limited to ERISA and the Code; (ii) no prohibited transaction, within the meaning of Section 406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code, has occurred with respect to any Plan, excluding transactions effected pursuant to a statutory or administrative exemption; (iii) for each Plan that is subject to the funding rules of Section 412 of the Code or Section 302 of ERISA, no Plan has failed (whether or not waived), or is reasonably expected to fail, to satisfy the minimum funding standards (within the meaning of Section 302 of ERISA or Section 412 of the Code) applicable to such Plan; (iv) no Plan is, or is reasonably expected to be, in "at risk status" (within the meaning of Section 303(i) of ERISA) and no Plan that is a "multiemployer plan" within the meaning of Section 4001(a)(3) of ERISA is in "endangered status" or "critical status" (within the meaning of Sections 304 and 305 of ERISA); (v) the fair market value of the assets of each Plan exceeds the present value of all benefits accrued under such Plan (determined based on those assumptions used to fund such Plan); (vi) no "reportable event" (within the meaning of Section 4043(c) of ERISA and the regulations promulgated thereunder) has occurred or is reasonably expected to occur; (vii) each Plan that is intended to be qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code is subject to a favorable determination letter or advisory opinion, as applicable, from the Internal Revenue Service, and nothing has occurred, whether by action or by failure to act, that, to the best knowledge of the Company, is reasonably likely to result in the revocation of any such determination or opinion, as applicable; and (viii) none of the following events has occurred or is reasonably likely to occur: (A) a material increase in the aggregate amount of contributions required to be made to all Plans by the Company or its Controlled Group affiliates in the current fiscal year of the Company and its Controlled Group affiliates compared to the amount of such contributions made in the Company's and its Controlled Group affiliates' most recently completed fiscal year; or (B) a material increase in the Company and its subsidiaries' "accumulated post-retirement benefit obligations" (within the meaning of Accounting Standards Codification Topic 715-60) compared to the amount of such obligations in the Company and its subsidiaries' most recently completed fiscal year, except in each case with respect to the events or conditions set forth in (i) through (viii) hereof, as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

(hh) Sarbanes-Oxley; Internal Accounting Controls. Except as disclosed in the Preliminary Prospectus and Prospectus (A) the Company and its subsidiaries are in compliance with any and all applicable requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that are effective as of the date hereof, and any and all applicable rules and regulations promulgated by the Commission thereunder that are effective, including Section 402 related to loans and Sections 302 and 906 related to certifications, as of the date hereof, as of the Commencement Date and as of the Exchange Date; (B) the Company and its subsidiaries maintain a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that: (i) transactions are executed in accordance with management's general or specific authorizations, (ii) transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS and to maintain asset accountability, (iii) access to assets is permitted only in accordance with management's general or specific authorization, and (iv) the recorded accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and appropriate action is taken with respect to any differences; and (C) the Company and its subsidiaries have established disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the Company and its subsidiaries and designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the Commission Reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the Commission's rules and forms. The Company's certifying officers have evaluated the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures of the Company and its subsidiaries as of the end of the period covered by the most recently filed periodic report under the Exchange Act (such date, the "Evaluation Date"). The Company presented in its most recently filed periodic report under the Exchange Act the conclusions of the certifying officers about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on their evaluations as of the Evaluation Date. Since the Evaluation Date, there have been (i) no material weakness in the Company's internal control over financial reporting (whether or not remediated), except as disclosed in the most recently filed periodic report under the Exchange Act and in the Preliminary Prospectus and Prospectus and (ii) no change in the Company's internal control over financial reporting that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

(ii) *Insurance*. The Company and each of its subsidiaries are insured by insurers of recognized financial responsibility against such losses and risks and in such amounts as are prudent and customary in the businesses in which they are engaged; neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has been refused any insurance coverage sought or applied for; and neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has any reason to believe that it will not be able to renew its existing insurance coverage as and when such coverage expires or to obtain similar coverage from similar insurers as may be necessary to continue its business at a cost that would not, singly or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(jj) *No Unlawful Payments.* (i) None of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or any director or officer thereof, or, to the Company's knowledge, any employee, agent or representative while acting on behalf of the Company or of any of its subsidiaries, has taken or will take any action in furtherance of an offer, payment, promise to pay, or authorization or approval of the payment, giving or receipt of money, property, gifts or anything else of value, directly or indirectly, to any government official (including any officer or employee of a government or government-owned or controlled entity or of a public international organization, or any person acting in an official capacity for or on behalf of any of the foregoing, or any political party or party official or candidate for political office) in order to influence official action, or to any person in violation of any applicable anti-corruption laws; and (ii) the Company and each of its subsidiaries have conducted their businesses in compliance with applicable anti-corruption laws and have instituted and maintained and will continue to maintain policies and procedures reasonably designed to promote and achieve compliance with such laws and with the representations and warranties contained herein.

(kk) Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and UK Bribery Act 2010. None of the Company, any of its subsidiaries, directors, officers or, to the knowledge of the Company, any agent, employee, Affiliate or other person acting on behalf of the Company or any of its subsidiaries is aware of or has taken any action, directly or indirectly, that would result in a violation by such persons of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended, and the rules and regulations thereunder (the "FCPA"), the U.K. Bribery Act of 2010, as amended, and the rules thereunder (the "UK Act"), or similar applicable law of any other jurisdiction or the rules and regulations under the FCPA, UK Act or similar applicable law of any other jurisdiction including, without limitation, (i) using any corporate funds for any unlawful contribution, gift, entertainment or other unlawful expense relating to political activity or (ii) making use of the mails or any means or instrumentality of interstate commerce corruptly in furtherance of an offer, payment, promise to pay or authorization of the payment of any money, or other property, gift, promise to give, or authorization of the giving of value to any "foreign official" (as such term is defined in the FCPA) or any foreign political party or official thereof or any candidate for foreign political office, in contravention of the FCPA, the UK Act or similar applicable law of any other knowledge of the Company, its Affiliates have conducted their businesses in compliance with the FCPA, the UK Act or similar applicable law of any other jurisdiction and have instituted and maintain policies and procedures designed to ensure, and which are reasonably expected to continue to ensure, continued compliance therewith.

(ll) Compliance with Anti-Money Laundering Laws. The operations of the Company and each of its subsidiaries are and have been conducted at all times in material compliance with all applicable financial recordkeeping and reporting requirements, including those of the Bank Secrecy Act, as amended by Title III of the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (USA PATRIOT Act), and the applicable anti-money laundering statutes of jurisdictions where the Company and each of its subsidiaries conduct business, the rules and regulations thereunder and any related or similar rules, regulations or guidelines, issued, administered or enforced by any governmental agency (collectively, the "<u>Anti-Money Laundering Laws</u>"), and no action, suit or proceeding by or before any court or governmental agency, authority or body or any arbitrator involving the Company or any of its subsidiaries with respect to the Anti-Money Laundering Laws is pending or, to the best knowledge of the Company, threatened.

(mm) OFAC. None of the Company, any of its subsidiaries, directors, officers or, to the knowledge of the Company, any agent, employee, Affiliate or representative of the Company or any of its subsidiaries is an individual or entity ("Person") currently the subject or target of any sanctions administered or enforced by the United States Government, including, without limitation, the U.S. Department of the Treasury's Office of Foreign Assets Control ("OFAC"), the United Nations Security Council, the European Union, His Majesty's Treasury, or other relevant sanctions authority (collectively, "Sanctions"), nor is the Company located, organized or resident in a country or territory that is the subject of Sanctions (currently, the Crimea region of Ukraine, the so-called Donetsk People's Republic, the so-called Luhansk People's Republic, Cuba, Iran, Syria or North Korea) (each a 'Sanctioned Country"). For the past five years, the Company and its subsidiaries have not knowingly engaged in, and are not now knowingly engaged in any dealings or transactions with any person that at the time of the dealing or transaction is or was the subject or the target of Sanctions or with a country or territory that is, or whose government is, the subject of Sanctions that broadly prohibit dealings with that country or territory, except as would be permissible under relevant Sanctions.

(nn) No Conflicts with Sanctions Laws. None of the Company, any of its subsidiaries, or any director, officer, or employee thereof, or, to the Company's knowledge, any agent, Affiliate or representative of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, is an individual or entity ("Person") that is, or is owned or controlled by one or more Persons that are: (i) the subject of any sanctions administered or enforced by the U.S. Department of the Treasury's Office of Foreign Assets Control or other relevant sanctions authority (collectively, "Sanctions"), or (ii) located, organized or resident in a Sanctioned Country. The Company and each of its subsidiaries have not knowingly engaged in, are not now knowingly engaged in, and will not knowingly engage in, any dealings or transactions with any Person, or in any Sanctioned Country, in violation of Sanctions.

(oo) No Restrictions on Subsidiaries. Except as described in the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus, no subsidiary of the Company is currently prohibited, directly or indirectly, under any agreement or other instrument to which it is a party or is subject, from paying any dividends to the Company, from making any other distribution on such subsidiary's share capital or similar ownership interest, from repaying to the Company any loans or advances to such subsidiary from the Company or form transferring any of such subsidiary's properties or assets to the Company or any other subsidiary of the Company.

(pp) *No Solicitation.* The Company has not paid or agreed to pay to any person any compensation for (i) soliciting another to purchase any of its securities or (ii) soliciting tenders or Consents by holders of Warrants pursuant to the Exchange Offer (except as contemplated in this Agreement).

(qq) No Registration Rights. Except as described in the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus, no person has the right to require the Company or any of its subsidiaries to register any securities for sale under the Securities Act by reason of the filing of the Pre-Effective Registration Statement or the Registration Statement with the Commission.

(rr) No Stabilization. The Company has not taken, directly or indirectly, any action designed to or that could reasonably be expected to cause or result in any stabilization or manipulation of the price of any security of the Company to facilitate the Exchange Offer.

(ss) *PFIC Status*. To the Company's knowledge, the Company was not a "passive foreign investment company" (as defined in Section 1297 of the Internal Revenue Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder) ("PFIC") for its taxable year ended December 31, 2022 and does not expect to be a PFIC for the taxable year ending December 31, 2023 or the foreseeable future.

(tt) Dividend Restrictions. Except as otherwise disclosed in the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus, (A) all dividends and other distributions declared and payable on the share capital of the Company, now or in the future, may, under the current laws and regulations of the Netherlands, be paid in United States Dollars that (subject to any applicable Sanctions) may be freely transferred out of the Netherlands; (B) all such dividends and other distributions made to the beneficial owners of such dividends and other distributions that are non-residents of the Netherlands for tax purposes are not or will not be, as the case may be, subject to withholding or other taxes under the current laws and regulations of the Netherlands, except that the beneficial owners that are non-residents of the Netherlands for tax purposes will be subject to Dutch income tax in respect of income derived from the Ordinary Shares and gains realized upon the redemption or disposal of the Ordinary Shares if such beneficial owner is (i) an individual and holds a substantial interest (aanmerkelijk belang) or deemed substantial interest (fictief aanmerkelijk belang) in the Company both within the meaning of chapter 4 of the Dutch Income Tax Act 2001 (Wet inkomstenbelasting 2001) or (ii) a corporate body (lichaam) and holds a substantial interest or deemed substantial interest in the Company with the main purposes or one of the main purposes of avoiding Dutch personal income tax of another person as part of an artificial arrangement or transaction (or series of artificial arrangements or transactions): and (C) all such dividends and other distributions may under such current laws and regulations be made without the necessity of obtaining any consent, approval, authorization or order in the Netherlands. For the avoidance of doubt, all dividends and other distributions made by the Company on the Ordinary Shares to residents and non-residents of the Netherlands for tax purposes will be subject to withholding under the laws and regulations of the Netherlands as disclosed in the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus, unless an exemption, reduction or refund can be obtained as disclosed in Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus.

(uu) Foreign Private Issuer. The Company is a "foreign private issuer" within the meaning of Rule 405 under the Securities Act (a "Foreign Private Issuer").

(vv) No Transfer Taxes or Other Similar Documentary Taxes. There are no transfer, stamp, issue, registration, or other similar documentary taxes or charges under the laws of the Netherlands, U.S. federal law or the laws of any state, or any political subdivision thereof, required to be paid in connection with the execution and delivery by the Company of this Agreement or the exchange by the Company of the Warrants.

(ww) No Right of Immunity. Under the current laws of the Netherlands, the Company would not be entitled to invoke immunity from jurisdiction or immunity from execution in respect of any action arising out of its obligations under this Agreement.

(xx) *Choice of Law.* The choice of law of the State of New York as the governing law of this Agreement is a valid choice of law under the laws of the Netherlands and courts of the Netherlands should give effect to this choice of law, subject to (i) mandatory choice of law rules and constitutional limitations (including the provisions of Regulation (EC) No 593/2008 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 17 June 2008 relating to the law applicable to contractual obligations (Rome I)) and (ii) the restrictions described under the caption "Enforceability of Civil Liabilities" in the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus.

(yy) Forward-Looking Statements. No forward-looking statement (within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Exchange Act) included in any of the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus or the Prospectus has been made or reaffirmed without a reasonable basis or has been disclosed other than in good faith.

(zz) Registration Fees. The Company has paid the registration fee for Registration Statement pursuant to Rule 456(a) under the Securities Act or will pay such fee within the time period required by such rule and in any event prior to the Exchange Date.

(aaa) No Ratings. There are (and prior to the Exchange Date, will be) no debt securities or preferred shares issued or guaranteed by the Company or any of its subsidiaries that are rated by a "nationally recognized statistical rating organization", as such term is defined under Section 3(a)(62) under the Exchange Act.

Any certificate signed by any officer of the Company and delivered to the Dealer Manager or counsel for the Dealer Manager in connection with the Exchange Offer shall be deemed a representation and warranty by the Company as to matters covered thereby to the Dealer Manager. The Company acknowledges that, for purposes of the opinions to be delivered pursuant to Section 6 hereof, counsel to the Company and counsel to the Dealer Manager will rely upon the accuracy and truthfulness of the foregoing representations and hereby consents to such reliance.

4. <u>Representations, Warranties and Agreements of the Dealer Manager</u>. The Dealer Manager hereby represents, warrants and agrees that the Dealer Manager will not (1) cause to be disseminated to holders, dealers or the public any written material for or in connection with the Exchange Offer other than one or more of the Offering Documents, or (2) make any public oral communications relating to the Exchange Offer that have not been previously approved by the Company except as contemplated in the penultimate sentence of Section 6 of this Agreement.

5. Agreements. The Company agrees with the Dealer Manager that:

(a) The Company will furnish to the Dealer Manager and to counsel for the Dealer Manager, without charge, during the period beginning on the Commencement Date and continuing to and including the Exchange Date, copies of the Offering Documents and any amendments and supplements thereto in such quantities as the Dealer Manager may reasonably request.

(b) Prior to the termination or consummation of the Exchange Offer, the Company will not file any amendment to the Pre-Effective Registration Statement or the Registration Statement or supplement to the Preliminary Prospectus or the Prospectus unless the Company has furnished the Dealer Manager a copy of such proposed amendment or supplement, as applicable, for its review prior to filing and will not file any such proposed amendment or supplement to which the Dealer Manager reasonably objects. Subject to the foregoing sentence, if the Registration Statement has become or becomes effective, or filing of the Preliminary Prospectus or the Prospectus is otherwise required under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations of the Commission thereunder, the Company will cause the Preliminary Prospectus or the Prospectus and any supplement thereto to be filed with the Commission pursuant to the applicable paragraph of Rule 424(b) or in an amendment to the Registration Statement, whichever is applicable, within the time period prescribed. The Company will promptly advise the Dealer Manager (i) when the Registration Statement, and any amendment thereto, shall have become effective, (ii) when the Preliminary Prospectus or the Prospectus, and any supplement thereto, shall have been filed (if required) with the Commission, (iii) when, prior to termination of the Exchange Offer, any amendment to the Registration Statement shall have been filed or become effective, (iv) of any request by the Commission or its staff for any amendment of the Pre-Effective Registration Statement or the Registration Statement or supplement to the Preliminary Prospectus or the Prospectus or for any additional information, (v) of the issuance by the Commission of any stop order or of any order preventing or suspending the use of the Preliminary Prospectus or the Prospectus, or the initiation or threatening of any proceeding for any such purpose, and (vi) of the receipt by the Company of any notification with respect to the suspension of the qualification of the Exchange Shares for sale in any jurisdiction within the United States or the initiation or threatening of any proceeding for such purpose. In the event of the issuance of any such stop order or of any such order preventing or suspending the use of the Preliminary Prospectus or the Prospectus, the Company will use its reasonable best efforts to obtain its withdrawal. The Company agrees to use its reasonable best efforts to cause the Registration Statement to become effective as soon as practicable and as much in advance of the Expiration Date as practicable.

(c) The Company will comply with the Securities Act and the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations of the Commission thereunder so as to permit the completion of the distribution of the Exchange Shares issued in the Exchange Offer, as contemplated by this Agreement, the Registration Statement and the Prospectus. If, at any time when a prospectus relating to the Exchange Offer is required to be delivered under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations of the Commission thereunder, any event occurs as a result of which the Offering Documents, as then amended or supplemented, would include any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, or if it should be necessary to amend or supplement the Offering Documents to

comply with applicable law, the Company will promptly: (i) notify the Dealer Manager of any such event or non-compliance at which time the Dealer Manager shall be entitled to cease soliciting tenders until such time as the Company has complied with clause (iii) of this sentence; (ii) subject to the requirements of the first sentence of the above paragraph (b), prepare an amendment or supplement that will correct such statement or omission or effect such compliance; and (iii) supply any such amendment or supplement to the Dealer Manager and counsel for the Dealer Manager without charge in such quantities as the Dealer Manager may reasonably request. The Company will also promptly inform the Dealer Manager of any litigation or administrative action with respect to the Exchange Offer.

(d) The Company agrees to advise the Dealer Manager promptly of (i) any proposal by the Company to withdraw, rescind or modify the Offering Documents or to withdraw, rescind or terminate the Exchange Offer or the exercise by the Company of any right not to exchange the Warrants pursuant to the Exchange Offer, (ii) its awareness of the issuance of a stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement or of any notice objecting to its use by the Commission or any other regulatory authority, or the institution or threatening of any proceedings for that purpose (and will promptly furnish the Dealer Manager with a copy of any such order), (iii) its awareness of the occurrence of any development that could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Change relating to or affecting the Exchange Offer and (iv) any other non-privileged information relating to the Exchange Offer, the Offering Documents or this Agreement which the Dealer Manager may from time to time reasonably request.

(e) The Company will make generally available to its security holders and the Dealer Manager as soon as practicable an earning statement that satisfies the provisions of Section 11(a) of the Securities Act and Rule 158 of the Commission promulgated thereunder covering a period of at least twelve months beginning with the first fiscal quarter of the Company occurring after the "effective date" (as defined in Rule 158) of the Registration Statement.

(f) The Company will arrange, if necessary, for the qualification of the Exchange Shares for offer or issuance in connection with the Exchange Offer under the laws of such jurisdictions as the Dealer Manager may reasonably designate and will maintain such qualifications in effect so long as required for such offer or issuance; <u>provided</u> that in no event shall the Company be obligated to qualify to do business in any jurisdiction in which it is not now so qualified or to take any action that would subject it to service of process in suits, other than those arising out of the offering or issuance of the Exchange Offer, in any jurisdiction in which it is not now so subject. The Company will promptly advise the Dealer Manager of the receipt by the Company of any notification with respect to the suspension of the qualification of the Exchange Shares for sale in any jurisdiction or the initiation or threatening of any proceeding for such purpose.

(g) Prior to the termination or consummation of the Exchange Offer, the Company will not, and will not permit any of its Affiliates to, resell any Exchange Shares that have been acquired by them. The Company will cause all Warrants accepted in the Exchange Offer to be cancelled.
(h) The Company will cooperate with the Dealer Manager to permit the Exchange Shares to be eligible for clearance and settlement through The Depository Trust Company.

(i) The Company agrees not to exchange any Warrants during the period beginning on the Commencement Date and ending on the Exchange Date except pursuant to and in accordance with the Exchange Offer or as otherwise agreed to in writing by the parties hereto and permitted under applicable laws and regulations.

(j) None of the Company, its Affiliates or any person acting on its or their behalf will take, directly or indirectly, any action that is designed to cause or result, or which might reasonably be expected to cause or result, under the Exchange Act or otherwise, in stabilization or manipulation of the price of any security of the Company to facilitate the Exchange Offer or the tender of Warrants in the Exchange Offer.

(k) The Company has arranged for D.F. King & Co., Inc. to serve as Information Agent and for Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, to serve as Exchange Agent and authorizes the Dealer Manager to communicate with each of the Information Agent and the Exchange Agent to facilitate the Exchange Offer.

(1) The Company will comply in all material respects with the Securities Act and the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations of the Commission thereunder, including Rule 13e-4 and Rule 14e-1 under the Exchange Act (including taking the actions necessary to ensure that the procedural requirements of Rule 14e-1 are satisfied), in connection with the Exchange Offer, the Offering Documents and the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. The Company will file with the Commission pursuant to Rule 13e-4(c)(1) under the Exchange Act (or Rule 425 under the Securities Act) or otherwise all written communications made by the Company or any Affiliate of the Company in connection with or relating to the Exchange Offer that are required to be filed with the Commission, in each case on the date of their first use.

(m) The Company agrees to pay the costs and expenses relating to the transactions contemplated hereunder, including without limitation the following: (i) the preparation of this Agreement, the issuance of the Exchange Shares and the fees of the Information Agent and the Exchange Agent; (ii) the preparation, printing or reproduction of the Offering Documents and each amendment or supplement thereto; (iii) the printing (or reproduction) and delivery (including postage, air freight charges and charges for counting and packaging) of such copies of the Offering Documents (and all amendments or supplements thereto) as may, in each case, be reasonably requested for use in connection with the Exchange Offer; (iv) the preparation, authentication, issuance and delivery of the Exchange Shares, including any stamp or transfer taxes in connection with the original issuance of the Exchange Shares; (v) the printing (or reproduction) and delivery of this Agreement, any blue sky memorandum and all other agreements or documents printed (or reproduced) and delivered in connection with the Exchange Offer; (vi) any registration or qualification of the Exchange Shares for offer under the blue sky laws of the several states or any non-U.S. jurisdiction; (vii) transportation and other expenses incurred by or on behalf of Company representatives in

connection with presentations to prospective participants in the Exchange Offer; (viii) the fees and expenses of the Company's accountants and the fees and expenses of counsel (including local and special counsel) for the Company; (ix) fees and expenses incurred in connection with listing the Exchange Shares on the New York Stock Exchange; (x) the fees, documented fees, costs and out-of-pocket expenses of counsel for the Dealer Manager as provided for in Section 2 hereof; and (xi) all other costs and expenses incident to the performance by the Company of its obligations hereunder and in connection with the Exchange Offer.

(n) The Company will promptly notify the Dealer Manager if the Company ceases to be an Emerging Growth Company or Foreign Private Issuer at any time prior to the Exchange Date.

6. <u>Conditions to the Obligations of the Dealer Manager</u>. The obligations of the Dealer Manager under this Agreement shall be subject to the accuracy of the representations and warranties on the part of the Company contained herein at the Commencement Date, any date on which Offering Documents are distributed to holders of the Warrants, the Effective Date, the Expiration Date and the Exchange Date, to the accuracy of the statements of the Company made in any certificates pursuant to the provisions hereof, to the performance by the Company of its obligations hereunder and to the following additional conditions:

(a) The Registration Statement shall have become effective on or prior to the Expiration Date.

(b) As of the Exchange Date, no stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement or any notice objecting to its use shall have been issued and no proceedings for that purpose shall have been instituted or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened by the Commission; and the Prospectus shall have been timely filed with the Commission under the Securities Act; and all requests by the Commission for additional information shall have been complied with to the reasonable satisfaction of the Dealer Manager.

(c) At the Commencement Date and the Exchange Date, the Company shall have requested and caused an opinion and negative assurance letter of Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP, U.S. counsel to the Company, together with an opinion of NautaDutilh N.V., Dutch counsel for the Company, dated the Commencement Date or Exchange Date, as applicable, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Dealer Manager to have been delivered to the Dealer Manager, in each case addressed to the Dealer Manager.

(d) At the Commencement Date and the Exchange Date, the Dealer Manager shall have received from Davis Polk & Wardwell LLP, counsel for the Dealer Manager, such opinion and negative assurance letter, in each case addressed to the Dealer Manager with respect to the Exchange Offer, as the Dealer Manager may reasonably require, and the Company shall have furnished to such counsel such documents as they reasonably request for the purposes of enabling them to pass upon such matters.

(e) At the Exchange Date, the Company shall have furnished to the Dealer Manager a certificate of the Company, signed by the chief executive officer and the principal financial or accounting officer of the Company, dated as of the Exchange Date, to the effect that the signers of such certificate have carefully examined the Offering Documents, any amendment or supplement to the Offering Documents and this Agreement and that:

(i) the representations and warranties of the Company in this Agreement are true and correct as of the Exchange Date with the same effect as if made on the Exchange Date, and the Company has complied in all material respects with all the agreements and satisfied all the conditions on its part to be performed or satisfied hereunder at or prior to the Exchange Date;

(ii) no stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement has been issued and no proceedings for that purpose have been instituted or threatened by the Commission; and

(iii) since the date of the most recent financial statements included or incorporated by reference in the Offering Documents (exclusive of any amendment or supplement thereto), there has been no Material Adverse Change, except as set forth in or contemplated in the Offering Documents (exclusive of any amendment or supplement thereto).

(f) At each of the Commencement Date and the Exchange Date, the Company shall have requested and caused Ernst & Young Accountants LLP to furnish to the Dealer Manager letters, dated respectively as of the Commencement Date and the Exchange Date, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Dealer Manager.

(g) Subsequent to the Commencement Date or, if earlier, the dates as of which information is given in the Offering Documents (exclusive of any amendment or supplement thereto), there shall not have been (i) any change or decrease specified in the letters referred to in paragraph (f) of this Section 6 or (ii) any change, or any development involving a prospective change, in or affecting the condition (financial or otherwise), prospects, earnings, business or properties the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, whether or not arising from transactions in the ordinary course of business, except as set forth in or contemplated in the Offering Documents (exclusive of any amendment or supplement thereto), the effect of which, in any case referred to in clause (i) or (ii)

above, is, in the reasonable judgment of the Dealer Manager, so material and adverse as to make it impractical or inadvisable to market or deliver the Exchange Shares or solicit tenders of Warrants as contemplated by the Offering Documents (exclusive of any amendment or supplement thereto).

(i) Prior to the Exchange Date, the Company shall have obtained all consents, approvals, authorizations and orders of, and shall have duly made all registrations, qualifications and filing with, any court or regulatory authority or other governmental agency or instrumentality required in connection with the making and consummation of the Exchange Offer and the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement.

(j) Prior to the Exchange Date, the Company shall have delivered to the Dealer Manager and its counsel such further information, certificates and documents as they may reasonably request.

(k) Prior to the Exchange Date, the Exchange Shares shall have been approved for listing, subject to notice of issuance, on the New York Stock Exchange.

If (i) any of the conditions specified in this Section 6 shall not have been fulfilled when and as provided in this Agreement, or (ii) any of the opinions and certificates mentioned above or elsewhere in this Agreement shall not be reasonably satisfactory in form and substance to the Dealer Manager and its counsel, this Agreement and all obligations of the Dealer Manager hereunder may be cancelled by the Dealer Manager at, or at any time prior to, the Exchange Date. In such event, the Dealer Managers shall be entitled to publicly disclose the cancellation of its participation in the Exchange Offer via press release, subject to prior notification of the Company. Notice of such cancellation shall be given to the Company in writing or by telephone or facsimile confirmed in writing.

7. Indemnification and Contribution.

(a) The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Dealer Manager, the directors, officers, employees, agents and Affiliates of the Dealer Manager and each person who controls the Dealer Manager within the meaning of either the Securities Act or the Exchange Act against any and all losses, claims, damages or liabilities, joint or several, to which the Dealer Manager may become subject under the Securities Act, the Exchange Act or other federal, state or foreign statutory law or regulation, at common law or otherwise, insofar as such losses, claims, damages or liabilities (or actions in respect thereof) relate to, arise out of, or are based upon (1) any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of a material fact contained in the Registration Statement (or any amendment or supplement thereto), or the omission or alleged omission therefrom of a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein not misleading, (2) any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of a material fact required to be filed with any federal, state or local government or regulatory agency or authority in connection with the Exchange Offer, each as prepared or approved by the

Company, or the omission or alleged omission therefrom of a material fact necessary in order to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, (3) the Company's failure to make or consummate the Exchange Offer or the withdrawal, rescission, termination, amendment or extension of the Exchange Offer or any failure on the Company's part to comply with the terms and conditions contained in the Offering Documents, (4) any action or failure to act by the Company or its respective directors, officers, agents or employees or by any indemnified party at the request or with the consent of the Company, or (5) otherwise related to or arising out of the Dealer Manager's engagement hereunder or any transaction or conduct in connection therewith, except that clauses (3), (4) and (5) shall not apply with respect to the portion of any losses that are determined to have resulted primarily from the bad faith, gross negligence or willful misconduct of such indemnified party, and in the case of clause (1), (2), (3), (4) or (5) of this sentence, the Company agrees to reimburse each such indemnified party, as incurred, for any legal or other expenses reasonably incurred by it in connection with investigating or defending any such loss, claim, damage, liability or action; <u>provided, however</u>, that the Company will not be liable in any such case to the extent that any such loss, claim, damage or liability arises out of or is based upon any such untrue statement or alleged untrue statement or omission or alleged omission made in the Offering Documents, or in any amendment thereof or supplement thereto, in reliance upon and in conformity with the Dealer Manager Information or, in the case of reimbursement of expenses, to the extent such expense constitutes VAT that is recoverable by the indemnified party (or the representative member of any VAT group of which the indemnified party is a member). This indemnity agreement will be in addition to any liability that the Company may ot

(b) The Dealer Manager agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Company, each of its directors, officers, employees, agents and Affiliates and each person who controls the Company within the meaning of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act to the same extent as the foregoing indemnity from the Company to the Dealer Manager, but only with reference to the Dealer Manager Information. This indemnity agreement will be in addition to any liability that the Dealer Manager may otherwise have.

(c) Promptly after receipt by an indemnified party under this Section 7 of notice of the commencement of any action, such indemnified party will, if a claim in respect thereof is to be made against the indemnifying party under this Section 7, notify the indemnifying party in writing of the commencement thereof; but the failure so to notify the indemnifying party (i) will not relieve it from liability under paragraph (a) or (b) above unless and to the extent it did not otherwise learn of such action and such failure results in the forfeiture by the indemnifying party of substantial rights and defenses and (ii) will not, in any event, relieve the indemnifying party from any obligations to any indemnified party other than the indemnification obligation provided in paragraph (a) or (b) above. The indemnifying party shall be entitled to appoint counsel (including local counsel) of the indemnifying party's choice at the indemnifying party's expense to represent the indemnified party in any action for which indemnification is sought (in which case the indemnifying party shall not thereafter be responsible for the fees and expenses of any separate counsel, other than one local

counsel in any material relevant jurisdiction if not appointed by the indemnifying party, retained by the indemnified party or parties except as set forth below); provided, however, that such counsel shall be reasonably satisfactory to the indemnified party. Notwithstanding the indemnifying party's election to appoint counsel (including local counsel) to represent the indemnified party in an action, the indemnified party shall have the right to employ separate counsel (including local counsel), and the indemnifying party shall bear the reasonable and documented fees, costs and expenses of such separate counsel if (i) the use of counsel chosen by the indemnifying party to represent the indemnified party would present such counsel with a conflict of interest; (ii) the actual or potential defendants in, or targets of, any such action include both the indemnified party and the indemnifying party and the indemnified party shall have reasonably concluded that there may be legal defenses available to it and/or other indemnified parties that are different from or additional to those available to the indemnifying party; (iii) the indemnifying party shall not have employed counsel satisfactory to the indemnified party to represent the indemnified party within a reasonable time after notice of the institution of such action; or (iv) the indemnifying party shall authorize the indemnified party to employ separate counsel at the expense of the indemnifying party. An indemnifying party will not, without the prior written consent of the indemnified parties (which consent will not be unreasonably withheld), settle or compromise or consent to the entry of any judgment with respect to any pending or threatened claim, action, suit or proceeding in respect of which indemnification or contribution may be sought hereunder (whether or not the indemnified parties are actual or potential parties to such claim or action) unless such settlement, compromise or consent (x) includes an unconditional release of each indemnified party from all liability arising out of such claim, action, suit or proceeding and (y) does not include any statement as to an admission of fault, culpability or failure to act by or on behalf of any indemnified person.

(d) In the event that the indemnity provided in paragraph (a) or (b) of this Section 7 is unavailable to or insufficient to hold harmless an indemnified party for any reason, the Company and the Dealer Manager agree to contribute to the aggregate losses, claims, damages and liabilities (including legal or other expenses reasonably incurred in connection with investigating or defending same) (collectively, the "Losses") to which the Company and the Dealer Manager may be subject in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative benefits received by the Dealer Manager on the one hand and the Company on the other from the Exchange Offer. If the allocation provided by the immediately preceding sentence is unavailable for any reason, the Company on the Dealer Manager shall contribute in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect not only such relative benefits but also the relative fault of the Company on the one hand and of the Dealer Manager on the other shall be deemed to be in the same proportion as the total value paid or proposed to be paid to holders of Warrants pursuant to the Exchange Offer (whether or not consummated) bears to the fees actually received by the Dealer Manager pursuant to Section 2 hereof (exclusive of amounts paid for reimbursement of expenses or paid under this Agreement). For purposes of the

preceding sentence, the total value paid or proposed to be paid to holders of Warrants pursuant to the Exchange Offer shall equal (i) if the Exchange Offer is consummated, the total market value of the Exchange Shares (as of the Expiration Date) issued in the Exchange Offer, or (ii) if the Exchange Offer is not consummated, the total market value (as of the date when the Exchange Offer is terminated or otherwise withdrawn by the Company) of the Exchange Shares issuable in the Exchange Offer, based on the maximum number of Warrants that could be exchanged in the Exchange Offer as described in the Preliminary Prospectus or Prospectus immediately before the termination or withdrawal of the Exchange Offer. Relative fault shall be determined by reference to, among other things, whether any untrue or any alleged untrue statement of a material fact or the omission or alleged omission to state a material fact or any other alleged conduct relates to information provided by the Company or other conduct by the Company on the one hand or the Dealer Manager on the other, the intent of the parties and their relative knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent such untrue statement or omission. The Company and the Dealer Manager agree that it would not be just and equitable if contribution were determined by pro rata allocation or any other method of allocation that does not take account of the equitable considerations referred to above. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary above (other than with respect to uncovered losses), in no event shall BofA Securities, Inc. be responsible under this paragraph for any amounts in excess of the amount of the compensation actually paid by the Company to BofA Securities, Inc. in connection with the engagement (exclusive of amounts paid for reimbursement of expenses under the Agreement, including this Section 7, and amounts paid under this Section 7). Notwithstanding the provisions of this paragraph (d), no person guilty of fraudulent misrepresentation (within the meaning of Section 11(f) of the Securities Act) shall be entitled to contribution from any person who was not guilty of such fraudulent misrepresentation. For purposes of this Section 7, each person who controls the Dealer Manager within the meaning of either the Securities Act or the Exchange Act and each director, officer, employee, agent and Affiliate of the Dealer Manager shall have the same rights to contribution as such Dealer Manager, and each person who controls the Company within the meaning of either the Securities Act or the Exchange Act and each officer and director of the Company shall have the same rights to contribution as the Company, subject in each case to the applicable terms and conditions of this paragraph (d).

(e) Notwithstanding the foregoing, each indemnified party shall be obligated to refund or return any and all amounts paid by the Company to such indemnified party for any losses, claims, damages, liabilities and expenses to the extent such indemnified party is not entitled to payment of such amounts in accordance with the terms hereof. In no event shall the Company be responsible for any special, indirect, consequential or punitive damages arising out of or in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

8. [Reserved].

9. <u>Certain Acknowledgments</u>. The Company understands that you and your Affiliates (together, the '<u>Group</u>") are engaged in a wide range of financial services and businesses (including investment management, financing, securities trading, corporate and investment banking and research). Members of the Group and businesses within the Group generally act independently of each other, both for their own account and for the account of clients. Accordingly, there may be situations where parts of the Group and/or their clients either now have or may in the future have interests, or take actions, that may conflict with our interests. For example, the Group may, in the ordinary course of business, engage in trading in financial products or undertake other investment businesses for their own account or on behalf of other clients, including, but not limited to, trading in or holding long, short or derivative positions in securities, loans or other financial products of the Company or other entities connected with the Exchange Offer.

In recognition of the foregoing, the Company agrees that the Group is not required to restrict its activities as a result of this engagement, and that the Group may undertake any business activity without further consultation with or notification to the Company. Neither this Agreement, the receipt by the Group of confidential information nor any other matter shall give rise to any fiduciary, equitable or contractual duties (including without limitation any duty of trust or confidence) that would prevent or restrict the Group from acting on behalf of other customers or for its own account. Furthermore, the Company agrees that neither the Group nor any member or business of the Group is under a duty to disclose to the Company or use on behalf of the Company any information whatsoever about or derived from those activities or to account for any revenue or profits obtained in connection with such activities. However, consistent with the Group's long-standing policy to hold in confidence the affairs of its customers, the Group will not use confidential information obtained from the Company except in connection with its services to, and its relationship with the Company.

The Company hereby acknowledges that you are acting as principal and not as a fiduciary of the Company and the Company's engagement of you in connection with the transactions contemplated herein is as an independent contractor, on an arms-length basis under this Agreement with duties solely to the Company, and not in any other capacity including as a fiduciary. Neither this Agreement, your performance hereunder nor any previous or existing relationship between the Company and any member of or business within the Group will be deemed to create any fiduciary relationship. Neither this engagement, nor the delivery of any advice in connection with this engagement, is intended to confer rights upon any persons not a party hereto (including security holders, employees or creditors of the Company) as against the Group or their respective directors, officers, agents and employees. Furthermore, the Company agrees that it is solely responsible for making its own judgments in connection with the transactions contemplated herein (irrespective of whether any member of or business within the Group has advised or is currently advising the Company on related or other matters).

10. Termination; Representations, Acknowledgments and Indemnities to Survive

(a) Subject to clause (c) below, this Agreement may be terminated by the Company, at any time upon notice to the Dealer Manager, if (i) at any time prior to the Exchange Date, the Exchange Offer is terminated or withdrawn by the Company for any reason, or (ii) the Dealer Manager does not comply with any of its covenants under this Agreement.

(b) Subject to clause (c) below, this Agreement may be terminated by the Dealer Manager, at any time upon notice to the Company, if (i) at any time prior to the Exchange Date, the Exchange Offer is terminated or withdrawn by the Company for any reason, (ii) the Company does not comply in all material respects with any covenant specified in Section 1, (iii) the Company shall publish, send or otherwise distribute any amendment or supplement to the Offering Documents to which the Dealer Manager shall reasonably object or which shall be reasonably disapproved by the counsel to the Dealer Manager or (iv) the Dealer Manager cancels the Agreement pursuant to Section 6.

(c) The respective agreements, representations, warranties, acknowledgments, indemnities and other statements of the Company or its officers and of the Dealer Manager set forth in or made pursuant to this Agreement will remain in full force and effect, regardless of any investigation made by or on behalf of the Dealer Manager or the Company or any of the officers, directors or controlling person of the Company, and will survive delivery of and payment for the Exchange Shares. The provisions of Section 2, Section 5(m), Section 7, Section 12, Section 13, Section 14, Section 15, Section 16, Section 17, Section 18, Section 19 and Section 21 hereof, and this Section 10(c), shall survive the termination or cancellation of this Agreement.

11. <u>Compliance with USA Patriot Act</u>. In accordance with the requirements of the USA Patriot Act (Title III of Pub. L.107-56 (signed into law October 26, 2001)), the Dealer Manager is required to obtain, verify and record information that identifies its clients, including the Company, which information may include the name and address of its clients, as well as other information that will allow the Dealer Manager to properly identify its clients.

12. Notices. All communications hereunder will be in writing and effective only on receipt, and, if sent to the Dealer Manager, will be mailed or delivered to

BofA Securities, Inc. One Bryant Park, New York, NY 10036

New York, NY 10036 Email: dg.ecm_execution_services@bofa.com Attention: Syndicate Department with a copy to: Email: dg.ecm_legal@bofa.com Attention: ECM Legal

with a copy to (which shall not constitute notice):

Davis Polk & Wardwell LLP 450 Lexington Avenue, New York, New York 10017 Email: derek.dostal@davispolk.com Attention: Derek Dostal or, if sent to the Company, will be mailed or delivered to

Allego N.V. Westervoortsedijk 73 KB 6827 AV Arnhem, the Netherlands Attention: Ton Louwers Telephone: +31 (0) 88 033 3033 Email: finance@allego.eu

with a copy to (which shall not constitute notice):

Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP 767 Fifth Avenue New York, New York 10153 Attn: Alex D. Lynch, Esq. and Heather Emmel, Esq.

13. <u>Successors</u>. This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and the officers and directors and controlling persons referred to in Section 7 hereof, and, except as expressly set forth in Section 5(k) hereof, no other person will have any right or obligation hereunder.

14. Entire Agreement. Except for that certain engagement letter dated as of August 21, 2023, between the Company and the Dealer Manager, this Agreement, and any documents referred to in it, constitute the whole agreement between the parties and supersede any arrangements, understanding or previous agreement between them relating to the subject matter they cover. In the event of any inconsistency between this Agreement and any documents referred to in it, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail.

15. Submission to Jurisdiction: Waiver of Immunity. Any legal suit, action or proceeding arising out of or based upon this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby ("Related Proceedings") shall be instituted in (i) the federal courts of the United States of America located in the City and County of New York, Borough of Manhattan or (ii) the courts of the State of New York located in the City and County of New York, Borough of Manhattan or (ii) the courts of the State of New York located in the City and County of New York, Borough of Manhattan (collectively, the "Specified Courts"), and each party irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction (except for proceedings instituted in regard to the enforcement of a judgment of any such court (a "Related Judgment"), as to which such jurisdiction is non-exclusive) of such courts in any such suit, action or proceeding. Service of any process, summons, notice or document by mail to such party's address set forth above shall be effective service of process for any suit, action or other proceeding brought in any such court. The parties irrevocably and unconditionally waive any objection to the laying of venue of any suit, action or other proceeding brought in any such court has been brought in an inconvenient forum. Each party not located in the United States irrevocably appoints Corporation Trust Center as its agent to receive service of process or other legal summons for purposes of any such suit, action or proceeding that may be instituted in any state or federal court in the City and County of New York. With respect to any Related Proceeding, each party

irrevocably waives, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, all immunity (whether on the basis of sovereignty or otherwise) from jurisdiction, service of process, attachment (both before and after judgment) and execution to which it might otherwise be entitled in the Specified Courts, and with respect to any Related Judgment, each party waives any such immunity in the Specified Courts or any other court of competent jurisdiction, and will not raise or claim or cause to be pleaded any such immunity at or in respect of any such Related Proceeding or Related Judgment, including, without limitation, any immunity pursuant to the United States Foreign Sovereign Immunities Act of 1976, as amended.

16. <u>Applicable Law</u>. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York applicable to contracts made and to be performed within the State of New York.

17. Waiver of Jury Trial Each of the parties hereto hereby waives any right to trial by jury in any suit or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement.

18. <u>Counterparts</u>. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute one and the same Agreement. Electronic signatures complying with the New York Electronic Signatures and Records Act (N.Y. State Tech. §§ 301-309), as amended from time to time, or other applicable law will be deemed original signatures for purposes of this Agreement. Transmission by telecopy, electronic mail or other transmission method of an executed counterpart of this Agreement will constitute due and sufficient delivery of such counterpart.

19. Headings. The headings of the sections of this Agreement have been inserted for convenience of reference only and shall not be deemed a part of this Agreement.

20. <u>Currency</u>. Each reference in this Agreement to U.S. dollars (the "relevant currency"), including by use of the symbol "\$", is of the essence. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the obligation of the Company in respect of any amount due under this Agreement will, notwithstanding any payment in any other currency (whether pursuant to a judgment or otherwise), be discharged only to the extent of the amount in the relevant currency that the party entitled to receive such payment may, in accordance with its normal procedures, purchase with the sum paid in such other currency (after any premium and costs of exchange) on the Business Day immediately following the day on which such party receives such payment. If the amount in the relevant currency that may be so purchased for any reason falls short of the amount originally due, the Company will pay such additional amounts, in the relevant currency, as may be necessary to compensate for the shortfall. Any obligation and, until discharged as provided herein, will continue in full force and effect.

21. Definitions. The following terms, when used in this Agreement, shall have the meanings indicated.

"Affiliate" shall have the meaning specified in Rule 501(b) of Regulation D.

"Allego Articles" shall mean the articles of association of the Company contained in the Deed of Conversion and Amendment of the Articles of Association of the Company.

"<u>Business Day</u>" shall mean any day other than a Saturday, a Sunday or a legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions or trust companies are authorized or obligated by law to close in The City of New York.

"Commencement Date" shall mean the date of commencement (as defined in Rule 13e-4 under the Exchange Act) of the Exchange Offer.

"Commission" shall mean the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

"Commission Reports" shall mean any reports the Company files with the Commission pursuant to the Exchange Act.

"Effective Date" shall mean the time the Registration Statement is declared effective under the Securities Act.

"Exchange Act" shall mean the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations of the Commission promulgated thereunder.

"Exchange Date" shall mean the date on which the Company issues the Exchange Shares in exchange for the Warrants pursuant to the Exchange Offer.

"Expiration Date" shall mean Midnight (end of day), Eastern Standard Time, on September 22, 2023, or such later time and date as may be extended by the Company in its sole discretion.

"FINRA" shall mean the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc.

"Information Agent" shall mean D.F. King & Co. Inc.

"Liens" means a lien, charge, pledge, security interest, encumbrance, right of first refusal, preemptive right or other restriction.

"<u>Material Adverse Change</u>" shall mean, with respect to the Company, any change that is materially adverse to the condition (financial or otherwise), prospects, earnings, business or properties of the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, whether or not arising from transactions in the ordinary course of business.

"<u>Material Adverse Effect</u>" means (i) a material adverse effect on the legality, validity or enforceability of any Transaction Document, (ii) a material adverse effect on the results of operations, assets, business or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole or (iii) a material adverse effect on the Company's ability to perform in any material respect on a timely basis its obligations under any Transaction Document.

"Offering Documents" shall mean the Pre-Effective Registration Statement, the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus, the Prospectus, the Schedule TO, the notice of guaranteed delivery, and all other documents filed or to be filed with any federal, state or local government or regulatory agency or authority in connection with the Exchange Offer, each as prepared or approved by the Company.

"Ordinary Share" means an ordinary share of the Company, par value €0.12 per share, and any other class of securities into which such securities may hereafter be reclassified or changed.

"Pre-Effective Registration Statement" shall mean the registration statement, filed by the Company with the Commission registering the Exchange Offer under the Securities Act, including exhibits thereto and any documents deemed part of such registration statement pursuant to Rule 430C under the Securities Act, in the form in which it is initially filed with the Commission.

"Preliminary Prospectus" shall mean the preliminary prospectus that is used prior to the filing of the Prospectus, as amended or supplemented from time to time.

"proceeding" means an action, claim, suit, investigation or proceeding (including, without limitation, an informal investigation or partial proceeding, such as a deposition), whether commenced or threatened.

"Prospectus" shall mean the final prospectus included in the Registration Statement, except that if the final prospectus furnished to the Dealer Manager for use in connection with the Exchange Offer differs from the prospectus set forth in the Registration Statement (whether or not such prospectus is required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) under the Securities Act), the term "Prospectus" shall refer to the final prospectus furnished to the Dealer Manager for such use.

"Registration Statement" shall mean the registration statement filed by the Company with the Commission registering the Exchange Offer under the Securities Act, including exhibits thereto and any documents deemed part of such registration statement pursuant to Rule 430C under the Securities Act, in the form in which it becomes effective and, in the event of any amendment or supplement thereto or the filing of any abbreviated registration statement pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act relating thereto after the effective date of such registration statement, shall also mean such registration statement as so amended or supplemented, together with any such abbreviated registration statement.

"Schedule TO" shall mean the tender offer statement filed with the Commission on Schedule TO, including any documents incorporated by reference therein, with respect to the Exchange Offer, including any amendment or supplement thereto.

"Securities Act" shall mean the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations of the Commission promulgated thereunder.

"Trading Day" means a day on which the principal Trading Market is open for trading.

"Trading Market" means any of the following markets or exchanges on which the Ordinary Shares are listed or quoted for trading on the date in question: the New York Stock Exchange (or any successors to any of the foregoing).

"Transaction Documents" means this Agreement and any other documents or agreements executed in connection with the transactions contemplated hereunder.

"U.S." or the "United States" shall mean the United States of America.

"<u>VAT</u>" shall mean within the European Union such value added tax as may be levied in accordance with (but subject to derogations from) EC Directive 2006/112 and outside the European Union any tax levied by reference to added value, sales and/or consumption.

"<u>Warrants</u>" shall mean the warrants sold as part of the units in the initial public offering of Spartan Acquisition Corp. III (the "IPO") (whether they were purchased in the IPO or thereafter in the open market).

"<u>Warrant Agreement</u>" shall mean the warrant agreement, dated as of February 8, 2021, by and between Spartan Acquisition Corp. III and Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as warrant agent, as assumed by the Company pursuant to the Warrant Assumption Agreement, dated as of March 16, 2022, among the Company, Spartan Acquisition Corp. III and the Warrant Agent.

"Warrant Amendment" shall mean the amendment to the Warrant Agreement described in the Offering Documents.

If the foregoing is in accordance with your understanding of our agreement, please sign and return to us the enclosed duplicate hereof, whereupon this Agreement and your acceptance shall represent a binding agreement between the Company and the Dealer Manager.

Very truly yours,

ALLEGO N.V.

By: Name:

Title:

The foregoing Agreement is hereby confirmed and accepted as of the date first above written:

BOFA SECURITIES, INC.

By Name:

Title:

TENDER AND SUPPORT AGREEMENT

TENDER AND SUPPORT AGREEMENT (this "Agreement"), dated as of August 25, 2023, by and among Allego N.V., a public limited liability company (*naamloze vennotschap*) governed by the laws of the Netherlands (the "**Company**"), and each of the persons listed on <u>Schedule A</u> hereto (collectively, the "Warrant Holders," and each a "Warrant Holder").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, as of the date hereof, each Warrant Holder is the beneficial owner of warrants sold as part of the units in the initial public offering (the "IPO") (whether they were purchased in the IPO or thereafter in the open market) (the "Warrants") of Spartan Acquisition Corp. III ("Spartan") governed by the Warrant Agreement, dated as of February 8, 2021 (the "Warrant Agreement"), by and between Spartan and Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as warrant agent (the "Warrant Agent"), as assumed by the Company pursuant to the Warrant Assumption Agreement, dated as of March 16, 2022, among the Company, Spartan and the Warrant Agent;

WHEREAS, on March 16, 2022, the Company completed its business combination with Spartan, pursuant to which among other things, the Company acquired Spartan as a wholly-owned subsidiary and assumed Spartan's obligations under the Warrant Agreement and the Warrants;

WHEREAS, as of the date hereof, there are a total of 13,799,948 Warrants outstanding;

WHEREAS, each whole Warrant entitles its holder to purchase one Class A ordinary share, par value $\notin 0.12$ per share (the 'Ordinary Shares''), of the Company, for a purchase price of \$11.50, subject to certain adjustments under the Warrant Agreement;

WHEREAS, the Company is initiating an exchange offer (the 'Exchange Offer') pursuant to a registration statement on Form F-4 to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (as may be amended and supplemented, the "Registration Statement"), to offer all Warrant Holders the opportunity to exchange their Warrants for Ordinary Shares, based on an exchange ratio of 0.23 Ordinary Shares per Warrant and subject to other terms and conditions to be disclosed in the Registration Statement;

WHEREAS, concurrent with the Exchange Offer and as part of the Registration Statement, the Company is initiating a consent solicitation (the "Consent Solicitation") to solicit the consent of the holders of the Warrants to amend, effective upon the completion of the Exchange Offer, the terms of the Warrant Agreement (the "Warrant Amendment"), to permit the Company to require that each Warrant that is outstanding upon the closing of the Exchange Offer be converted into 0.207 Ordinary Shares, which is an exchange ratio of 10.0% less than the exchange ratio applicable to the Exchange Offer, subject to the terms and conditions to be disclosed in the Registration Statement; and

WHEREAS, as an inducement to the Company's willingness to initiate the Exchange Offer and the Consent Solicitation, each Warrant Holder has agreed to enter into this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the respective representations, warranties, covenants and agreements set forth herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, do hereby agree as follows:

Section 1.01 <u>Agreement to Tender</u>. Each Warrant Holder shall validly tender or cause to be tendered to the Company all Warrants set forth opposite such Warrant Holder's name on <u>Schedule A</u> (the "**Subject Warrants**"), free and clear of any liens, options, rights or other encumbrances, limitations or restrictions whatsoever, pursuant to and in accordance with the terms of the Exchange Offer as described in the Registration Statement no later than the scheduled or extended expiration Statement, after a Warrant Holder validly tenders his, her or its Warrants to the Company in accordance with the terms of the Registration Statement, such Warrant Holder validly tenders his, her or its Warrants to the Company in accordance with the terms of the Registration Statement, such Warrant Holder shall not withdraw or cause to be withdrawn the tender of any of such Warrants from the Exchange Offer, unless this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 1.06 hereof. For the avoidance of doubt, nothing in this Agreement shall restrict the Warrant Holder from acquiring additional Warrants subsequent to the date hereof, subject to applicable federal securities laws, and such additional Warrants shall not be subject to the terms of this Agreement.

Section 1.02 <u>Agreement to Consent</u>. Each Warrant Holder shall deliver to the Company its timely consent with respect to the Consent Solicitation with respect to all of such Warrant Holder's Subject Warrants set forth on <u>Schedule A</u> in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Consent Solicitation as described in the Registration Statement.

Section 1.03 <u>Ownership of Warrants</u>. Each Warrant Holder represents and warrants to the Company, as of the date hereof and as of the date of tender of such Warrant Holder's Subject Warrants in accordance with this Agreement, that such Warrant Holder is the sole beneficial owner of the number of Warrants set forth opposite such Warrant Holder's name on <u>Schedule A</u>, and has good and marketable title to such Warrants free and clear of any liens, options, rights, or any other encumbrances, limitations or restrictions whatsoever (other than liens imposed under typical prime brokerage agreements and those restrictions imposed by applicable securities laws, this Agreement and the Warrant Agreement). Each Warrant Holder shall not transfer any Subject Warrants to any person (other than the Company in connection with the Exchange Offer) unless such person acquiring such Warrants signs a joinder to this Agreement as if it were an original party hereto.

Section 1.04 <u>Company Covenants</u>. The Company agrees that it shall take all steps reasonably necessary or desirable to commence the Exchange Offer and Consent Solicitation as soon as practicable consistent with this Agreement, and agrees to take all steps necessary to update the Registration Statement as required by applicable laws and regulations, and that the Registration Statement, when declared effective, will comply with all applicable Securities and Exchange Commission requirements.

2

Section 1.05 Specific Performance. Subject to Section 1.06, the parties hereto agree that irreparable damage would occur if any provision of this Agreement were not performed in accordance with the terms hereof and that the parties shall be entitled to an injunction or injunctions to prevent breaches of this Agreement or to enforce specifically the performance of the terms and provisions hereof, in addition to any other remedy to which they are entitled at law or in equity.

Section 1.06 <u>Termination</u>. This Agreement shall terminate as to all Warrant Holders on the earliest of (a) upon written notice to all the Warrant Holders by the Company, (b) upon the earlier of (i) the date the Company's board of directors or a committee thereof determines to no longer pursue the Exchange Offer and the Consent Solicitation, and (ii) October 31, 2023; and (c) if the Company fails to commence the Exchange Offer and Consent Solicitation by August 31, 2023.

Section 1.07 <u>U.S. Federal Income Tax Treatment</u>. The exchange of Warrants for Ordinary Shares pursuant to the Exchange Offer is intended to qualify as a reorganization pursuant to Section 368 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the parties shall not take any position inconsistent therewith unless otherwise required by applicable law.

Section 1.08 Warrant Holder Obligations Several and Not Joint. The obligations of each Warrant Holder hereunder shall be several and not joint, and no Warrant Holder shall be liable for any breach of the terms of this Agreement by any other Warrant Holder.

Section 1.09 <u>Governing Law</u>. The validity, interpretation, and performance of this Agreement and of the Warrants shall be governed in all respects by the laws of the State of New York, without giving effect to conflicts of law principles that would result in the application of the substantive laws of another jurisdiction. The Company hereby agrees that any action, proceeding or claim against it arising out of or relating in any way to this Agreement shall be brought and enforced in the courts of the State of New York or the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York, and irrevocably submits to such jurisdiction, which jurisdiction shall be exclusive. The Company hereby waives any objection to such exclusive jurisdiction and that such courts represent an inconvenient forum.

Section 1.10 <u>Counterparts</u>. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts (which may include counterparts delivered by any standard form of telecommunication), each of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. The words "execution," "signed," "signature" and words of like import in this Agreement or in any other certificate, agreement or document related to this Agreement, if any, shall include images of manually executed signatures transmitted by facsimile or other electronic format (including, without limitation, "pdf," "tif" or "jpg") and other electronic signatures (including, without limitation, DocuSign and AdobeSign). The use of electronic signatures and electronic records (including, without limitation, any contract or other record created, generated, sent, communicated, received or stored by electronic means) shall be of the same legal effect, validity and enforceability as a manually executed signatures in Global and National Commerce Act, the New York State Electronic Signatures and Records Act and any other applicable law, including, without limitation, any state law based on the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act or the Uniform Commercial Code.

[Signature Pages Follow]

³

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the date first above written.

COMPANY:

ALLEGO N.V.

By: /s/ Ton Louwers

Name: Ton Louwers Title: Chief Financial Officer

[Signature Page – Allego Tender and Support Agreement]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the date first above written.

HOLDER:

Highbridge Tactical Credit Master Fund LP:

By: /s/ Jason Hempel

Name:	Jason Hempel
Title:	Managing Director, Co-CIO

Highbridge Tactical Credit Institutional Fund LP:

 By:
 /s/ Jason Hempel

 Name:
 Jason Hempel

 Title:
 Managing Director, Co-CIO

Highbridge SPAC Opportunity Fund LP:

By:/s/ Jason HempelName:Jason HempelTitle:Managing Director, Co-CIO

Phase3 Master Fund LLC:

 By:
 /s/ Eric White

 Name:
 Eric White

 Title:
 Chief Financial Officer of the Managing Member

LMR CCSA Master Fund Limited:

By: /s/ Shane Cullinane Name: Shane Cullinane Title: COO, LMR Partners LLP, acting in its capacity as investment manager of LMR CCSA Master Fund Limited

[Signature Page – Allego Tender and Support Agreement]

LMR Multi-Strategy Master Fund Limited:

By: /s/ Shane Cullinane

Name: Shane Cullinane Title: COO, LMR Partners LLP, acting in its capacity as investment manager of LMR Multi-Strategy Master Fund Limited

Wolverine Flagship Fund Trading Limited:

By: /s/ Kenneth Nadel Name: Kenneth Nadel Title: Authorized Signatory

The Canyon Value Realization Master Fund, L.P.

Canyon Balanced Master Fund, Ltd.

Canyon Value Realization Fund, L.P.

EP Canyon Ltd.

By: Canyon Capital Advisors LLC, as Investment Advisor

By: /s/ Jonathan M. Kaplan Name: Jonathan M. Kaplan Title: Authorized Signatory

Walleye Opportunities Master Fund Ltd:

By: /s/ William England Name: William England Title: CEO of the Manager

[Signature Page – Allego Tender and Support Agreement]

Schedule A

Name of Warrant Holder	Number of Warrants
Highbridge Tactical Credit Master Fund LP	512,891
Highbridge Tactical Credit Institutional Fund LP	130,390
Highbridge SPAC Opportunity Fund LP	220,158
Phase3 Master Fund LLC	2,350,600
LMR CCSA Master Fund Limited	162,500
LMR Multi-Strategy Master Fund Limited	162,500
Wolverine Flagship Fund Trading Limited	449,805
The Canyon Value Realization Master Fund, L.P.	86,555
Canyon Balanced Master Fund, Ltd.	30,806
Canyon Value Realization Fund, L.P.	30,394
EP Canyon Ltd.	2,245
Walleye Opportunities Master Fund Ltd	61,787
Total	4,200,631

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the reference to our firm under the caption "Experts" in the Registration Statement (FormF-4) and related Prospectus of Allego N.V. for the offer to exchange warrants to acquire ordinary shares and to the incorporation by reference therein of our report dated May 16, 2023, with respect to the consolidated financial statements of Allego N.V. included in its Annual Report (Form 20-F) for the year ended December 31, 2022, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

/s/ Ernst & Young Accountants LLP

Amsterdam, Netherlands August 25, 2023

NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY OF WARRANTS OF ALLEGO N.V.

Pursuant to the Prospectus/Offer to Exchange dated August 25, 2023

Instructions for Use

Unless defined herein, terms used in this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery shall have definitions set forth in the Prospectus/Offer to Exchange dated August 25, 2023.

This Notice of Guaranteed Delivery, or one substantially in the form hereof, must be used to accept the Offer if:

- the procedure for book-entry transfer cannot be completed on a timely basis; or
- time will not permit all required documents to reach Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company (the "Exchange Agent") prior to the Expiration Date.

This Notice of Guaranteed Delivery, properly completed and duly executed, must be delivered by hand, mail, overnight courier, facsimile or electronic mail transmission to the Exchange Agent, as described in the section of the Prospectus/Offer to Exchange entitled "*The Offer and Consent Solicitation* — *Procedure for Tendering Warrants for Exchange and Consenting to the Warrant Amendment.*" The method of delivery of all required documents is at the holder's option and risk.

For this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery to be validly delivered, it must bereceived by the Exchange Agent at the address below before the Expiration Date. Delivery of this notice to another address will not constitute a valid delivery. Delivery to the Company, the information agent or the book-entry transfer facility will not be forwarded to the Exchange Agent and will not constitute a valid delivery.

The holder's signature on this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery must be guaranteed by an "Eligible Institution," and the Eligible Institution must also execute the Guarantee of Delivery attached hereto. An "Eligible Institution" is a bank, broker, dealer, credit union, savings association or other entity that is a member in good standing of the Securities Transfer Agents Medallion Program or a bank, broker, dealer, credit union, savings association or other entity which is an "eligible guarantor institution," as that term is defined in Rule 17Ad-15 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY OF WARRANTS OF ALLEGO N.V.

Pursuant to the Prospectus/Offer to Exchange dated August 25, 2023

TO: CONTINENTAL STOCK TRANSFER & TRUST COMPANY

Via Email (for eligible institutions only): Tenders@continentalstock.com

The undersigned acknowledges receipt of the Prospectus/Offer to Exchange, dated August 25, 2023 (the "Prospectus/Offer to Exchange").

By signing this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery, the holder (i) tenders for exchange, upon the terms and subject to the conditions described in the Prospectus/Offer to Exchange, the number of warrants specified below, and (ii) provides consent to the Warrant Amendment, pursuant to the guaranteed delivery procedures described in the section of the Prospectus/Offer to Exchange entitled "*The Offer and Consent Solicitation — Procedure for Tendering Warrants for Exchange and Consenting to the Warrant Amendment.*"

DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS TENDERED

List below the warrants to which this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery relates.

Name(s) and Address(es) of Registered Holder(s) of Warrants	Number of Warrants Tendered
	Total:

(1) Unless otherwise indicated above, it will be assumed that all warrants listed above are being tendered pursuant to this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery.

□ CHECK HERE IF THE WARRANTS LISTED ABOVE WILL BE DELIVERED BY BOOK-ENTRY TRANSFER MADE TO THE ACCOUNT MAINTAINED BY THE EXCHANGE AGENT WITH THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY ("DTC") AND COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING (FOR USE BY ELIGIBLE INSTITUTIONS ONLY):

Name of Tendering Institution:

Account Number:

SIGNATURES

Signature(s) of Warrant Holder(s)

Name(s) of Warrant Holder(s) (Please Print)

Address

City, State, Zip Code

Telephone Number

Date

GUARANTEE OF SIGNATURES

Authorized Signature

Name (Please Print)

Title

Name of Firm (must be an Eligible Institution as defined in this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery)

Address

City, State, Zip Code

Telephone Number

Date

GUARANTEE OF DELIVERY (Not to be used for Signature Guarantee)

The undersigned, a bank, broker, dealer, credit union, savings association or other entity that is a member in good standing of the Securities Transfer Agents Medallion Program or a bank, broker, dealer, credit union, savings association or other entity which is an "eligible guarantor institution," as that term is defined in Rule 17Ad-15 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (each of the foregoing constituting an "Eligible Institution"), guarantees delivery to the Exchange Agent of the warrants tendered and consents given, in proper form for transfer, or a confirmation that the warrants tendered have been delivered pursuant to the procedure for book-entry transfer described in the Prospectus/Offer to Exchange into the Exchange Agent's account at the book-entry transfer facility, in each case together with an Agent's Message in the case of a book-entry transfer, and any other required documents, all within two (2) Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board quotation days after the date of receipt by the Exchange Agent of this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery. The Eligible Institution that completes this form must communicate the guarantee to the Exchange Agent and must deliver confirmation of receipt of the warrants pursuant to the procedure for book-entry transfer and an Agent's Message, within the time set forth above. Failure to do so could result in a financial loss to such Eligible Institution.

Authorized Signature Name (Please Print)

Title	
Name of Firm	
Address	
City, State, Zip Code	
Telephone Number	
Date	

Calculation of Filing Fee Table

Form F-4

(Form Type)

Allego N.V.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)

Table 1: Newly Registered Securities

	Security Type	Security Class Title	Fee Calculation Rule	Amount Registered	Proposed Maximum Offering Price Per Share (4)	Maximum Aggregate Offering Price (2) (4)	Fee Rate	Amount of Registration Fee
Fees to Be Paid	Equity	Ordinary shares, par value € 0.12 per share	Rule 457(f)(1)	3,173,989(1)(2)	\$2.18(3)	\$6,919,296.02(3)	\$0.00011020	\$762.51
Fees to Be Paid	Equity	Warrants to purchase ordinary shares	Rule 457(g)	13,799,948(4)	N/A	N/A	N/A	\$—(5)
Fees Previously Paid								
	Total Offering Amounts				\$6,919,296.02		762.51	
	Total Fees Previously Paid							\$—
	Total Fee Offsets						_	
	Net Fee Due							\$762.51

(1) Represents the maximum number of ordinary shares, each with a nominal value of € 0.12 per share (the "Ordinary Shares") of the registrant that may be issued directly to (i) holders of our warrants (the "Warrants") who tender their Warrants pursuant to the Offer (as defined in the Prospectus/Offer to Exchange) and (ii) holders of our outstanding Warrants who do not tender their Warrants pursuant to the Offer and, pursuant to the Warrant Amendment (as defined in the Prospectus/Offer to Exchange), if approved, may receive Ordinary Shares of the registrant in the event the registrant exercises its right to convert the Warrants into Ordinary Shares.

(2) Pursuant to Rule 416 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), the registrant is also registering an indeterminate number of additional shares of Ordinary Shares issuable by reason of any stock dividend, stock split, recapitalization or other similar transaction.

(3) Estimated pursuant to Rule 457(f)(1) under the Securities Act, and solely for the purpose of calculating the registration fee, the proposed maximum offering price is \$2.18 per share, which is the average of the high and low prices of the Ordinary Shares on August 24, 2023, on the New York Stock Exchange.

(4) Represents the maximum number of Warrants that may be amended pursuant to the Warrant Amendment.

(5) No additional registration fee is payable pursuant to Rule 457(g) under the Securities Act